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Vision Statement

¢ Inculcate a culture of innovation and responsibility within our team.

o Adhere to the highest standards of integrity and fair dealing.

e Abide by the best practices of lawful and ethical conduct of business.

¢ Implement the standards for rendering the highest-quality services to our customers.

Mission Statement

To be an ultimate value-creation vehicle for the shareholders.
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Chairman's Review
Dear Shareholders,

It is with immense pleasure that I present the Chairman’s Review for the financial year ended June 30,
2025, in compliance with the requirements of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2017. This report
highlights the Company’s strategic performance, key achievements, and the Board's role in guiding
the Management towards fulfilling our corporate objectives for the benefit of all stakeholders.

The Financial Year 2025 was a period of strategic expansion and demonstrated excellence in capital
market execution for LSE Capital Limited (LSECL). LSECL acted as the Transaction Advisory and
Financial Structuring provider for several landmark listings on the Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX),
reinforcing our position as a trusted partner for both growth-stage and established businesses. The
Company also executed key strategic investments aimed at long-term value creation. LSECL also
secured an extensive financial advisory mandate which is disclosed in the directors’ report.

These transactions mark a key milestone in our capital markets journey. At LSE Capital, we don’t just
advise; we deliver structure, strategy, and success, once again demonstrating our prowess in swiftly
delivering optimal financial solutions and efficient execution capabilities for the value creation of our
clients.

The overall performance of the Board was fully compliant with the requirements of the Companies
Act, 2017, and the Code of Corporate Governance Regulations. The Directors performed their duties
diligently and effectively, always acting in the best interest of the Company and its stakeholders. The
Board routinely reviewed, discussed, and approved the Company's business strategies, corporate
objectives, plans, and financial statements. The Board ensured adequate representation of non-
executive and independent directors on the Board and its committees, implementing the requirements
of the Code in its true letter and spirit. All significant issues were presented before the Board or its
committees to strengthen and formalize the corporate decision-making process. Importantly, all
related-party transactions executed by the Company were approved by the Board following the
recommendations of the Audit Committee. The Board confirmed that a sound system of internal
controls is in place, recognizing that well-defined corporate governance processes are vital in
enhancing corporate accountability and preserving stakeholder value.

On behalf of the Board, I extend my deepest gratitude to all our employees for their hard work and
contributions to the Company's success. I also wish to thank our outgoing directors, shareholders,
business partners, and all other stakeholders for their continued confidence and unwavering support.

Thank You.
-Sd-
Chairman
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Directors’ Report

We are pleased to present the Directors” Report of LSE Capital Limited (PSX ticker: LSECL), together
with the Annual Audited Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2025, accompanied by the
Auditors' Report, thereon.

Economic Review FY 2024-25:

The global economic landscape continues to be shaped by moderation, with projected world growth
slowing to 2.8% in 2025 amid rising geopolitical tensions, trade frictions, and heightened exchange rate
volatility. Despite this volatile international backdrop, the domestic economy of Pakistan maintained
its upward trajectory in FY 2025, recording an annual GDP growth of 2.68%, driven by effective
macroeconomic management and a stabilization across key indicators. Crucial to this turnaround was
the sharp reduction in inflation. Fiscal discipline also saw marked enhancement, highlighted by the
achievement of a historic primary surplus of 3.0% of GDP for July-March FY 2025. On the external
front, the account witnessed a remarkable reversal, shifting to an unprecedented US$ 1.9 billion
surplus during July-April FY 2025, supported by improved export performance and record remittance
inflows, setting a firm foundation for a higher growth path.

This stabilization directly translated into a significant revival of investor confidence, most notably in
the capital markets, where Pakistan's equity market outperformed world stock markets. The
benchmark KSE-100 Index registered a phenomenal growth of 57.79%, surging from 78,824 points to
124,379 points. This unprecedented performance is attributed to robust corporate earnings, the
declining policy rate, and the stable macroeconomic environment. Broadly, investor activity is
underscored by a 27.5% rise in company incorporations and the industrial sector demonstrated
resilience, posting a growth of 4.77% in FY 2025, driven by a recovery in the manufacturing segment.

Operational Review:

LSECL acted as the Transaction Advisory and Financial Structuring provider on multiple landmark
listings at the Pakistan Stock Exchange during the year. These include Ghani Chem World Limited
(GCWL) and Mughal Steel Class C Shares — listed on the Main Board. Moreover, Nets International
Communication Limited (NETS) and The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency (PACRA) — listed on the
GEM Board of PSX.

LSECL has completed the acquisition of 10% shares of Jamshoro Joint Venture Limited ("JJVL"). It may
be mentioned that JJVL has recently entered into an agreement with Sui Southern Gas Company
Limited ("SSGC") for the restart of LPG production, which will make JJVL the largest private sector
LPG producer in Pakistan. The Company has also acquired 2.5% equity stake in Digital Custodian
Company Limited.

LSECL has signed an extensive financial advisory mandate with Kaizen, the landlord for the two of
the most modern outlets of daftarkhawan in Lahore. Under this advisory mandate, the investment
property portfolio of different Kaizen companies shall be centralized under a REIT Management
Company and placed in a REIT Scheme, which will become a PSX listed instrument. With the new
mandate, LSE Capital Limited, shall once again be able to demonstrate its prowess in swiftly delivering
optimal financial solutions and efficient execution capabilities for the value creation of its clients.

These transactions mark a key milestone in our capital markets journey, reinforcing our position as a
trusted partner for growth-stage and established businesses navigating the PSX. At LSE Capital, we
don’t just advise, we deliver structure, strategy, and success.
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Financial Performance:

Financial Highlights:
Rupees in '000' 2025 2024
Operating Income 145,428 35,191
Other Income 326,051 96,679
Share of profit of Associates 106,087 33,476
Admin & General Expenses (191,813) (65,929)
Finance Cost (79,259) (19,887)
Profit before Taxation 306,494 79,529
Taxation (67,907) 41,476
Net Profit 238,587 121,006
Equity + Revaluation Surplus 3,166,638 2,970,871
Total Asset 3,528,655 3,591,231
Net Asset 3,166,637 2,970,871
Total Liability 362,018 620,359
Shares outstanding (Nos.) 181,153 181,153
Earnings per share EPS 1.32 2.66

Dividend

In view of financial performance of the Company, the Board of Directors has not recommended
dividend for the year ended June 30, 2025 (2024: 0.5 per share)

Future Outlook

LSECL has emerged as a premier financial services platform. We are committed to harnessing our
expertise to unlock value for our clients and stakeholders, driving sustainable growth in Pakistan's
capital market. LSECL will excel in merger & acquisitions deals advisory, corporate finance and
restructuring transaction services as it is known for handling complex mandates requiring innovative
structuring and out-of-the-box transaction arrangements.

Appointment of External Auditors

The present auditors, M/s. KRESTON Hyder Bhimjee & Co., Chartered Accountants, are retiring at the
conclusion of the current term. The matter of appointment/re-appointment of the auditors and their
remuneration has been referred to the shareholders for approval in the Annual General Meeting
(AGM) for the next term.

Internal Financial Control

The Board has adequately ensured that the system of internal financial controls is sound in design and
has been effectively implemented and monitored through Internal Auditors.

Code of Corporate Governance
The requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance, as introduced by the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan and set out by the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited in its Listing Rules, have

been duly complied with. A statement to this effect is annexed to the report.

The Board of Directors of your Company assures you that:
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¢ The financial statements, fairly present its state of affairs, the result of its operations, cash flows and
changes in equity.
e Proper books of account have been maintained by your Company.

e Appropriate accounting policies are consistently applied by your Company in the preparation of

financial statements, and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

e International Accounting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in the
preparation of these financial statements and any departure there from, if any, has been adequately

disclosed.

e The system of Internal Control, being implemented in your Company is sound and has been

effectively persisted throughout the year.

¢ Keeping in view the financial position of your Company, we do not have any significant doubt upon

its continuance as a going concern.
o  There also has not been any material departure from the best practices of corporate governance, as
detailed in the listing regulations, during the year under review.

Corporate Social Responsibility & Environmental Management and Objectives relating ESG Risks

The Company is committed and remained engaged during the year to undertake and oversee CSR
and environmental management programs while ensuring its focused activities relating education,
healthcare and protection of environment. Accordingly, the Board of the Company stands behind
these objectives of the Company while alighing with commitment to create considerable value for all
stakeholders of the Company and also endeavors to ensure that it qualifies as a responsible corporate
citizen.

Anti-Harassment

The Company has a comprehensive mechanism towards anti-harassment to ensure that any type of
workplace harassment is dealt with a zero-tolerance to ensure that all the employees of the company
regardless of their gender and position avail the opportunity to work in a safe and respectful
environment. Employees are encouraged to report such grievances to the HR department in a
confidential to conduct fair investigations.

Gender Pay-Gap

The Company is committed that all employees of the company are treated with equality & fairness
and there should be no gender pay gap within the Company. Accordingly, the compensation of
employees is determined on the basis of experience, seniority, responsibilities and performance
without any gender-based discrimination.

1 Mean Gender Pay Gap 8.67%
2 Median Gender Pay Gap -26.73%

Meetings of the Board of Directors

During the period, 4 meetings of the Board of Directors of the Company were held. Directors’
respective attendance in the Board meetings was as follows:

In compliance with Section 227 of the Companies Act, 2017, the followings are hereby specifically
disclosed:
The names of the persons who, at any time during the financial year, were directors of the Company:
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Sr. Name of Directors Category Total Attendance
No. Meetings
1 Mr. Shoaib Mir Chairman 4 4
2 Mr. Muhammad Non-Executive 4 2
Igbal Director
3 Mr. Yasir Manzoor Non-Executive 4 3
Director
4 Ms. Shumaila Independent 4 4
Siddiqui Director
5 Ms. Aasiya Riaz Non-Executive 4 3
Director
6 Hafiz Muddassir Non-Executive 4 3
Alam Director
7 Mr. Aftab Ahmad Chief Executive 4 4
Ch. Officer

In compliance with Regulation No. 34(2) of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019, the following information is provided: -
1. The total number of directors are seven (7) as per the following: -

a) Male: 5

b) Female: 2

2. The composition of the Board is as follows: -

i. Independent directors: Mr. Shoaib Mir

Ms. Shumaila Siddigi
ii. Non-Executive directors: Mr. Aasiya Riaz

Hafiz Muddassir Alam

Mr. Muhammad Igbal
Mr. Ayaz Dawood
iii. Executive director: Mr. Aftab Ahmad Chaudhry
iv. Female director: Ms. Shumaila Siddigi
Ms. Aasiya Riaz
Directors’ Remuneration

At present the Chief Executive Officer is being paid the salary and such other benefits as approved by
the Baord under the Articles of Association and as per HR Policy of the Company. No other director
is being paid any extra remuneration by the Company, except the meeting fee for attending the Board
and its Committees meetings. The relevant figures have been disclosed in the financial statements.

Annual Evaluation of Board’s Performance

As required under the listed companies Code of Corporate Governance Regulations, 2019, an annual
evaluation of performance of the Board, members of the Board and its Committees was carried out to
ensure that Board’s overall performance and effectiveness is measured against the objectives set for
the Company. Based on the evaluation, overall performance of the Board, members and Committees
of the Board for the year under review is satisfactory.

Statutory and Advisory Committees of the Board

The Board has constituted the Statutory and Advisory Committees for the three-years term, as under:
1. Board Audit Committee (BAC)

The Board Audit Committee comprises of three (3) Directors including one Independent Director
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(ID) who is the Chairman of the Committee.

Name Category
Ms. Shumaila Siddiqui Convener
Ms. Aasiya Riaz Member
Mr. Hafiz Mudassir Alam Member

2. Human Resource and Remuneration Committee (HRRC)

The Human Resource and Remuneration (HRR) Committee comprises three (3) Directors
including one Independent Director who is the Chairman of the Committee.

Name Category
Mr. Shoaib Mir Convener
Mr. Hafiz Mudassir Alam Member
Mr. Muhammad Igbal Member

Related Party Transactions

At each board meeting, the Board of Directors approve all transactions of the Company executed with
associated companies and related parties on arm’s length basis in normal course of business.

Pattern of Shareholding

The pattern of shareholding of your Company as on June 30, 2025, is annexed with this report. This
statement is in accordance with the amendments made through the Code.

Financial Reporting

The Board Audit Committee reviewed, discussed, and recommended the draft Interim and Annual
Results of the Company for Board approval. The Committee discussed with the CFO, HOIA, and
External Auditors of the Company on significant accounting policies, estimates, and judgments
applied in preparing the financial information.

Acknowledgments

The Board also acknowledge with appreciation the valuable guidance and cooperation received from
the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) and other government bodies.

Furthermore, we express our gratitude to our shareholders for their trust and cooperation, and
commend the Management's dedication and the employees' hard work, which have been instrumental
in the Company's progress.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

LSE Capital Limited:
-Sd- -Sd-
Chief Executive Officet/MD Director

Dated: November 1, 2025
Place: Lahore
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LSCE CAPRITAL

Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019

Name of Company: LSE Capital Limited
Year ended: June 30, 2025

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:-
1. The total number of directors are seven (7) as per the following,-

a. Male: 5
b. Female: 2

2. The composition of the Board is as follows: -

ii. Independent directors: Mr. Shoaib Mir
Ms. Shumaila Siddiqui

ii. Non-Executive directors: Mr. Muhammad Igbal
Ms. Aasiya Riaz
Mr. Ayaz Dawood

Hafiz Mudassir Alam
iii. Executive director: Mr. Aftab Ahmad Chaudhry
iv. Female director: Ms. Shumaila Siddiqui

Ms. Aasiya Riaz

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven (7)
listed companies, including this company;

4. The company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have
been taken to disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and
procedures;

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant
policies of the company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the
significant policies along with their date of approval or updating is maintained by the
company;

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have
been taken by the Board/ shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and
these Regulations;

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a
director elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements
of the Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of
meeting of the Board;

8. The Board have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in
accordance with the Act and the Regulations;
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

LSCE CAPRITAL

Mostly the directors out of seven (7) Directors have the prescribed certification under the
Directors’ Training Program. Moreover, two Directors qualify for exemption of certification
requirement by virtue of his qualification and experience on the Board of listed companies. The
Company shall arrange Directors’ Training Program for remaining directors in due course;

The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head
of Internal Audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and

complied with relevant requirements of the Regulations;

The Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements
before approval of the Board;

The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:-

a) Audit Committee:

Sr. Status
No. Name

. Ms. Shumaila Siddiqui Chairman
2. Ms. Aasiya Riaz Member
3. Hafiz Mudassir Alam Member

b) Human Resources & Remuneration and Compensation Committee:

Sr. Status

No. Name

1. Mr. Shoaib Mir Chairman
Hafiz Mudassir Alam Member

3. Mr. Muhammad Igbal Member

The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and
advised to the committee for compliance;

The frequency of meetings of the Committees were as per following:-

a) Audit Committee - Quarterly
b) Human Resources & Remuneration and Compensation Committee — At least once in
ayear.

The Board has appointed the resource for the internal audit function while considering suitably
qualified and experienced for the purpose and conversant with the policies and procedures of
the company;

The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory
rating under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners
are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of
ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the
partners of the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent
and non-dependent children) of the chief executive officer, chief financial officer, head of
internal audit, company secretary or director of the company;
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17.

18.

19.
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LSCE CAPRITAL

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide
other services except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other regulatory
requirements and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this
regard;

We confirm that during the FY ended June 30%, 2025, the applicable and relevant requirements
of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations were complied with.

Explanation for non-compliance with requirements, other than regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33
and 36 are below:

Regulation No. 6(1):

The Board of Directors comprises seven members, including the CEO. In compliance with the
requirement for independent directors to constitute at least one-third (1/3) of the total, the
Board has two (2) independent directors. To maintain optimal size of the Board and decision
making efficiency, the company has not rounded up the fractional requirement and considered
it up to the nearest whole number.

Regulation No. 19:

The directors required to acquire the director training, shall be arranged to have their director
training program certification within the next period of one year, as required under the
relevant regulations.

Regulation No. 27(2)(i):

The Audit Committee meets quarterly to review quarterly financial statements. Since, the
fourth quarter completes the financial year i.e., as on June 30, the Committee’s final meeting
is to review the prepared and audited annual accounts including the fourth quarter.

Regulation No. 29(1):

The responsibilities as prescribed for the Nomination Committee are being taken care of at
Board level as and when needed, so a separate committee is not considered to be necessary at
present.

Regulation No. 30(1):

The Board has tasked the Audit Committee to oversee Risk Management related matters of the
Company, therefore a separate committee has not been constituted.

-Sd-
Signature
Chairman

Lahore.

Date: November 01, 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S MODIFIED REVIEW REPORT

To the members of L5E Capital Limited

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019

We hove reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies [Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of LSE Capital Limited
for the year ended June 30, 2025 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.
The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Qur
responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's
complionce with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any nen-
compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the
Company's personnel and review of various documents prepored by the Company to comply with the
Regulations.

As a paort of our oudit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit opproach.
We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors' statement on internal contral covers all risks
and contrels or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Compuny's corporate
governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upen recommendation of
the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party
transactions and also ensure compliance with the requirements of section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017.
We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the
related party transactions by the Board of Directers upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We
have not carried out procedures to assess and determine the Company's process for identification of related
parties and that whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm’s length price or net,

The following instances of non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations were observed which are
not appropriately stated in the Statement of Compliance:

a) There is only one person assigned with the role of head of internal audit function without any other
member and accordingly there is no internal audit department in existence in the company. Hence,
the role and functions of internal audit as defined in Regulation 31(4) of the Code of Corporate
Governance Regulations, 2019 are complied with in letters and not in spirit.

b} Mo arrangements were in place in the company to ensure that the continued findings as highlighted
by the head of internal audit to the audit committee in its meetings have been duly resclved and
complied with to have effective internal control system and to have its due ufility.

Based on our review, except for the above instances of non-compliance, nothing has come to our attention
which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's
compliance, in all material respects, with the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended
June 30, 2025.

Further, we highlight below instances of non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations as
reflected in the paragraph reference where these are stated in the Statement of Compliance:

Other Offices at:  Karachi - Faisalabad - Islamabad
Web site: www, krestonhb.com
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Description

Regulation Ne. 19:

The directors are required to acquire the directer training, which shall
be arranged to have their director training program certification within
the period of one year, as required under the relevant

regulations.

Regulation No. 29 (1):

The responsibilities as preseribed for the Nomination Committee are
being taken care of ot Board level as ond when needed, so a separate
committee is not considered to be necessary at present.

Regulation No. 30 (1):

The Board has tasked the Audit Committee to oversee Risk Management
related matters of the Company, therefore a separate committee has
not been constituted.,

Regulation No. 27 (2):

The Audit Committee meets quarterly to review quarterly financial
statements. Since, the fourth quarter completes the financial year i.e.,
as on June 30th, the Committee's final meeting is to review the prepared
and oudited annual accounts including the fourth quarter.

Regulation Ne. &(1):

The Board of Directors comprises seven members, including the CEOQ. In
compliance with the requirement for independent directors to constitute
ot least one-third {1,/3) of the total, the Board has two (2) independent
directors. To maintain optimal size of the Board ond decision-making
efficiency, the company has not rounded up the fractional requirement
and considered it up to the nearest whole number.

\p—
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF LSE CAPITAL LIMITED REPORT ON
THE AUDIT OF THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

We have audited the annexed unconsolidated financial statements of LSE CAPITAL LIMITED (the
Company), which comprise the unconsolidated statement of financial pesition as at June 30, 2025
and the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, the unconsolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity, the unconsolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the unconsclidated financial statements, including
material accounting policy information and other explanatery information, and we state that we
have obtained all the infermation and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief,
were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion, and to the best of our information and accerding to the explanations given to us, the
unconsolidated statement of financial position, the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, the
unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the unconsclidated statement of changes in
equity and the unconsolidated statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof
conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and
respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at June 30, 2025
and of the profit, its comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year
then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the unconsolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide o basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Other Offices at:  Karachi - Faisalabad - Islamabad
Web site: www. krestonhb.com
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Following are the Key Audit Matter(s):

Key Audit Matter(s)

Investments and financial assets

Refer to notes 6 and 11 of the unconsolidated financial
statements.

The carrying amount of investments and financial assets
held by the Compony amounted to Rs. 1,557.137 millien
which constitutes 44,13% of the total ossets as ot June
30, 2025.

The significant portion of investments comprise of
investment in subsidiary company, cssociates, listed &
unlisted equity securities and musharika financing,

Investments and other financial assets are carried under
equity method, fair value or amortized cost in
occordance with the Company's accounting policy
relating to their recognition and measurement. Provision
against investments is based on impairment pelicy of the

i Company which includes both subjective and objective
factors.

‘ We identified assessing carrying value of the investment

| ot a key oudit matter because of Its significance to the

! unconselidated  financial statements and becouse

| assessing the foir value ond the key impoirment
ossumptions involves o  significant degree of
management judgement,

How the Matter was Addressed in our audit

(& Assessed the design and tested the operating

effectiveness of key controls in ploce reloting to
valuation of investments;

s Checked on o test basis the valuation of investments,
recognition of proportionate share of post-
acquisition post tax profits and other comprehensive
income of investees as recorded in the general
ledger to supporting documents, externally quoted
market prices, break-up values, etc.

® Checking the existence of shares from the Central
Depaository Company's report.

* Obtained independent confirmations for verifying
the existence of investments portfolio as at June 30,
2025 and reconciled it with the books and records
of the Company. Where such confirmations were not
available, alternate procedures were performed;

s Obtained duly executed musharike financing
covenant entered into with the party and checked
underlying terms & conditions attaching thereto os
regards te amount of loan, tenor, pricing and
collateral requirements;

* Obtained independent confirmation from the third
party for verifying the existence and valuation of
musharike finance provided as ot June 30, 2025
and reconciled it with the books and records of the
Company;

s Evoluated the Company's ossessment for
impairment, if any including those securities that are
not traded actively in market in accordance with the
accounting and repoerting standards as applicable in
Pakistan and performed an independent assessment
of the assumptions and conclusions; and

Considered the Company's disclosures of investments in
accordance with the requirements of the accounting and

reperting standards as applicable in Pokistan.

Information Other than the Unconsclidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the unconsclidated financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Other Offices at: Karachi - Faisalabad - Islamabad
‘Web site: www. krestonhb.com
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Our opinion on the unconsolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the unconsclidated financial statements, our respensibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the unconsolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other Information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to repert in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Unconsclidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the unconsolidated financial
statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the
requirements of the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal contrel as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of unconsclidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the unconsolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company er to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do se.

The Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the unconsolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due te fraud or errer, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to Influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these unconsolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the unconsolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and oppropriate to provide a basis for our opinien. The risk
of not detecting @ material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of Internal control relevant to the oudit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's Internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Other Offices at: Karachi - Faisalabad - Islamabad
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- Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether @ material uncertainty exists related to events or cenditions that may
cast significant deubt on the Company's ability to continue as a geing concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
uncensolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inodequate, to modify our opinion. Our
eonclusions are bosed on the oudit evidence obtained up 1o the date of our auditer's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease fo continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the unconsolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the unconsolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of direciors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that moy reasonably be
thought to bear on our Independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the unconsolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key cudit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation procedures public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that @ matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of deing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Bosed on our audit, we further repert that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 20017 (XX of
2007);

b) the unconsolidated statement of financiol position, the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, the
unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity and the
unconsolidated statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with
the Compeonies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

¢] Investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of
the Company's business; and

d] Zokat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIll of 1980), wos deducted by the
Company ond deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance.

The engagement parimer on the audit resulting in this independent ouditor’s repert is Muhammad Usman Shah, FCA,

- LI 1
ok il ol
LAHORE: November 01, 2025 KRESTON HY co.

UDIN: AR202510269765mOdPwr CHARTERED ACLOUNTANTS
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LSE CAPITAL LIMITED

ASSETS

Non Current Assets

Property and equipment

Right of use asset

Investment in related parties
Investment property

Net investment in finance lease
Long term deposits

Current Assets

Inventories

Financial assets

Trade and other receivables

Advances, deposits and prepayments

Tax refunds due from the Government - net
Cash and bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Authorized Share Capital

200,000,000 (2024: 200,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
50,000,000 (2024: 50,000,000) preference shares of Rs. 10 each

Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital

Capital Reserves:

- Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment
- Building reserve fund

- Marger reserve

- Fair value reserve

Revenue Reserve:
- Unappropriated profit

Total Equity
Non Current Liabilities

Long term financing
Other liabilities
Deferred tax liability

Current Liabilities

Trade and other payables

Current portion of long term financing
Loan from director

Accrued markup on financing
Unclaimed dividend

W~ ot

10
11
12
13
14
15

16
16

17
18

20
21

SREDB

2025 2024
Rs. in 0008

1,322,993 1,321,392
45704 57128
1,075,510 896,024
456,276 392,122
4,274 4275
2719 548
2,907,476 2,671,490
1,442 2411
481,627 640,047
55,063 42,160
25,352 14,175
24,833 28,935
31,862 192,012
621,179 918,740

—dagB638. 3291000,

2,000,000 2,000,000
500,000 500,000
1,811,534 1,811,534
74,624 75,822
6,593 1,682
289,814 289,814
63,891 20,223
920,181 771,795
1,355,103 1.159,336
3,166,637 2,870,870
36,670 70,450
43,085 35,280
83,504 43075
163,359 148,805
133,245 330,960
33,781 26,284

- 100,000
17,824 3,952
13,808 10,358
198,659 471,555

M_m




UNC LIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS FO E YEAR EN

Revenue

Operating Expenses
Administrative and general expenses

Other expenses
Operating Loss

Other income

Income from associates

Profit Before Interest, Levy and Taxation
Finance cost

Profit Before Levy and Taxation

Levy
Profit Before Taxation

Taxation

Net Profit After Taxation

Earnings Per Share - Basic and Diluted

The annexed notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.

o

CHI UTNVE OFFICER

LSE CAPITAL LIMITED

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Note

28

29

K1)
32

33

35

36

UNE 30, 20
2025 2024
Rs. in 000s
145,428 35,191
(189,378) (61,574)
(2,435) (4,355)
(46,385) (30,738)
326,051 96,679
106,087 33,476
385,753 99,417
(79,259) (19,887)
306,494 79,530
(20,991) (10,669)
285,503 68,861
(46,916) 52,145
238,587 121,006
1.32 2.66




LSE CAPITAL LIMITED

UNCONSOLIDATED STATE T OF COMPREHENSIVE | E FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2
2025 2024
Note Rs. in 000s

Net Profit After Taxation 238,587 121,006
Other Comprehensive Income

Items that can not be reclassified to profit or loss

Surplus arose on fresh revaluation of land and building 2 85 615
Impact of related deferred tax - (9,793)
Items that may be subsequen lassified to r loss

Share in OCI of associate - net of tax 6.5 51,374 23,792
Impact of deferred tax 22.3 (7,706) (3,569)

43,668 96,045

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 282,255 217,051
The annexed notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.

1) il
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Capital Reserves Revenue Reserve
Surplus on Total
Share Capital | Reyaluationof | Building Merger | Fairvalue | Unappropristed | Reserves | |0 EQUItY
Property and Reserve Reserve Reserve Profit
Equipment
Nate ‘Rs. in 000s
Balance as at June 30, 2023 210,000 - - - 48,118 24 B57 72115 282,775
Transactions between the intenm period transfermed 1o retained eamings
as per merger scheme - . - - 6,730 580 7,310 7,310
Adjustments | Transters as per scheme of merger 1,601,534 - . 289,814 [54,848) 656,341 891,307 2,492 B
Adjustments related fo pre-merger transactions - . - . = (1,645) (1,645) (1,645)
Reclassification fo profit or loss from other comprehensive income on
disposal of investment in associales - - - - - (20,380) (20,380) (20,380)
Net Profit after taxation - - . - - 121,006 121,006 121,006
Other comprehensive income - 75,822 - - 0,223 - 96,045 96,045
Total comprehensive income for the year - 75,622 . - 20,203 121,006 7051 217,051
Cost incurmed in raising capital under merger scheme - - - - - (8.380) {8,380} (8.380)
Amoun! collected from building occupants for fixed assets replacement
fund 18 2 1,682 . - (384) 1,298 1,298
Balance as at June 30, 2024 1,811,534 75,822 1,682 289,814 20,223 7,785 1158336 2970,870
Wet profit after taxation - . - - - 238,587 238 587 238,587
(Cther comprehensive income - - . . 43 558 - 43 6668 43 668
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - 43,668 238 587 282,255 282 255
wmmmmhmmm 18 g . 4911 - 2 (822) 4,089 4089
Realization of revaluation surplus on property and equipment through - 1198 : . L 1108 ) -
depreciation (et of tax) {1.198) g
Transactions with owners of the Company
Cash dividend @ Rs. 0.50 per share for the year ended June 30, 2024 - - . . . {90,577) (90,577) (90,577)
1,811,534 74624 6,553 289,814 63,691 920,181 1,355,103 3,166,637




LSE CAPITAL LIMITED

UNCO! IDATED MENT OF C FL F YEARE NE
2025 2024
Note Rs. in 000s
Cash (Used in) | Generated from Operations KT (246,816) 52,831
Finance cost paid (65,387) (23,839)
Income fax paid (30,502) (4.914)
Net Cash (Used in) | Generated from Operating Activities (342,705) 24,078
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment 329 2,500
Proceeds from disposal of right of use assel - 7,800
Cash and cash equivalents - profit on saving bank accounts A 6,578 440
Purchase of operating fixed assets 4 (21,746) (8.778)
Capital work in progress incumed 4 (166) (175)
Running musharikah financing provided during the year 11 (50,000) (300,000)
Proceeds from encashment of investments - net 356,332 -
Disbursement of advance for purchase of unlisted securities 12 (60,000) -
Proceeds from disposal of investment in Ensmile Limited - 205,000
Investment made in the share capital of subsidiary company (10,000) -
Investment made in the share capital of associated companies 6 (60,197) (222)
Investment realized / (made) in Margin Trading system through LSEFSL 17,644 (17,644)
Net investment in finance lease - rentals 343 -
Retumn received on musharikah financing 125,600 12,026
Rentals received during the year 39,024 22,781
Dividend received 50,205 -
Long term deposits paid g (2,471) (548)
Net Cash Generated from | (Used in) Investing Activities 391,875 (76,820)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Loan (repaid) / obtained from director 25 (100,000) 100,000
Long term financing obtained during the year 20 . 100,000
Repayment of long term financing 20 (26,283) (3,266)
Dividend paid during the year (87,126) -
Amounts collected from building occupants against Building reserve 18 4,089 1,298
Net Cash (Used in) | Generated from Financing Activities (209,320) 198,032
Net (Decrease) / Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (160,150) 145,290
Cash received from merging entities - 46,633
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 15 192,012 89
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 15 31,862 182,012
The annexed notes o 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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LSE CAPITAL LIMITED

1 Legal Status and its Nature of Business

14  Legal status and operations

LSE Capital Limited is the newly adopted name of the Modaraba Management Company, which was registered as J5 Finance Limited on Jan 22,
1986. The company’s name was changed to Bank Islamic Modaraba Investments Limited (BIMIL) after the acquisition of its 100% equity by Bank
Islamic Limited during November 07, 2007.

After the acquisition of BIMIL by the incoming sponsors, the company was first named AssetPlex Limited but later changed its name to LSE Capital
Limited during 2023. Later, under the Court sanctioned scheme of merger, Modaraba Al-Mali and LSE PropTech Limited were merged withfinto
LSE Capital Limited, which acquired the listing status at PSX on May 24,2024 as a consequence of its merger. The Company is licensed as a
Modaraba Management company, besides carrying the license to act as a consultant to the issue for the IPOs and corporate finance advisory
services.

The company also holds the licenses of Modaraba Management Company as well as the Consultant to the Issue. It managed the erstwhile
Modaraba Al-Mali, which was merged in LSE Capital on April 03, 2024 under sanctioned merger order of Lahore High Court no. 72878 / 2023
dated April 03, 2024.

The company's registered office is located at The Exchange Hub, LSE Plaza, 19, Khayaban-e-Aiwan-g-iqbal, Lahore.

The geographical location and address of the Company is as under:

Business Unit Geographical Location

Head office / Registered Office The Exchange Hub, LSE Plaza, 19, Khayaban-e-Aiwan-g-Igbal, Lahore.

2. Basis of Preparation
21 Statement of compliance

These financial stalements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The
accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of.

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), issued by the Intemnational Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the
Companies Act, 2017,

Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS, the provisions of and directives issued under the
Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

These financial statements provide comparative information in respect of the previous year. In addition when there is a retrospective application of
an accounting policy, a retrospective restatement, or a reclassification of items in the financial statements has been made.

22 Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention without taking into account the effects for inflation or current
values, except to the extent of following:

Note
Net investment in finance lease 8 (stated at Present value)
Certain property and equipment 4 (stated at Fair value)
Investment property T (stated at Fair value)
Financial Assels 11 (stated at Fair value and certain at amortized cost)
Trade and other receivables 12 (stated at carrying amount less impairment for
expecied credit loss)
Investment in associates ] (stated at equity method)
Inventories 10 (stated at lower of cost and net realizable value)
Certain liabilities and payables 23 (stated at amortized cost)
Deferred tax liability 22 (stated as per 1AS-12 "Income taxes”)
Provisions 233 (stated as per best estimate)
Right of use asset 5 (stated at present value of future lease payments)
Lease liability 20 (stated at present value of future lease payments)

Y8
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Presentation and functional currency
These financial statements are prepared and presented in Pak Rupees (Rs.) which is the Company's functional and presentation currency. In these
financial statements, all the figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand of Rupees, unless otherwise stated.

Use of significant accounting judgement, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting and reporting standards, as applicable in Pakistan, requires the use of certain
criical accounting estimates. It also requires the management to exercise its judgments, make estimates and assumptions in the process of
applying the company's accounting policies that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. These estimates and
related assumptions are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and various other factors including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making judgments about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.

These estimates and related assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Accounting estimates are revised in the period in which such
revisions are made. In the process of applying the company’s accounting policies, management has made the following estimates and judgments
which are significant to these financial statements:

Property and equipment

The depreciation method and useful lives of property and equipment are reviewed by the management, at each financial year-end and these
estimates are adjusted or revised if appropriate. The effect of any adjustment to useful lives and methods of these estimates are recognized
prospectively or revised as a change in accounting estimate. In making these estimates, the Company uses the technical resources available with
it. Any change in the estmates in the future might affect the carrying amount of respective item of property and equipment, with comresponding
effects on the depreciation / amortization charge and impairment, if any.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that property and equipment are impaired. If such indication exists,
the cammying amounts of such assets are reviewed to assess whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amount.

Allowance for expected credit losses

The allowance for expected credit losses assessment requires a degree of estimation and judgement. It is based on the lifetime expected credit
loss, grouped based on days overdue, and makes assumptions to allocate an overall expected credit loss rate for each group. These assumptions
include historical collection rates and forward looking information for macro economic factors i.e. interest rates, inflation rates, unemployment rates,
GOP rates efc.

Impairment of financial assets

Impairment of financial assets is assessed by reviewing their market prices and the indicators used to determine the recoverable amounts of the
financial assets. Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased
or no longer exists.

Provisions

Provisions are based on best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date, that is, the amount that the
Company would rationally pay to settie the obligation at the reporting date or to transfer it to a third party.

Stores and spares
Provision for slow moving, damaged and obsolete items and their net realizable value are based on management estimate.

Staff retirement benefits

The company considers the salary scale of each employee eligible under the provident fund scheme and its employment status on monthly basis to
ensure the adequacy of expense and related liability on account of provident fund.

Income taxes

In making the estimates for current and deferred income taxes, the management considers cumrent income tax law and the decisions of appellate
authorities on certain cases issued in the past. These estimates also include impacts of the decisions of appellate authorities about the benefits that
become recoupable upon any change in tax structure of the Company.

etad
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The assessment of the contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgment as the outcome of the future events cannot be
predicted with certainty. The Company, based on the availability of the latest information, estimates the value of contingent assets and liabilities
which may differ on the occurrence / non-occurrence of the uncertain future events.

Valuation of investments measured at FVPL

The Company has recorded its investments measured at FVPL by using quotations from Pakistan Stock Exchange. This valuation is subjective to
market price fluctuation and therefore, cannot be determined with precision.

Investment in Subsidiaries and Associates

Investment in subsidiaries are carried under cost whereas investment in associates is accounted for under equity method in accordance with the
Company’s accounting policy relating to their recognition and measurement. Provision against investments is based on impairment policy of the
Campany which includes both subjective and objective factors.

Investment Property

The assessment of fair value is subjective and is dependent on various factors including but not limited to; survey's of similar properties in the
neighborhood by the valuer, demand and market conditions, location and vicinity of the property, sale and purchase trend prevalent in the market,
inflation and growth rates etc. The effect of any changes in estimate is accounted for on a prospective basis. Further, determining adjustments for
any differences in nature, location and condition of the investment property involves significant adjustment.

However, the management believes that the change in outcome of estimates would not have a material effect on the amounts disclosed in these
financial statements.

25 MNew standards, interpretations of and amendments to published approved accounting standards
251 Standards, interpretations of and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are effective in the current year:

There are certain amendments to the published approved accounting standards that are effective in the curent year. However, these do not have
any significant impact on the Company’s operations and, therefore, have not been detailed in these financial statements.

Effective date (annual
periods beginning on or

after)
Amendments to IFRS 16 'Leases' - Amendments to clarify how a seller-lessee subsequently measures sale and January 01, 2024
leaseback transactions j
Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' - Classification of liabilities as current or non-current January 01, 2024
Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' - Non-current liabilities with covenants January 01, 2024
Amendments to IAS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows' - Supplier finance arrangements January 01, 2024
Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures’ - Supplier finance amrangements January 01, 2024

252 New accounting standards, amendments and interpretations that are not yet effective

There are certain other new and amended standards, interpretations and amendments that are mandatory for the
Company's accounting periods beginning on or after January 01, 2025 but are considered not fo be relevant or will not
have any significant effect on the Company’s operations and are, therefore, not detailed in these financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' - Amendments regarding the classification and measurement  January 01, 2026
of financial instruments

Amendments to IFRS 8 'Financial Instruments' - Amendments regarding the classification and measurement of financial ~ January 01, 2026

instruments

Amendments to IFRS 10 ‘Consolidated financial statements’ January 01, 2026
Amendments to IAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates' - Lack of Exchangeability January 01, 2025
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts January 01, 2026
IAS 7 (Statement of Cash Flows) January 01, 2026
IFRS 18 'Presentation and Disclosures in Financial Statements' January 01, 2027
IFRS 19 'Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures'. January 01, 2027
IFRS 51 'General Requirements for Disclosure of Sustainability-related Financial Information’, January 01, 2027
IFRS S2 'Climate-related Disclosures'. January 01, 2027
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« 253 In addiion to the above, the IASB has issued the following standards and interpretations which, as of June 30, 2025, have not been notified by the

Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) for local adoption. The Company will evaluate the impact of these pronouncements once
they are notified for application in Pakistan.

IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standarcs

IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements

3, Material Accounting Policy Information

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied for all
accounting periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

R

Property and equipment
Recognition and measurement

Property and equipment, except freehold land and building on freehold land, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Freehold land and building on freehold land is stated at revalued amount, being the fair value at the date of their
revaluation, less subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost of property and equipment consists of historical cost, borrowing cost pertaining to the construction and erection period and directly aftributable
costs of bringing the assets to their working condition.

Freehold land and buildings on freehold land are revalued every three to five years. Any accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is
eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset, and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. Additions,
subsequent to revaluation, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any identified impairment loss.

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of land and buildings on freehold land is recognized in other comprehensive income and
presented as a separate component of equity as "Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment”, except to the extent that it reverses a
revaluation decrease for the same asset previously recognized in profit or loss, in which case the increase is credited to profit or loss to the extent
of the decrease previously charged. Any decrease in carrying amount arising on the revaluation of land and building on freehold land is charged to
statement of profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, held in the surplus on revaluation of property and equipment relating to a
previous revaluation of that asset.

Each year, the incremental depreciation and its related deferred taxation, the difference between depreciation based on revalued carrying amount
of the asset and depreciation based on the asset's original cost, is transferred from surplus on revaluation of property and equipment to retained
eamings. All transfers from surplus on revaluation of property and equipment are net of applicable deferred taxation. Upon disposal, any
revaluation surplus relating to the particular asset being sold is transferred to retained eamings.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other day io day
maintenance and normal repairs are charged to statement of profit or loss as and when incurred. Gains or losses on disposal of property and
equipment are included in profit or loss.

Depreciation

Depreciation on property and equipment, except land, is charged to statement of profit or loss on the reducing balance method so as o write off the
depreciable amount of an asset over its economic useful life using the annual rates mentioned in note 5.1. Depreciation on additions is charged
from the month in which the asset is available for use, whereas no depreciation is charged on assets disposed off during the month.

Impairment

Where camrying amounts exceed the respective recoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverabie amounts and the impairment loss
is recognized in the statement of profit or loss. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less cost to sell and value in use.
Where an impairment loss is recognized, the depreciation charge is adjusted in future years 1o allocate the asset's revised carrying amount over its
estimated useful life.
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Disposal

An item of property and equipment is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use. Disposal of an
asset is recognized when significant risk and rewards, incidental to the ownership of an asset, have been transferred to the buyer. The gain or loss
on disposal or retirement of property and equipment is represented by the difference between the sale proceeds and the camying amount of the
property and equipment and is recognized as an income or expense in the year of disposal in statement of profit or loss. In case of sale or
retirement of a revalued property, the attributable revaluation surplus remaining in the surplus on revaluation is transferred directly to retained

gamings.

Capital work in progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less any identified impairment loss. All expenditure connected with specific assets incurred during
installation and construction period are carried under capital work in progress. Cost may also include borrowing costs, if any. These are transferred
to operating fixed assets as and when these are available for use.

Investment property

Investment Property is property held either to eam rental income or for capital appreciation or for both, but not for sale in ordinary course of
business, use in production or supply of goods or services as for administrative purpose.

The Company's investment property comprises of land and building which is carried at fair value less identified impairment loss, if any.

An investment property is initially recognized at cost which is the fair value of the consideration paid. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
property whose fair value can be measured reliably without undue cost or effort on an ongoing basis is measured at fair value, at each reporting
date. The changes in fair value are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. Any other investment property (whose fair value cannot be
measured reliably without undue cost or effort) is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment loss.

The fair value of investment property after initial recognition / transfer is determined at the end of each year using current market prices for
comparable real estate, adjusted for any differences in nature, location and condition. The fair value of investment property is determined by an
independent and professional valuer on the basis of professional assessment of the market values as disclosed in Note 7.1 of these financial
statements.

An investment property is derecognized on disposal or when its nature of substance is changed i.e. it becomes owner occupied property and
transferred to operating fixed assets or when no future economic benefits are expected from its sale. The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of
investment property represented by the difference between the sale proceeds and its camying amount is recognized as an income or expense in
the statement of profit or loss.

Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

All financial assets are recognized at the time when the Company becomes a party fo the contractual provisions of the instrument. Regular
purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized and derecognized, as applicable, using trade-date accounting or seftiement date
accounting. All purchases and sales of investments are recognized on the trade date which is the date that the Company commits to purchase or
sell the investment.

Classification

Financial assets are classified in either of the three categories: at amorfized cost, at fair value through other comprehensive income and at fair
value through profit or loss. Currently, the Company classifies its financial assets at amortized cost and fair value through profit or loss. This
classification is based on the Company's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
financial asset. The management determines the classification of its financial assets at the time of initial recognition.

Amortized cost

Assels that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortized cost. Interest income from these financial assets, impairment losses, foreign exchange gains and losses, and gain or loss

arising on derecognition are recognized directly in profit or loss.
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Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling f financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through other
comprehensive income, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses, which are
recognized in profit or loss.

Fair value through profit or loss (FVPL)

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive income or assets that are designated at fair value
through profit or loss using fair value option, are measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on debt investment that is subsequently
measured at fair value through profit or loss is recognized in profit or loss in the period in which it arises. Equity instrument financial assets are
measured at fair value at and subsequent to initial recognition. Changes in fair value of these financial assets are normally recognized in profit or
loss. Dividends from such investments continue to be recognized in profit or loss when the Company’s right to receive payment is established.
Where an election is made to present fair value gains and losses on equity instruments in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following the derecognition of the investment.

Initial recognition and measurement

Except for trade receivables, financial assets are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair
value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value and fransaction costs are
expensed in the profit and loss. Trade receivables are initially measured at the transaction price if these do not contain a significant financing
component in accordance with IFRS 15.

Subsequent measuremeant

Financial assels carried at amortized cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest method. The amortized cost is reduced by
impairment losses, if any. Interest income from the financial assets, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment losses are recognized in
the statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently measured at fair value prevailing at the reporting date. The
difference in fair value and dividends arising on equity instruments are charged to the statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are marked to market using the closing market rates and are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value. Net gains and losses arising on changes in fair values of these financial assets are recognized in other
comprehensive income. Interest calculated using the effective interest rate method is credited to the statement of profit or loss. Dividends on equity
instruments are credited to the statement of profit or loss when the Company's right to receive payments is established.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognized when:
- the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired; or

-themmnrhmmslenedilsrighlstumcehremshnnmﬁammeassetnrhasmumadmuhligﬂiontnpa-,rmammiwdcas’nﬂmin full
without material delay io a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arangement; and either:

a) the Company has fransferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or
b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

The difference between the carrying amount and the consideration received is recognized in statement of profit or loss for all the financial assets
carried at amortized cost, FVPL and FVOCI. In case of financial assets carried at FVOCI cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is
reclassified to profit or loss, except for equity instruments which are recycled to retained earnings from fair value reserve within equity.

If the Company transfers a financial asset in a transfer that qualifies for derecognition in its entirety and retains the right to service the financial
asset for a fee, it recognizes either a servicing asset or a servicing liability for that servicing contract.
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When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if,
and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and
rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognize the transferred asset to the extent of its continuing
involvement. In that case, the Company also recognizes an associated liability which cannot be offset with the related asset. The transferred asset
and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transfered asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the
asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

If the Company's continuing involvement is in only a part of a financial asset, the Company allocales the previous carrying amount of the financial
asset between the part it continues to recognize under continuing involvement, and the part it no longer recognizes on the basis of the relative fair
values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognized and
the consideration received for the part no longer recognized is recognized in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognizes an allowance for expecied credit losses (ECLs) for all financial assets which are measured at amortized cost. The
Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its financial assels. ECLs are based on the difference
between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the confract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive, discounted at
an approximation of the original effective interest rate,

ECLs are recognized in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are possible within the next 12-months {a 12-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, imespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

For trade receivables, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Company does not track changes in credit
risk, but instead recognizes a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Company has established a provision matrix that
is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

Individually significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. The remaining financial assets are assessed collectively in
groups that share similar credit risk characteristics.

The Company recognizes in profit or loss, as an impairment loss (or reversal of impairment), the amount of expected credit losses (or reversal of
impairment) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Reclassification

When the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets, it reclassifies all affected financial assets accordingly. The
Company applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date.

In case of reclassification out of the amortized cost measurement category to fair value through profit or loss measurement category, fair value of
the financial asset is measured at the reclassification date. Any gain or loss arising from a difference between the previous amortized cost and fair
value is recognized in profit or loss.

In case of reclassification out of fair value through profit or loss measurement category to the amortized cost measurement category, fair value of
the financial asset at the reclassification date becomes its new gross carrying amount.

In case of reclassification out of fair value through other comprehensive income measurement category to the amortized cost measurement
category, the financial asset is reclassified at its fair value at the reclassification date. However, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in
other comprehensive income is removed from equity and adjusted against the fair value of the financial asset at the reclassification date. The
effective interest rate and the measurement of expected credit losses are not adjusted as a result of the reclassification.

In case of reclassification out of fair value through profit or loss measurement category to the fair value through other comprehensive income
measurement category, the financial asset continues to be measured at fair value.
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Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument and include trade
and other payables, loans or borrowings and accrued mark up elc.

The Company does not reclassify any of its financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at amortized cost are initially measured at fair value less transaction costs. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
are initially recognized at fair value and transaction costs are expensed in profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement

The Company measures its financial liabilities subsequently at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit or loss. Difference between camying amount and consideration paid is
recognized in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired. Where an existing financial liability
is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in respective
of carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss. The difference between the camying amount of a financial liability extinguished
or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabiities assumed, is recognized in
statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and net amount is reported in the financial statements only when there is a legally enforceable right to set
off the recognized amount and the Company intends either to settle on a net basis o to realize the assets and setfle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventory

Inventory represents usable stores and spares and are valued principally on First in First Qut Basis (FIFO) at lower of cost and net realizable value
except for items In transit, while items considered obsolete, if any, are carried at nil value. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice
value plus other charges paid thereon.

Net realizable value signifies the selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs necessary o be incurred in order to make the
sale.

Spare parts of capital nature which can be used only in connection with an item of property and equipment are shown separately as capital spares
and are carried at cost less accumulated impairment, if any.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables represent the Company’s right and are initially recognized at an amount of consideration that is unconditional unless
they contain significant financing component in which case they are recognized at fair value. The Company holds the trade debts with the objective
of collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore measures the trade debts subsequently at amortized cost using the effective interest rate
method. Deduction, if any, is made for doubtful receivables based on expected credit losses model. Bad debts are written off when identified.
Provision for loss allowance on doubtful debts is charged to statement of profit or loss.

Provisions

A provision is recognized in the statement of financial position when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a
past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Provisions
are not recognized for future operating losses.

Taxation - Levv and Income Tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognized in the statement of profit or loss except to the extent that relates to items
recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income, in which case it is recognized in equity or other comprehensive income.
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Levy

In accordance with the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, computation cof final taxes is not based on taxable income. Therefore, as per IAS 12
Application Guidance on Accounting for Minimum Taxes and Final Taxes issued by the ICAP, these fall within the scope of IFRIC 21 / |AS 37 and
accordingly have been classified as levy in these financial statements, except for taxes on dividends on the Company's investments in subsidiaries
and associates which are specifically within the scope of IAS 12 and hence these continue to be categorized as current income fax.

Current

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting date.

The charge for current tax is higher of corporate tax (higher of tax based on taxable income and minimum tax) and altemative corporate tax.
However, in case of loss for the year, income tax expense is recognized as minimum tax liability on tumover of the Company in accordance with
the provisions of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Super tax, if applicable, on the Company is calculated as per applicable fax rates as per Income
Tax Ordinance, 2001.

Corporate tax is based on taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the prevailing laws of taxation. The charge for current tax is
calculated using prevailing tax rates or tax rates expected to apply to the profit for the year if enacted after taking into account tax credits, rebates
and exemptions, if any. The charge for curent tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for tax made in previous
years arising from assessments framed during the year for such years.

Alternative corporate tax is calculated at 17% of accounting profit, after taking into account the required adjustments.

Current tax for current and prior year, to the extent unpaid, is recognized as a liability. If the amount already paid in respect of current and prior
periods exceeds the amount due for those periods, the excess is recognized as an asset.

The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities if, and only if, it has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts
and intends either to settie on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax retums with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject
to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.
Deferred

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of all temporary timing differences arising from the difference
between the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. However, deferred tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of transaction neither affects accounting nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all major taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are recognized for all major deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at each reperting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent of probable future taxable profit available
that will allow deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at rates that are expected to apply to the year when the differences reverse based on the tax rates and tax laws that have
been enacted or have been notified for subsequent enactment by the reporting date.

When different tax rates apply to different levels of taxable income, deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the average rates that are
expected to apply to the taxable profit (tax loss) of the periods in which temporary differences are expected to reverse.
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The Company offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and
current tax liabilities and the defierred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate fo income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the
same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or o realize the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered,

Investments in subsidiary and associates

Investments in subsidiaries and associates where the Company has control / significant influence are measured at cost less impairment, if any, in
the Company's separate financial statements and subsequently under equity method in case of investment in associates. At each reporting date,
the recoverable amounts of investments are estimated to determine the extent of impairment losses, if any, and carrying amounts of investments
are adjusted accordingly. Impairment losses are recognized as expense in the statement of profit or loss.

Investments in subsidiaries and associates that have suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of impairment at each reporting
date. Where impairment losses are subsequently reversed, the camying amounts of the investments are increased to the revised recoverable
amounis but limited to the extent of initial cost of investments.

The Company is required to issue consolidated financial statements along with its separate financial statements, in accordance with the
requirements of IAS 27, 'Separate Financial Statements'.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost. For the purpose of the statement of cash fiows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand,
cash at banks in saving accounts which are free of encumbrances and book overdrawn balances, if any.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. The
amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within short period. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is
not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognized initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest mathod.

Contract liabilities | advance from customers
A contract liability is recognized if a payment is received from a customer before the Company transfers the related goods. Contract liabilities are
recognized as revenue when the Company transfers control of the related goods to the customer.

Staff retirement benefits

The Company cperates recognized provident fund scheme coverng all its permanent employees. The employees become eligible under the
scheme if they successfully receive confirmation about their permanent employment status which is usually after two to three months from the first
day of their joining. Equal contributions @ 10% per month are made both by the Company and employees to the fund.

Continaent liabilities
A contingent liability is cisclosed when there is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurence or non occumence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company.

A contingent liability is also disclosed when there is present obligation that arises from past events but it is not probable that an outfiow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settie the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability at the measurement date in an orderly transaction
between market participants in the principal, or in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the Company has access at that date.
There are three levels which are as under:
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Level 1
The Company measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an active market for that insirument. A market is regarded as

active if transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

Level 2
When there is no quoted price in an active market, the Company determines transaction price by applying valuation techniques. The chosen

valuation technique incorporates all the factors that market participants would take into account in pricing a transaction. The best evidence of the
fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is normally the transaction price i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received.

Level 3

If the Company determines that the fair value at initial recognition differs from the transaction price and the fair value is evidenced neither by a
quoted price in an active market for an identical asset o liability nor based on a valuation technique that uses only data from observable markets,
the instrument is initially measured at fair value, adjusted to defer the difference between the fair value at initial recognition and the transaction
price. Subsequently, that difference is credited or charged to the statement of profit or loss on an appropriate basis over the life: of the instrument
but no later than when the valuation is supported wholly by observable market data or the transaction is closed out.

The Company's policy is to recognize transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change in
circumstances that caused the transfer.

315 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to depreciation or amortization are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset's cammying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses on fixed assets that offset available revaluation surplus are charged against this surplus, all other
impairment losses are charged to profit or loss. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Prior impairments of non-financial assets are reviewed for possible reversal at each reporting date. Where impairment loss is
recognized, the depreciation / amortization charge is adjusted in future year to allocate the asset's revised carrying amount, less its residual value,
over its remaining useful life. Any reversal of impairment loss of a revalued asset shall be treated as a revaluation increase.

316 Revenue recognition
Revenue is recoanized in accordance by applying the following steps:

i} identifying contract with a customer

ii} Identifying performance obligation in the contract

iii) Determining transaction price of the contract

iv) Allocating transaction price to each of the separate performance obligations in the contract
v) Recognizing the revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation

The Company recoanizes revenue as follows:
Room maintenance services | Software services

Revenue is recognized when the Company has a right to invoice. Customers are invoiced on a monthly basis and consideration is payable within
10 days from the invoice date.

Finance lease

The Company follows the ‘financing method' in accounting for recognition of finance lease. The total uneamed finance income Le. the excess of
minimum lease payments over the cost of the leased asset is deferred and then amortized over the term of the lease, so as to produce a systematic
retum on the net investment in finance leases.

Return on MTS investments and fixed income securities

Retumn on MTS investments and fixed income securities is recognized on a time proportionate basis over the term of the investments that takes into
account the EIR method.

Rental income
Rental income from investment property is recognized in profit or loss on a siraight-line basis over the lease term,
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i:lhridund income
Dividend income is recognized in the statement of profit or loss on accrual basis in case of cumulative preference shares and at the time dividend is
declared in case of ordinary shares.

Operating Segments

Segment reporting is based on the operating (business) segments of the Company. An operating segment is a component of the Company that
engages in business activities from which it may eam revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to the
transactions with any of the Company's other components, Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the intemal reporting
provided to the chief operating decision maker. The Chief Executive Officer has been identified as the chief operating decision-maker that made
sirategic decisions and who is also responsible for allocating resources to the operating segments, assessing their performance and whose results
are regularly reviewed by it based on the discrete financial information of each segment.

Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis.
Segment assets, consist primarily of investment property, trade and other receivables, investments in financial assets at FVPL, investment in
associates, net investment in finance lease. Segment liabilities comprise of trade and other payables and exclude items that are common fo all
operating segments.

Transactions among the business segments are recorded at amm's length prices using admissible valuation methods. Inter segment transfers are
eliminated from the total, if any.

The management has determined that the Company has two major reporting segments; Income from investment in strategic portfolios and rental &
related income eamned from the leased building owned by the company, that reflect the management structure of the company.

Related party transactions

Related parties comprise the parent Company, associated companies / undertakings, directors of the Company and their close relatives and key
management personnel of the Company. Transactions in relation to revenue, purchases and services with related parties are made at arm's length
prices determined in accordance with the Company’s policy except for the allocation of expenses such as utiliies, rental and common overheads
shared with related parties, which are on actual basis.

Transactions with related parties are based on the transfer pricing policy that all fransactions between the Company and its related parties are at
arm'’s length prices using the comparable uncontrolled price method except in circumstances where it is in the interest of the Company to not to do
s0.

Dividend distributions

Dividends to shareholders of the Company and appropriations other than statutory appropriations are recognized as a liability in the year in which
these are approved.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital represents the face value of shares that have been issued. Any transaction costs associated
with the issuance of shares are deducted from share capital, net of any related income tax benefits, if any. Retained eamings include all current
and prior period profits.

Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted eamings per share (EPS). Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss, as the case may be,
attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted
EPS is determined by adjusting the profit attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for
the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, if any. The Company does not account for the effect of potential ordinary shares while calculating
dilutive loss per share in accordance with the requirements of the IAS 33 'Eamings per Share'.

Comprehensive income

Comprehensive income is the change in equity resulting from transactions and other events, other than changes resulting from transactions with
shareholders in their capacity as shareholders. Total comprehensive income comprises all components of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. Other comprehensive income comprises items of income and expense, including reclassification adjustments, that are not recognized in
profit or loss as required or permitted by approved accounting standards.
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2025 2024
Property and Equipment Note Rs. in 000s
Operaling fixed assets 41 1,316,169 1,314,734
Capital work in progress - civil work 432 6,824 6,658
1,322993 1321302
Operating Fixed Assets
Cost | Revalued Amount pracialion ‘Wiritten Down
Particulars Balance as at July Revaluation | Revaluation Balance as at Balance as at July| Charge for Revaluation | Balance asat |Value as at June
01, 2024 Addlions | curpius | Adjustment | DP°%® | junem.ozs | R | 0,20m theyear | DPPOS | copies | June30,2025 | 30,2025
‘Rs. in 000s % ‘Rs. in 000s
Owned assets
Land freehold 1,111,508 1111508 - - - 1,111,508
Buildings on freehold land 134 982 - - 134,962 5% - 6,749 - 6,748 128,233
Computer and accessones 30,580 1,036 (12,384) 19232 0% 26,163 1450  (12,066) 15,547 3,685
Furniture and fixture 17,636 625 (1,019) 17,242 10% 10,126 774 (959) 9,541 7.3
Office equipment 6,633 188 (5,327) 148 20% 6,406 66 (5.326) 1,146 348
Electric fittings and appliances 138,776 2,785 (3,689) 137872 20% 102,174 7499 (3,642) 106,031 31,841
Vehicles 4497 17.112 (497) 17112 20% 352 476 (457) amn 16,241
Elevator 19,969 - - 19969 20% 16,198 754 - 16,952 307
Generalors 34,206 (&) 200 10% 22 064 1,214 (5) 23273 10,927
Arms and security equipment 6,715 (405) 6310 10% 3,285 M3 {386) 3242 3,068
Library books 318 (318) 25% 318 . (318) . .
Leasehold improvements 5,657 . {5,657) - 0% 56497 . {5,697 * -
Total 1,507 517 21,746 (29,342) 1,499,821 192,783 19,825 (28,856) 183,752 1,316,160
Cost / Revalued Amournt Accumulated Depreciation Vit Domnt
Particulars P Revaluaion | Revaation Baance as al June Addion under | e for Revaluation | Balanceasat | Value asat June
Hun:autm Additions Dispasals 30, 2024 Mesger as at April e yaar Disposals June 30, 2024 0, 2024
03.2024 . — 03,2004 .
'Rs. in 000s % ‘Rs. in 000s
Owned assets
Land freehold 1,059,660 - 51,848 . 1111508 - - - - 1,111,508
Buildings on freehold land 127 632 - 33,767 (26,417) 134982 5% 25,085 1332 (26.417) 134 982
Computer and accessones 30,036 544 - . 30580 0% 25 681 482 - 26,163 4417
Furniture and fodure 17 636 - 17636 10% 9,878 248 10,126 7,510
Office equipment 6,633 6633 20% 6,386 20 6.406 /I
Electric fittings and appliances 138,776 - - 138776 20% 89,885 2,289 - 102,174 36,602
Vehicles 45913 8,234 (53,650) 497  20% 14,359 360 (14,367) 352 145
Elevator 19,969 - - 19968 20% 15,875 33 . 16,198 3mM
Generators 34,206 M6 10% 21728 336 - - 22064 12142
Arms and security equipment 6,715 6715 10% 3191 o4 . - 3,285 3430
Library baoks 318 . M8 25% n7 1 . . 318 .
Leasehold improvements 5697 - - - - 5697 20% 5,697 - - - 5,697 -
Total 1,493,191 8,778 85615 (26.417)  (53.650) 1,507,517 228082 5485 (14367} (26417 192,783 1,314,734
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4.1.2 During the year, fully depreciated assets included in the Property and Equipment having cost amounting fo Rs. 28,172 million and carrying amount of Rs. 0.156 million have been written off (Note 29).

The particulars of operating fixed assels disposed off during the year are as follows:

Loss on
Carrying é Particulars of Mode of
Particulars Cost nt Sale price ﬁm the t disposal Relationship with the purchaser
'Rs. in 000s

Computer and accessories

Laptop HP Elite book 13 4 24 Mr. Ghulam Mustafa As per Company's poficy  Employes
Laptop HP Probook 290 173 173 . Ghulam Mustafa As per Company's policy  Employes
Apple I-PAD Mini 50 2 2 Wr. Ghulam Mustafa As per Company's policy Employes
Laptop HP Pavilion 210 1] %0 Miss Fiza As per Company's policy Employee

673 289 269

Vehicles

Honda CD 70 LEN - 8459 T & . Mr. Muhammad Wagas As per Company's policy  Employee
Honda CD 70 LEV - 3752 69 4 4 Mr. Azhar Ashral As per Company's policy  Employes
Honda CD 70 LEX - 3756 73 B 8 Mr. Muhammad Abid As per Company's policy  Employee
Honda CD 70 LEN - 3432 m fi 6 Mr. Madeem As per Company's policy  Employee
Honda CD 70 LEO - 2781 72 B B Mr. Muhammad Zaheer As per Company's policy  Employee
Honda CD 70 LEO - 2783 72 ] (i Mr. Zia Likah As per Company's poiicy  Employee
Honda CD 70 LEV - 3748 69 4 4 Mr. asir As per Company's policy  Employee

497 39 39
June 30, 2025 1,170 328 3z -
June 30, 2024 53,650 39,234 38,488 (746)
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Measurement of fair values

The Company obtains an independent valuation for its freehold land and building (classified as property and equipment) every
three to five years. The valuation is conducted by an independent valuer who s approved by Pakistan Banks' Association
(PBA). Latest revaluation was carried out on June 30, 2024,

Valuation techniques
Freehold land

The valuer determined the fair value of freehold land based on the market comparable approach that reflects transaction prices
for similar properties in the area. The key observable inputs under this approach are the price per square feet from current
year sales of comparable lots of land in the area (location and size). Different valuation methods and exercises were adopted
according to experience, location and other usage of freehold land. Valuer had also considered other relevant factors as well,

Building on freehold land

The valuer used a cost approach (i.e. current replacement values) for building on freehold land to arive at the fair value.
Construction specifications were noted for each building and structure and new construction rates were applied according to
construction specifications for current replacement values. After determining current replacement values, depreciation was
calculated to determine the current assessed market value.

The effect of changes in the observable inputs used in the valuations cannot be determined with certainty, consequently, a
gualitative disclosure of sensitivity has not been presented in these financial statements.

Particulars of immovable property (i.e. land and building) in the name of Company are as follows:

Usage of
Location / Address | immovable Total Area (g, ft. Covered Area (Sq. ft.)
property
19 Khayaban-&- N North Tower: 97,828 Saft
Aiwan-e-igbal, i 44,213 South Tower : 50,132 Saft
Lahore, Pakistan. L g

Had the revaluation of these assets not been made, the carrying value of these assets as at the reporting date would have been
as under;

2025 2024
Rs.in000s
Freehold land 1,059,660 1,059,660
Building on freehold land 96,154 101,215
155,814 1,160,875

Forced sale value and assessed value of these fixed assets as at the date of revaluation (j.e. June 30, 2024) was as under:

Forced sale Assessed sale

value vale
Rs. in 000s
Freehold land 944,782 1,111,508
Building on freehold land 235,425 276,970
1.1ll:l|2l.'l? 1,388,478




41.7 On April 07, 1987 Lahore Stock Exchange (Guarantee) Limited ("LSE") purchased land measuring 8 kanals and 2 marlas from
Lahore Development Authority (LDA). LSE obtained the possession of the land via LDA allotment letter dated June 04, 1987.
On August 25, 2015, Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (‘the Commission) via letter having refer #
SMDVSE/2/(57)2002 directed demutualization of the stock exchanges in the country. Consequent to the approved scheme of
integration of stock exchanges, LSE was granted Investment Finance Services (‘IFS’) license by the Commission on January
11, 2016 to operate as an IFS Non-Banking Finance Company ("NBFC’) company under the name LSE Financial Services
Limited ("LSEFSL").
On April 26, 2023, a scheme of arrangement was formulated and approved by the Honourable Lahore High Court under order
no. 58175/2022 in which the business of LSEFSL was partially transferred to LSE Proptech Limited including the transfer of
land and building of LSEFSL to LSE Proptech Limited.
As at the reporting, the legal title of the land is in the name of Lahore Stock Exchange (Guarantee) Limited; however, the land
and buildings are in the possession of LSE Proptech Limited.
On April 03, 2024, LSE Proptech Limited has be merged into LSE Capital Limited as per the scheme of arrangement approved
by Honourable Lahore High Court under order no. 78278/2023. The title of the land and building in possession of LSE Proptech
Limited is ultimately transferred in the name of LSE Capital Limited.
418  The land and building is under the mortage of Cordoba Leasing Limited as security for long term finance facility obtained as
disclosed in the Note 20.2 of these financial statements.
4.2 Capital Work in Progress - civil work 2025 2024
Note Rupees in 000s
The reconciliation of carrying amount is as follows:
Balance as at July 01, 6,658 -
Transferred under merger scheme - 22,260
Addition during the year 166 175
Written off 18 - (15,777)
Balance as at June 30, 682 6,658
This represents the expenditure incurred on the structural designs and other costs for
the construction of 5th floor on south tower and Mezzanine floor in LSE Plaza.
5 Right of Use Asset
Cost
Balance as at July 01, 59,114 -
Transferred from fixed assets . 35,988
Addition during the year 21.2 . 28,110
Disposal during the year - (4,984)
Balance as at June 30, 59,114 59,114
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as at July 01, 1,985 -
Depreciation charged during the year 29 11,425 2,085
Disposal during the year - (100)
Balance as at June 30, 13,410 1,985
Written down value as at June 30, 45,704 3 57,129
Depreciation rate (%) per annum 20% 20%
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51 This represents the contract entered into with Messrs. Cordoba Leasing Limited for the sale and lease back of 16 vehicles (10
vehicles owned by the company and six owned by its directors and other employees) at a consideration of Rs. 70 million with a
lease term of 3 years. The lease will expire on April 18, 2027.
5.2 The particulars of right of use asset disposed off during the year are as follows:
Particulars Cost Carrying amount Sale price mmﬁ::; 1A
zm . == - — . _; =E'
2024 Vehicles 4984 4,885 _7.800 2915
2025 2024
Investment in Related Parties Note Rs. in 000s
Investment in wholly owned subsidiary - at cost
LSE SPAC-I Limited - un quoted
1,000,000 fully paid ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 6.1 10,000
Investment in associated companies - at equity method
Digital Custodian Company Limited - unquoted 6.3 258,971 172,087
LSE Ventures Limited - quoted 6.4 806,539 723,937
1,065,510 896,024

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

\ow’

1075510 896,024

This represents 100% investment in the ordinary shares of LSE SPAC-I Limited, a public unlisted company incorporated on
March 09, 2025. It's registered office is situated at The Exchange Hub, LSE Plaza, 19, Khayaban-e-Aiwan-e-Iqbal, Lahore.
During the year, the Company incorporated its wholly owned subsidiary on March 08, 2025, under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2017, and fully subscribed all the issued shares of the subsidiary.

The principal business of the Company is raise funds from investors and utilize those funds for merger and acquisition of
company/ companies within the permitted time frame, as per the Public Offering Regulations, 2017.

The subsidiary is accounted for using cost method in these financial statements and the impairment loss s not recognized as
the subsidiary has not yet commenced its commercial aperations. Accordingly, no impairment loss has been recognized on the
investment. Management will continue to assess the investment periodically for any indication of impairment in future periods.

These companies are locally incorporated, with their country of incorporation / registration serving as their principal place of
business. The Company has significant influence on associates through significant shareholding to its representation on the
Board of Directors of investees and consequently investments have been treated as associales in accordance with
requirements of IAS 28 'Investment in Associates'. Digital Custodian Company Limited (DCCL) is an unlisted public company
hence its published price quotes are not available. The shares of LSE Ventures Limited (LSEVL) are listed on Pakistan Stock
Exchange and its published price quotes is Rs. 5.75 per share. The shares of all the associated companies have a face value of
Rs. 10 each.

DCCL was incorporated on February 12,1992 under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984. The Company converted its
status from private limited company to unlisted public company on June 19, 2009. The principal objective of DCCL is to act as
trustee of investment trust schemes, voluntary pension schemes and real estate investment trust schemes to provide custodian
service and o act as transfer agent / share registrar of securities of listed and unlisted companies and mutual funds etc.

LSE Ventures Limited (the Company) was registered on July 18, 2022 under the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) as a
public unlisted company limited by shares. In June 2023, the Company obtained the listing status under the symbol "LSEVL" at
Pakistan Stock Exchange as a result of demerger scheme approved on April 26, 2023 by the Honourable Lahore High Court,
accomplished through a reverse merger with Data Textiles Limited.




6.5

6.6

Reconciliation of changes in carrying value / fair value of investments in associates:

Balance as at July 01, 2024
Further investment made during there year

Share of post tax income for the year
- through profit or loss
- through other comprehensive income

Gain on bargain purchase

Less: Dividend received during the year
Balance as at June 30, 2025

Number of shares held

Shareholding in %age

Balance as at July 01, 2023
Acquired under merger scheme as at April 03, 2024

Further investment made during there year

Share of post tax income for the year
- through profit or loss
- through other comprehensive income

Balance as at June 30, 2025
Number of shares held

Shareholding in %age

Note

32

32

32

2025
DcCL | LSEVL |  Total
Rs. in 000s
172,087 723,937 896.024
38,500 21,697 60,197
1753 55,868 57,621
1,172 50,202 51,374
45,459 3,007 48,466
g (48,172) (48,172)
258,971 806,539 1,065,510
22215728 49,883,397
42.50% 27.78%
2024
pccL | LSEL | Total
Rs. in 000s
135,812 - 135,812
12,926 689,796 702,722
22 222
21,644 11,832 33,476
1,705 22,087 23,792
172,087 723,937 896,024

14,897,248 48,171,586

28.50% 26.82%

The summarized financial information in respect of associates is set out below. The summarized financial information
represents the amounts as shown in the associate's latest available audited financial statements for the year ended June 30,

2025.

Extracts of Statement of Financial Position
Current assels

Non-current assets

Current liabilities

Mon-current liabilities

Met assets of the associate

[ pect. || ismmr
USSR - P Y1 p—

39,132 312,500

631,662 2,960,781

(47,982) (173,739)

(15,974) (445,934)

606838 2,653,608
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LSEVL |

Extracts of the statement of profit or loss and comprehensive income

ernrsnnassss R§, i1 0008 ==eeree

Revenue 127,342 466,265
Profit after tax 3,956 206,398
QOther comprehensive income 2,757 184 656
Total comprehensive income 6,713 391,054
Reconciliation of the above summarized financial information to the carrying amaount of
the interest in the associates recognized in these financial statements is as follows:
Net assets of the associate 606,838 2,653,608
Proportion of the Company's ownership interest 42.50% 27.78%
Company portion of net assets of the Associate 257,933 737,041
Goodwill arisen on acquisition of shares 1,038 69,498
258,971 8066539
Cost of Investment 185,500 488,189

6.7 The investment in subsidiary and associated companies and undertakings have been made in accordance with the requirement
under Companies Act, 2017.
2025 2024

Investment Property - At Fair Value Note Rs. in 000s
Balance as on July 01, 392122 -
Transfer under merger scheme - 378431
Gain on revaluation H 64,154 13,691
Balance as at June 30, - 456,276 392,122

T4 The fair value of investment property is determined at the end of each year by independent suitably qualified valuer. The fair

1.2

value of the investment property as at May 02, 2025 was performed by Ms Unicom Intemational Surveyors, who are
independent valuers not related to the Company.

There are no level 1 and level 3 assets or any transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

The fair value was determined based on the market comparable approach that reflects recent transaction prices for similar
properties/capitalization of net income method, where the market rentals of all lettable units of the properties are assessed by
reference to the rentals achieved in the lettable units as well as other lettings of similar properties in the neighborhood. The
capitalization rate adopted is made by reference to the yield rates observed by the valuers for similar properties in the locality
and adjusted based on the valuers' knowledge of the factors specific to the respective properties.

There has been no change to the valuation technique during the year. In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest
and best use cf the properties is their current use.

Property Type Location Area '"d;ru":"m Fair Value Forced Sale Value
Rs. in 000s
Buiking on freehold 27097 - Loicn
Lahore feat International
land square e 456,276 37,83
—

The land and building is under the mortage of Cordoba Leasing Limited as security for long term finance facility obtained as
disclosed in the Note 20.2 of these financial statements.
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Met Investment in Finance Lease

Balance as at July 01,

Transfer under merger scheme

Add: Finance income for the year
Less: Rental received during the year
Balance as at June 30,

8.1 The following table sets out a maturity analysis of lease payments,
showing the undiscounted lease payments to be received after the
reporting date.

Upto one year
Two to five years
Above five years

Less: Discounting
Closing balance

B.2 The Company has entered into lease arrangements for lease of office
spaces i.e. 106,199 square feet in North and South Towers for a lease
period of upto 99 years. Interest rate implicit @ 8% in the lease is used
as a discount factor to determine the present value of minimum lease
payments.

Long Term Deposits

Deposit against ;
- Central Depository Company Limited
- Utilities
- Others

9.1 This amount has been deposited with Central Depository Company
Limited against share registrar services. Central Depository Company
Limited is an associate of LSE Ventures Limited, an associate of the

company.

Inventories
Consumable store items

Financial Assets

At fair value through profit and loss
Investment in Equity Securities

- Listed securities

- Unlisted securities - Ensmile limited

amortized cost
Investment in Margin Trading System of NCCPL
Musharikah Financing (secured) - under islamic mode
Advance for purchase of shares - unsecured and considered good

€5 lad

8.1

9.1

1.1
1.2

113
114
1.5

2025 2024
Rs. in 000s
4275 -
. 4,189
342 86
(343) -
4274 _ 4,275
343 343
1,374 1,374
20,607 20,950
22,324 22 B&T
(18,050) (18,392)
4,274 4215
75 75
2,567 420
7 53
719 548
2,442 2411
71,627 142,403
- 180,000
71,627 322,403
. 17,644
350,000 300,000
60,000 -
410,000 317,644

481,627 640,047




1.4

11.2

113

114

o

Breakup of investment in listed equity securities is as under:

2025
Ownership Cost/ Market

Scrip Symbaol % Qty shits Cost Rate Fair Value

Rs. Rs. in 000s Rs. Rs. in 000s
Bank Islami Pakistan Limited BIPL 0.023% 260,000 30.36 7,885 3582 9313
ECOPACK Limited ECOP 0.439% 212,000 B7.96 18,548 8617 14,060
Invest Capital Investment Bank Limited ~ ICIBL 0421% 1,200,000 682 B.185 1027 12,324
MACPAC Films Limited MACFL 0.481% 285,000 2708 71 48,38 14,074
TATA Textile Mills Limited TATM 0.004% 2,500 105.25 63 120.71 3
(hani Chemicals Industries Limited GCIL 0.056% 320,000 ikl 1,166 2486 7,955
Blue Ex Limited (GEM) GEMBLUEX 0.70%% 194,500 65.00 12543 B1.81 12,022
Ghani Chemworld Limited GCWL 0.064% 160,000 . . 872 1,555
62511 71,627

2024
i Ownership Cost/ Market

Scrip Symbol " Qty e Cost flate Fair Value

Rs. Rs. in 000 Rs. Rs. in 000s
Ghani Chemicals Industries Limited GCIL 2193% 12,500,749 15,00 187 45 103 137,983
Blue Ex Limited GEMBLUEX 0.977% 267,895 65.00 17413 16.50 4420
205,059 142,403

During the year, the Company had disposed of 2,525,000 equity shares of Ensmile Limited, representing 16.67% ownership
interest in the investee. The shares were sold to the original sponsors of the investee company at an agreed price of Rs. 71.29
per share.

This represents amount invested through LSE Financial Services Limited in Marginal Trading System (MTS) and receives mark-
up income net of 1% service charges and MTS charges. Investment in Margin Trading System of NCCPL is an undisclosed
market of financees and financiers with a participation ratio of 85 to 15 carrying mark-up of KIBOR with spread of maximum
upto 8% per annum. It carries mark-up at range of 20.38% to 23.19% per annum (2024: 24.15% to 35.16% per annum).

This represents Musharika Financing facility provided to Messrs. AG Publications (Private) Limited, through its Chief Executive
Officer Mr. Igbal Z. Ahmad, who is also a Chairman of Messrs. Pakistan Gas Port (PGF) Consortium Limited, out of the
approved limit of Rs. 400 million, on a pre-agreed Profit-Sharing Rate (PSR) being not less than 6 months KIBOR+16%, or
2.5% per month whichever is higher, for revival of the company operating Jamshoro Joint Venture Limited (JIVL). It is
recoverable in lump sum after the lapse of seven months from the date of disbursement of musharika financing whereas PSR is
o be serviced on monthly basis. It is secured against pledge over 49,424,163 common shares of JJVL owned by Mr. Igbal Z
Ahmad (Chief executive, director & major shareholder of JJVL) representing 51% of JJVL's voting share capital by way of a duly
registered pledge charge with SECP, mortgage over the property owned by the daughter of Mr. Igbal Z. Ahmad measuring 19
kanals and 12 marlas, situated at Bedian road, opposite DHA Phase-V, post-dated cheques signed by Mr. Igbal Z. Ahmad for
the repayment of monthly PSR and the lump sum amounts for encashment to secure the provided facility and confirmation
letters from Messrs. PGP Consortium Limited (PGPCL) and Messrs. Pakistan Gas Port Limited (PGPL) for the payment of the
future dividend (o be declared and disbursed by the company from time to time) in respect of the family members of Mr. Igbal
Z. Ahmad for the amount of facility provided.




11.5 The breakup of advance amount is as under:
! R Ownership Advance (% of Advance
Investee Company Class of Shares L:ih Interest in the total disbursed
i investee consideration) (Rs. "000") |
lamshoro Joint Venture Limited (JVL)
A-Class 9,691,012 10% 0% 30,615
Energy Resource Business Limited
Ordinary 9,810 9.81% 0% 29,385
(BV1)
Total 60,000
11.5.1 The Company entered into an agreement with Mr. Jamal Akbar Ansari, holding 10% equity stake in the
Class-A shares of JJVL, for purchase of his entire shareholding in JJVL at an agreed consideration of
Rs. 153.077 million comprising 9,691,012 ordinary shares @ of Rs. 15.80 per share. As mutually
agreed, the company has paid an advance to the party representing 20% of the consideration agreed.
This transaction is materialized on August 11, 2025 and all the shares acquired under this arrangement
have been transferred in the name of the Company on the same date.
11.5.2 On June 20, 2025, the Company entered into a duly executed term sheet with Mr. Jamal Akbar Ansari

holding 9.81% equity stake in the ordinary shares of Messrs. Energy Resource Business Limited (ERBL)
whereby the investee holds 95% of the Class-B shares of JJVL. Under this arrangement, the company
has given an advance to the party representing 20% of the total purchase price of shares. Through this
investment, the company indirectly holds 4.66% of ownership interest in JJVL. The shares of ERBL have
been transferred in the name of Company on July 31, 2025.

2025 2024
12 Trade and Other Receivables Note Rs. in 000s
Trade receivables - unsecured
- From leaseholders 12.1 9,425 6,855
- From tenants 12.2 6,161 9,300
Insurance claims receivable - IGI Holdings Limited . 7,800
Other receivables - unsecured and considered good 123 33,582 12,905
Accrued profit on musharika financing - under islamic mode 114 5,925 5,300
55,063 42,160
121 Trade receivables from leaseholders
Considered good 9,425 6,856 |
Considered doubtful 17,461 16,504
26,886 23,359
Less: Expected credit loss 1211 (17,461) (16,504)
9,425 6,855
1211  Expected credit loss from leaseholders
Balance as at July 01, 16,504 -
Transfer under merger scheme . 13,227
Expected credit loss during the year 1,160 3,277
Balance written off (203)
Balance as at June 30, 17,461 16,504

et




12.1.2 Age analysis of trade receivables from leaseholders

Past due
Total Gross
Description Year end ] 3160 | 61-90 | 91-365
0-30 Days Days Days Days Above 365 days| amount due
Rs. in 000s
Leaseholders 2025 3,055 617 1,668 8,359 11,187 26,886
Leaseholders 2024 3,007 1,359 992 3781 14,130 _ 23,359
2025 2024
Note Rs. in 000s
12.2 Trade receivables from tenants
Considered good 6,161 9,300
Considered doubtful 3,634 2,983
9,795 12,283
Less: Expected credit loss J221 (3,634) (2,983)
6,161 9,300
12.21 Expected credit loss from tenants
Balance as at July 01, 2,983 -
Transfer under merger scheme . 1,905
Expected credit loss during the year 651 1,078
Balance as at June 30, 3634 2,983
12.2.2  Age analysis of trade receivables from tenants:
Past due
Total Gross
Description Year end 3160 | 6190 | 91-365
0-30 Days Bave Days | Days Above 365 days| amount due
Rs. in 000s
Tenants 2025 3130 1,901 1124 3,372 268 9,795
Tenants 2024 4,396 377 592 4,092 2826 12,283

123 This includes balance receivable from Messrs. Digital Custodian Company Limited, an associated company along with
mark-up @ 6 months KIBOR + 2% per annum as per the requirements of section 199 of the Companies Act, 2017. Itis
unsecured and will be recoverable in the ordinary course of business. The breakup and maximum outstanding amount due

from the related parties at the end of any month during the year is as follows:

Receivable against the equity management fee
Other receivable _ current account

m

Maximum
Gross Amount Due Outstanding
amount
2025 2024
................ Rs.in000s ...........c.c.n.
9,094 - 9,094
23,502 4427 23,502
32,596 4,427 32,596




1231 Age analysis of other receivables from related parties:

Past due
Description Year end 0-30 Days 3160 | 6190 | 91-365 Above 365 days Total Gross
Days Days Days
................. Rs.in000s.................
Receivable against the equity
management fee - - 3,031 6,063 9,094
Other receivable _ current
scount 3,018 12 - 16,045 4427 23,502
2025 3!018 12 3|'I.'|31 22!105 4,427 Las, 32,596
2024 s 4421 - ik i) 4,427
2025 2024
13 Advances, Deposits and Prepayments Note Rs. in 000s
Considered good
Advance to suppliers - unsecured 15,450 11,374
Advances to employees - secured
- against expenses 200 250
- against salaries 131 919 B21
- against house rent and others 132 80 564
Advances to brokers 7,617 -
Prepayments 1,086 1,166
& ¢
131 This includes Rs. 0.395 million (2024: Rs. 0.279 million) as advance
given to executives during the year in terms of their employment which is
adjustable in the ordinary course of business against their monthly
salaries which is normally within one year. These balances are within the
age bracket of one year.
The maximum aggregate balance due from the executives at the end of
any month during the year is Rs. 1.145 million (2024: Rs. 0.759 million).
13.2 This includes an amount of Nil (2024: Rs. 0.54 million) as advance given
to one of the director of LSE Ventures Limited, an associated undertaking
of the company in the ordinary course of business that have been
recovered during the year.
2025 2024
14 Tax Refunds Due From The Government - net Note Rs. in 000s
Balance as at July 01, 28,935 2,522
Transfer under merger scheme - 27,769
Income tax deducted at source during the year - net 30,502 4914
Prior year adjustment 35 (1,897) (446)
Less: Provision for taxation (32,707) (5,824)
Balance as at June 30, 24,833 ___ 28935

g




" 2025 2024

15 (Cash and Bank Balances Note Rs. in 000s
Cash in hand 100 100
Cash at bank in savings account 15.1 31,762 191,912

161

M ¥ 7 S - 71V

This carries mark-up ranging from 8.50% to 20.50% per annum (2024: 17.25% to 20.50% per annum). This

includes Rs. 0.322 million (2024: Rs. 0.404 million) held under islamic windows of banks.

16 Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital

2025 2024 2025 2024
Number of shares Rs. in 000s
16.1 Authorized share capital
200,000,000 200,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 2,000,000 2,000,000
10 each
50,000,000 50,000,000 Preference shares of Rs. 500,000 500,000
10 each
Zﬁﬂlﬂﬂﬂ!ﬂﬂﬂ EEG,UGUIGGG 2,500,000 2,500,000
16.2 Issued, subscribed and paid up capital
Ordinary shares of Rs. 10
21,000,000 21,000,000 each issued for cash 210,000 210,000
Ordinary shares of Rs. 10
160,153,345 160,153,345 each issued other than in 1,601,534 1,601,534

cash

—181,153.346 __ 181,193,340 —l811.534 1811034

16.3 LSE Capital Limited has merged as per Lahore High Court Order dated April 03, 2024 under which
160 153,445 shares has been issued in favor of shareholders of LSE Proptech Limited and Modaraba Al
Mali as per the approved merger scheme.

16.4 The shareholders are entitied to receive all distributions including dividends and other entitiements in the
form of bonus and right shares as and when declared by the Company. All shares carry one vote per share

16.5 Reconciliation of changes in number of shares is as follows:
2025 2024
_ Numberofshares
Balance as at July 01, 181,153,345 21,000,000
Issued other than in cash - 160,153,345
Balance as at June 30, 181,163,345 181,153,345
16.6 The shareholding structure of the Company is as under:
Name of shareholders %age of shareholding Number of shares
Danish Elahi 14% 24,697,350 24 697,350
LSE Ventures Limited 12% 22,615,904 22,370,904
Chief executive and family 11% 20,590,004 20,580,546
Igbal Usman and associates 8% 15,604,156 15,604,156
Zahid Lalif Securities (Private) Limited 8% 13,758,156 12,720,002
Digital Custodian Company Limited 7% 12,935,548 12,691,763
LSE Financial Services Limited 6% 10,000,000 10,000,000
Aslam Khaliq 4% 7,237,163 7,237,163
Amir Zia 0% - 3,618,581
Others 30% 53,715,064 51,632,880
181153345 _ 181.103.340

without restriction.




17 Surplus on Revaluation of Property and Equipment
Gross amount of revaluation surplus

Balance as at July 01,

Surplus arose on fresh revaluation of land and building
Incremental depreciation on revaluation of building

Balance as at June 30,

Less: Deferred tax

Balance as at July 01,

Tax effect of Incremental depreciation on revaluation of building

Balance as at June 30,
Balance as at June 30, net of deferred tax

17.1 The surplus on revaluation of property and equipment is not
available for distribution to the shareholders in accordance
with section 241 of the Companies Act, 2017.

18 Building Reserve Fund

18.1 This reserve was formed for replacement of major fixed
assets of the Company. The Company and its long term
lease holders contribute their respective shares at Rs. 4 per
sq. fi. in the fund.

18.2 Movement during the year:

Balance as at July 01,
Building reserve collected during the year
Balance as at June 30,

19 Adjustments Related to Pre-merger Transactions

Capital work in progress written off
Old liabilities written back

19.1 This represented the old outstanding balance previously
payable by LSE Proptech Limited, which was no more
payable by the company and accordingly written back in the
last year in the statement of changes in equity (SOCE) in
line with the approved scheme of merger.

20 Long Term Financing
Under conventional mode

Lease liability
Financial liability at amortized cost
w

\

2025 2024

Note Rs. in 000s
85,615 -
4.1 - 85,615
(1,688) -
83,927 85,615
(9,793) -
22.3 490 (9,793)
(9,303) (9,793)
74,624 75,822
6,593 1,682
1,682 -
4,911 1,682
6,593 1,682
4.2 - (15,777)
19.1 - 14,132
- (1,645)
201 24,555 48,378
20.2 12,115 22,072
36,670 70,450




20.1

20.1.1

20.1.2

20.2

20.2.1

™

This financing has been obtained through sale and lease back of vehicles of the company from Cordoba
Leasing Limited with a lease term of 36 months. It carries markup @ 1.95% per month, payable monthly
and repayable in 36 equal monthly instalments along with markup. It is secured against registration of
vehicles in the name of Cordoba Leasing Limited, personnel guarantee of chief executive of the company,
demand promissory note of Rs. 98.182 million, registered charge on all the present and future assets of the
company amounting to Rs.150 million, 36 post dated cheques of Rs. 2.727 million each and assignment of

receivables from the tenants of the property owned by the company.

2025 2024
Note Rs. in 000s
Movement in Lease liability during the year
Balance as at July 01, 67,259 -
Assets acquired under finance lease - 70,000
Accretion of finance cost 13,773 2,976
Repayments made during the year (32,653) {5,717)
Balance as at June 30, 48,379 67,259
Less: current portion shown under current liabilities 24 (23,824) (18,881)
2&555 4813?3
Maturity analysis of gross and discounted lease liabilities
[ Gross amount | Present value ]
2025 2024 2025 2024
Rs. in 000s Rs. in 000s
Up to one year 32,727 32,727 23,824 18,881
After one year 27,273 60,000 24,555 48,378
Total lease liability 60,000 92,728 48,379 67,259

This long term finance facility from Cordoba Leasing Limited was obtained to meet the working capital
requirements of the company amounting to Rs. 30 million. It carries markup at the rate of @ 30% per
annum, payable monthly and repayable in 36 equal monthly instalments along with the markup. It is secured
against the mortgage of immovable property owned by the company, personal guarantee of the chief

executive of the company, duly signed demand promissory note for the amount of facility,

registered charge

on all the present and future assets of the company amounting to Rs. 150 million and 36 post dated

cheques of Rs. 1.274 million each.

2025 2024

Movement in financial liability at amortized cost during  Note Rs. in 000s
the year
Balance as at July 01, 29,475 -
Loan obtained during the year - 30,000
Repayments made during the year (7,403) (525)
Balance as at June 30, 22,072 29,475
Less: current portion of financial liability 24 (9,957) (7,403)

12,115 22,072




' 20.2:2 Maturity analysis of gross and discounted financial liabilities

Gross amount Present value
2025 2024 2025 2024
Rs. in 000s Rs. in 000s

Up to one year 15,283 15,283 9,957 7,403

More than one year and less than 5 years 14,009 29,292 12,116 22,072

Total financial liability 29,292 44575 _ 22,072 29,475

21 Other Liabilities

Deposits from employees against vehicles 21.1 12,041 6,091
Payable against Sale and lease back 21.2 28,110 28,110
Security deposit against rent 2,944 1,079
43,095 35,280

21.1 This represents deposits from employees against the purchase of vehicles for employees. Initially vehicles
are held in the name of Company which will be transferred upon settlement of all related liabilities. These
deposits are recovered in 60 equal monthly interest free installments.

21.2 This represents payable to related parties and other employees of the company on account of sale and
lease back transaction entered into with Cordoba Leasing Limited. The party wise breakup of payable to
related parties is as under :

2025 2024
Rs. in 000s
Chief Executive / Director 14,000 14,000
Digital Custodian Company Limited, an associated company 5,500 5,500
.‘_,u”" 19,500 19,500
\ —_ —_— = ——




22 Deferred Tax Liability

221

222

223

224

™

2025 2024
Note Rs. in 000s
X 83,594 43,075
Breakup of deferred tax liability
Taxable temporary differences
Accelerated tax depreciation 19,804 16,072
Share of profit from associate 58,774 22,794
Net investment in finance lease 1,239 1,238
Surplus on property and equipment 9,303 9,793
Financial assets - Listed 1,367
Deductible temporary differences
Loss allowance on receivables {6,118) (4,78E)
Right of use of assets (T75) (2,021)
Financial assets - Listed - (18)
s:lm 43,075
Deferred tax assets / liabilities on temporary differences are measured at effective rate
of 28% (2024 : 29%).
Reconciliation of deferred tax liabilities - Net
Balance as at July 01, 43,075 16,370
Transferred under merger Scheme - 64,687
Deferred tax effect charged to statement of profit or loss 35 33,303 (47,746)
Deterred tax effect charged to other comprehensive income 224 7,706 13,362
Deferred Tax impact on realization of Ensmile shares (3,598)
Deferred tax effect charged to statement of changes in equity 17 (490) -
Balance as at June 30, 83,594 43,075
_—
Analysis of change in deferred tax
Statement of Financial | Statement of Profit or Statement of Statement of Changes in
Position loss Comprehensive Income Equity
2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024
Rs. in 000s.
Accelerated tax depreciation 19,804 16,072 3132 16,072 -
Share of profit from associate 58,774 22,794 28,273 2,855 7,706 3,568 .
Surplus on property and equipmant 8,303 9,793 - - 8,793 [490)
Metinvestment in finance lease 1,238 1,238 - 1,239 .
Financial Assets - listed 1,367 (16) 1,384 [18)
Right of use of assets (775) (2,021) 1,246 {2,021)
Loss allowance on receivables (6,118} (4,788) 1,332) (4,788)
Transfer under merger scheme - . - (64,687)
Loss on realization of ensmile shares 3,558
83,594 43,075 33,303 (47,748) 7,706 13,362 (480}




2025 2024

Note Rs.in 000s
23 Trade and Other Payables

Payable to Ghani Chemical Industries Limited 23.1 7,000 174,706
Creditors for Services 3,905 10,377
Security deposits - ljarah finance 23.2 - 3,762
Accrued liabilities 233 12,058 16,045
Sales tax payable 3444 3,709
Contract liability 234 2430 7.401
Advance received against sale of Ensmile shares . 25,000
Payable to related parties 235 103,404 88,338
Retention money - unsecured 1,004 896
Temporary overdraft - 726
133,245 330,960
2314 This represents the balance payable to the above named party by the company against purchase of its shares as per the duly executed

23.2

233

234

235

term sheet previously entered into between Modaraba Al Mali and the said party which then becomes payable by the company under the
merger scheme dated April 03, 2024.

These represent amounts received under ljarah Finance as security deposits transferred to the company under the merger scheme, which
were stated to be repayable / adjustable on the expiry of the ljarah period. However, due to default by the counterparties in making
payments due under the ljarah finance facility, this balance is written back during the year being no more payable as it equates the
amount of fjarah finance receivable by the company under the contract from the counterparties who had already defaulted for their
obligations towards the company (Note 31).

This includes an amount of Rs. 7.386 million (2024: Rs. 7.386 million) that had been provided for by LSE Proptech Limited and has been
transferred to the company under the merger scheme against the legal case filed by the employees that were previously been employed
by LSE Financial Services Limited as disclosed in Note 27.1 of these financial statements.

This represents advance received from the following parties : 2025 2024
Rs. in 000s

Tenants 2,430 6.799

Leaseholders and Companies i 02

2430 7401
——— T

This represents an amount payable to associated companies as current account, lo
meet the working capital and operational requirements of the company. It carries
markup @ & Months KIBOR + 1% per annum. It is unsecured and payable on demand.
The breakup is as under:

LSE Ventures Limited 79,289 88,153
LSE Financial Services Limited 24,115 185
IM 88,338

24  Current Portion of Long Term Financing
Lease liability 2014 23,824 18,881
Financial liability at amortized cost 20.2.1 9,957 7403

33,14 26,284
—_—

25 Loan From Director - secured

Under conventional mode 251 . 100,000
p——
254  This short term loan facility was obtained from the Chief Executive / Director of the Company amounting to Rs. 100 milion to meet its

working capital requirements for the period of 6 months. It camied markup @ 30% per annum, payable monthly. It was repayable after &
months in lump sum or in 8 equal monthly instalments at the beginning of each month succeeding the month of disbursement whereas the
markup was to be serviced on monthly basis. It was secured against least pari passu charge in right and priority of payment with all its
other present or future, actual or contingent, unsecured and unsubordinated obligations and liabilities, except for those obligations and
liabilities mandatorily preferred by law of general application to companies. This facility was paid off in full during the year.




26 Accrued markup on financing

Long term financing - secured
Under conventional mode

- lease fiability

- financial liability at amortized cost

Short term financing

- loan from director - secured and under conventional mode
- payable to associated companies - unsecured

LSE Ventures Limited

LSE Financial Servicas Limited

27 Contingencies and Commitments

271

7.2

28 Revenue

Investment properties - rental income
Other revenues - inclusive of PRA sales fax
Room mainiznance services

Contingencies

The company is contingently liable for the following:

25

23.5
23.5

2025 2024
Rs. in 000s
189 264
294 380
. 1,208
14,885 2,100
2,456 3
17,824 3,952

Certain employees had been reinstated and arrears / back benefits were paid in accordance with Labour Court Order, dated August 13,
2020. However, these employees filed fresh petitions for determination and recovery of back benefits from the LSE Proptech Limited
which has now become due on the part of company under the merger scheme. Under the circumstances, the Company incorporated a
certain provision in the financial statements up to June 30, 2025 based on its best estimate. This case is pending adjudication until the

terminal date. However, the Company expects a favourable outcome in the instant case.

The Company has not recognized provision for Punjab Workers' Welfare Fund (PWWF) amounting to Rs. 6.130 million (2024: Rs. 1.591
million) on the pretext that it does not fall under the definition of industrial establishment as defined in Clause (d) of Section 2 of the Punjab
Workers' Welfare Fund Act, 2019 nor does it employ any worker as defined in Clause (I) of Section 2 of the Act and Section 2 of the

Punjab Industrial Relation Act, 2010.

Commitments

There is no commitment outstanding as at the reporting date (2024 Nil).

Advisory fee
Equity management fee
Software services

Less: PRA sales tax

28.1 This represents the management fees charged to associaled group companies on
account of management of their payroll by the company and provision of administrative
services o them as per the duly executed agreement entered into between the parties.
The breakup of equity management fee is as under:

Associated companies

LSE Financial Services Limited
LSE Ventures Limited

Digital Custodian Company Limited

281

28.2

2025 2024
~ Rs. in 000s
43,995 15,380
38,513 10,488
23,844 8 667
“|=52 ol
7.923 2,208
116,832 21,363
(15,399) 1,552
101,433 19.811
145,428 3519
6,208
31,250
9,094
ﬂiiﬂ

28.2 The aggregate PRA sales tax amounting to Rs. 15.359 million (2024: Rs.1.552 million) is charged on room maintenance services,

N

advisory fee, equity management fee and software services income.




29 Administrative and General Expenses

Salaries and benefits

Information technology related expenses
Insurance

Travelling and conveyance

Printing and stationery

Utilities

Repairs and maintenance

Security expenses

Communication, entertainment and public relations
Legal and professional charges

Fees and subscription

Rent, rates and taxes

Auditors' remuneration

Board meetings fee

Old debit balances written off
Miscellaneous expenses

Property and equipment written off
Depreciation on property and equipment
Depreciation on Right of use asset

29.1

29.2

29.3

294

28.5

Salaries and benefits include Rs. 2.81 million (2024: Rs. 0.613
million) in respect of contribution to provident fund.

This includes an amount of Rs. 14.778 million as consultancy
charges paid to Mr. Amir Zia, Chief Executive of the subsidiary
company namely; LSE SPAC-| Limited.

Auditors' remuneration

Audit fee
Other assurance / attestation services

Meeting fee is being paid to the Non-executive and independent
directors of the company for attending corporate meetings of the
company at rates as approved by the Board of Directors.

This includes Rs. Nil (2024: Rs.0.3 million) as donation given by
the company. The directors and their relatives have no interest in
the donee.

30 Other Expenses

Expected credit loss on trade receivables

Bad debts written off

\LL\"”"(

Note
201

20.2
29.3
294

29.5
412

121.1&12.21

2025 2024
Rs. in 000s

75,522 23,752
3,285 128
1,942 271
10,517 3222
1,656 172
3,038 1,425
12,951 1,609
9,257 1,438
11,072 1,172
18,428 15,331
1,050 568
1,689 376
1,400 1,284
1,175 1,925

4,492 -
498 1,331

156 -
19,825 5,485
11,425 2,085
189,378 61,574
1,000 850
400 434

ok 1,400 1,284

1,811 4,355

624 -
2!&35 4|355



31 Other Income
Income from financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents - profit on saving bank accounts
Interest Income from related parties
Return on musharikah financing - under islamic mode
Realized fair value gain on investments in Ensmile Limited

Fair value gain recycled from OC| on disposal of associate
Unrealized fair value gain on investment in listed equity securities - net

Realized fair value gain on investment in listed equity securities - net
Dividend Income on investment in listed equity securities

Interest Income on exposure in MTS

Finance income on net investment in finance lease

-

Income from non financial assets:

Unrealized gain on investment property carried at fair value
Old credit balances / excess provisions written back
Parking charges and miscellaneous income

Gain from coal trading

Gain on disposal of property and equipment

KIR

3.2

13

M4

3.5

This includes Rs. 0.130 million (2024: Rs. 0.205 million) eamed
from bank accounts maintained under Islamic windows of banks.

This represents income from related parties under section 199 as
per the Companies Act, 2017 :

Associated undertakings :
LSE Ventures Limited

Digital Custodian Company Limited

This includes an interest income amounting to Rs. Nil (2024:
Rs.0.204 million) against advance to one of the directors of LSE
Ventures Limited, an associate of the company.

Gain from coal trading

Revenue from sale of coal
Less: sales tax @ 18%

Less: Cost of coal sold

Gain / (loss) on disposal of property and equipment and right of
use of asset is as follows:
Loss on property and equipment

Gain on right of use of assets

3N
312
14

23.2

31.3
314

31.5

4.1.1

2025 2024
Rs. in 000s

6,678 440
2,242 6,780
126,225 17,300
- 6,031
- 23977
18,549 17,900

87,007 -

2033 -
4,783 47
342 BB
247859 72,561
64,154 13,691
3,762 4,650
10,276 3,419
- 189
. 2,169
78,192 24 118

ALy s——t il

2242

5.201
1.579

7,743
(1,181)

6,562
(6,373)

189

(746)
2,915




2025 2024

32 Income from Associates Note Rs. in 000s
Post tax share of profit from associates
Digital Custodian Company Limited 6.5 1,753 21,644
LSE Ventures Limited 6.5 55,868 11,832 |
57,621 33,476
Gain on bargain purchase
Digital Custodian Company Limited 321 45,459 -
LSE Ventures Limited 321 3,007 -
48,466 -
106,087 33,476

ﬁ
|

321  This represents the excess of Company’s interest in the net
assets of the associates over the original cost of investment and
is recognized in accordance with the requirements of Intemational
Accounting Standard 28, "Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures"

33 Finance Cost

Mark-up on financing 331 79,223 19 477
Bank charges 36 410
79.259 19.887

331 This represents the markup expense against financing obtained
from the following parties under conventional mode:
Related Parties

Director / Chief Executive 25 12,542 4,958
Associated Undertakings :
LSE Ventures Limited 235 14,885 8,100
LSE Financial Services Limited 235 2,456 185
Others
Long term financing 20 21,553 6,234
Ghani Chemical Industries Limited 231 27,787 -
RN - - R . )
34 Levy
Alternate corporate tax - differential 11,289 -
Minimum Tax on services - 3,025
Tax on dividend 305 -
Capital gain tax 9,397 7,644
2001 _____10669
This represents final taxes paid under sections 153(1), 150 and
37(A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, representing levy in
terms of requirements of IFRIC 21 and |AS 37.
35 Taxation
Current Tax
Normal tax 4,490 (4,845)
Tax on dividend from associate 35.1 7,226 -
Prior year adjustment 14 1,897 446
13,613 (4,399)
Deferred tax 223 33,303 (47,746)

W 46,916 (52,145)




35.1 This represents tax on dividend income received from associated companies as disclosed in Note 6 of these financial
statements that is classified as income tax as per the Circular # 10/2024 issued by the Institute of the Chartered

Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) dated June 14, 2024.

35.2 Income tax retum has been filed to the income tax authorities upto and including tax year 2024 under the provisions of
the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

35.3 Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit

Accounting profit for the year before levy and taxation 306,494 _ 79,530

Applicable tax rate 29% 29%

T ? 88,883 -

ax on income

Tax effect on difference of admissible and non-admissible expenses ) ki

Tax effect on income charged to final tax classified as levy §1,59) A

Reduced tax rate effect on final tax income classified as income tax 1226 i

Prior year adjustment Tom

Deferred tax S :
46316 N

35.4 Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit for the comparative period was not applicable since the
company had suffered loss from business and accordingly no provision for normal taxation was recognized in the last
year.

36 Earnings per Share - Basic and Diluted

2025 2024
Net profit after taxation attrioutable to ordinary shareholders (Rs. in 000s) 238,587 121,006
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (Number of shares in thousands) 181,153 45,447
Eaming per share - Basic and diluted (Rupees) 1.32 266

36.1 The figure for diluted eamings per share is the same as basic eamings per share as the company has not issued any
instrument which would have an impact on basic eamings per share when exercised.

wwf



2025 2024

37 Cash Generated from Operations Note T Rs. in 000s
Profit before levy and taxation 306,494 79,530
Adjustments
Depreciation 41 19,825 5,485
Depreciation on right of use asset 5 11,425 2,085
Income from associates 6.5 (106,087) (33,476)
Finance income on net investment in finance lease 8 (342) (86)
Investment properties - rental income 28 (43,995) (15,380)
Cash and cash equivalents - profit on saving bank accounts 31 (6,678) (440)
Return on musharikah financing - under islamic mode 114 (126,225) (17,300)
Impairment loss on trade and other receivables 30 1,811 4,355
Bad debts written off 30 624 -
Unrealized gain on investment property K} (64,154) (13,691)
Realized fair value gain on investments in Ensmile Limited K} - (6,031)
Fair value gain recycled from OCI on disposal of associate K} . (23,977)
Old credit balances / excess provisions written back 3 (3,762) (4,650)
Old debit balances written off 29 4,492 -
Loss on disposal of property and equipment 411&41.2 156 746
Fair value gain on investment in listed equity securities - net (105,556)
Dividend Income on investment in listed equity securities H (2,033)
Gain on disposal of right of use asset 315 - (2,915)
Finance cost 33 79,259 19,887
Loss before working capital changes (341,240) (85,388)
(Increase) / decrease in current assets:
- Inventory 10 (30) (239)
- Trade and other receivables 12 (14,713) 18,101
- Advances, deposits and prepayments 13 (15,669) (29,361)
(30,412) (11,499)
Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities:
- Trade and other payables 23 (189,473) 41,062
- Other liabilities - deposits from employees 7,815 29,126
(181,658) 70,188
Cash (Used in) / Generated from Operations (246,816) 52,831

i
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38 Financial Risk Management

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and other prica risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Company's overall risk management programme focuses on having cost efficient funding as well as io manage financial risk to
minimize eamings volatiity and provide maximum return o shareholders.

Risk managemen is camed by the Board of Directors (the Board). The Board provides principles for overall risk management as well as policies
covering specific areas such as cumency risk, other price risk, interest rate risk, creddt risk and liquidity risk.

381

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument may fluctuate because of changes in markel prices.

Market risk comprise three types of risk; foreign cumency risk, interest rate risk, commodity price and equity price risk that will affect the
Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments.

Currency risk

Foreign cummency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign
ummmdmmmwmsmmdudndmhﬂnwn&m.ﬂhﬁmmhﬂnmmmﬂmwm
Company, it is not exposed to currency risk (June 30, 2024: Nil).

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The Company s not exposed to floating interest rate risk as its variable interest bearing liabilities exceeds its variable rate financial

assels,
2025
Note Rs. in 000s

Financial assets

Floating rate instruments_

Bank balances 15 31,762 191912
Investment in Margin Trading System of NCCPL 11 - 17,644
Cther receivables 123 32,596 4427
Total Financial Assets - variable 64,358 213,983
Financial liabilities

Floating rate instruments.

Payable to related parties (103,404) (88,338)
Net financial Assets (39,046) 125,645

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments_

As at reporting date, if interest rates get 1% higher / (lower) with all other variables held constant, profit before taxation for the year would have
been (lower) / higher by Rs. 0.390 million (2024: Rs. 1.26 million), mainly as a result of yield on fioating investment based financial assets.

Price risk

Price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices
(other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to individual financial
instrument or its issuer or faclors affecting all similar financial instrument traded in the market. The Company is exposed to price risk on
account of its investments carried al fair value through profit or loss. Al the reporting date, the company has heid investment in equity
instruments amounting 1o Rs. 71,627 million (2024: Rs. 322.403 million).

Sensitivity analysis for financial assets at FVPL

As at reporting date, if fair value of equity investments increases / (decreases) by Rs. 1 with all other variables held constant, profit before
taxation for the year would have been higher / (lower) by Rs. 9.12 million (2024: Rs. 15.303 million), mainly as a result of fair value fluctuation
on PSX of the listed equity invesiments.

iyl



38.2 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading
to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily sundry receivables) and from its
investing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions, and other financial instruments.

As at the reporting date, the maximum exposure to credit risk is equal to the carrying amount of the financial assets as
detailed below:

Financial Assets 2025 2024
Note Rs. in 000s

Net investment in finance lease 8 4274 4,275
Long term deposits g 2,719 548
Advances to employees - adjustable in cash 13 8,616 1,386
Financial assets " 481,627 640,047
Trade and other receivables 12 55,063 42 160
Bank balances 15 3,762 191,912

Cred lity of Financial A

The management assesses the credit quality of the customers, taking into account their financial position, past experience and
other factors. The utilization of credit limits is regularly monitored. For banks and financial institutions, only independently rated
parties with a strong credit rating are accepted.

The Company monitors the credit quality of its financial assets with reference to historical performance of such assets and
available external credit ratings, if any.

The aging of trade debts from leaseholders and tenants and related impairment loss as at the reporting date is as under.

2025 2024
Rs. in 000s
Neither past due nor impaired . -
Past due but not impaired
0 -30 days 5,924 7,493
31- 60 days 3,153 1,508
61-90 days 1,528 1,386
> 91 days 4,943 5773
Past due and impaired

0 -30 days 261 -
31 - 60 days 1,365 228
91 - 120 days 1,264 199
> 91 days 18,243 19,055
Total Gross Amount Due 36,681 35,642

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer such as
repayment behaviour, credit loss history and available securities etc. The management also considers other relevant factors
that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk associated with the customer. Majority of the
Company’s customers have been transacting with the Company for over five years, and only trivial customers’ balances have
been written off. In monitoring customer credit risk, customers are individually assessed according to their trading history and
repayment behaviour with the Company.

The risk management committee has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analyzed individually for
creditworthiness before the Company's standard payment terms are offered.

The Company establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of trade and
other receivables.



38.3

The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its customers are operated in
largely independent markets. The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counter parties are either banks (with
reasonably high credit ratings) and trade receivables for which the exposure is spread over a large number of counter parties.

The credit quality of bank balances that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to external credit
ratings (if available) or to historical information about counterparty default rate:

Rating
Shortterm | Long term Agency 225 2024
Bank Islamic Pakistan Limited A1 AA- PACRA 32 62
Bank Al-Habib Limited A1+ AAA PACRA 26,223 191,850
MCB Bank Limited A1+ AAA PACRA 5,217 )
H .TEZ= 191,912

'‘Other receivables include Rs. 32.596 million (2024: Rs. 4.427 million) receivable from related party namely; Digital Custodian
Company Limited (DCCL), Rs. Nill (2024: Rs. 7.800 million) receivable from |G| Holdings Limited and Rs. 0.956 million (2024:
Rs. 8.478 million) due from corporate entities that are financially sound and having strong financial track record and
creditworthiness.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk represents the risk that the Company will encounter difficulties in meeting obligaticns associated with financial
liabilities. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities, the availability of
funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities. Due to dynamic nature of the business, the Company
maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining committed credit lines available. The Company's liquidity management involves
projecting cash flows and considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet these, monitoring critical liquidity ratios and
maintaining debt financing plans. The table below analyses the Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining period at the reporting date to contractual maturity dates. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows:

Carrying Contractual Within 1
fsicss coal fihin year 1-2 Years || 2-5Years || 5-10 years

Description

Rs. in 000s

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at June 30, 2025:

Long term financing 70,451 70,451 33,781 36,670 . -
Loan from director - - - - - -
Other liabilities 2,944 2,944 - 2,944 - -
Trade and other payables 127,31 127,371 127,371 -

Unclaimed dividend 13,809 13,809 13,809 -

Accrued markup on financing 17,824 17,624 17,824 - - -

23239 25399 102765 __ 39614 -

o
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38.5

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at June 30, 2024:

Long term financing 96,734 96,734 26,284 33,781 36,669

Loan from director 100,000 100,000 100,000 - - -

Other liabilities 1,079 1,079 - 1,079 - -

Trade and other payables 294 849 294,849 294 B49 - - -

Unclaimed dividend 10,359 10,359 10,359 - -

Accrued markup on financing 3,952 3,952 3,952 - -
g,gﬁ 506,973 - 435,444 =3-4,BED 36,669

The contractual cash flows relating to the above financial liabilities have been determined on the basis of interest rates / mark
up rates effective as at the reporting date. The rates of interest / mark up have been disclosed in relevant notes to these

financial statements, where applicable.
Financial instruments by categories

Financial asset as at fair value
Investment in Equity Securities

Financial asset a mortized cost

Net investment in finance lease
Long term deposits
Advances to employees - adjustable in cash

Advance to related parties - unsecured
Financial assets

Trade and other receivables

Cash and bank balances

Financial liabili mortized cost

Long term financing

Loan from director

Other liabilities

Trade and other payables
Unclaimed dividend

Accrued markup on financing

Fair value measurement

Note
"

13
13
1
12
15

25
21
23

2025 2024
~ Rs.In

71,627 322,403
4,274 4,275
2,719 548
8,616 1,386
32,596 4427
410,000 317 644
22 467 3773
31,862 192,012
584,161 880,428
70,451 96,734
- 100,000
2,944 1,079
127,371 294 849
13,809 10,359
17,824 3,952
232,399= e 506,973

Fair value is the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. Consequently, differences may arise between the carrying value and the fair

value estimates.

Financial assets which are tradable in an open market are revalued at the market prices prevailing on the reporting date. Fair
value is determined on the basis of objective evidence at each reporting date. The management believes that the fair values of
financial and non-financial assets and financial liabilities approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term

maturities of financial instruments,

Fair value hierarchy

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value by valuation method. The different levels have been defined

as follows:

- quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1);
- inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or

indirectly (level 2); and

w

W



2025

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets - measured at fair value
Investments in equity securities 71,627 . E 71,627
Non - financial assets - measured at fair value
Property and Equipment - 1,239,741 . 1,239,741
Investment property - 456,276 . 456,276

71627 1696017 ___ - 1,767,644
2024
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets - measured at fair value
Investments in equity securities 322,403 - . 322,403

Non - financial assets - measured at fair value

Property and Equipment - 1,246,490 - 1,246,490
Investment property - 392,122 - 392,122

322,403 _ 1638612 . 1961015

There were no transfers amongst levels during the year.

39 Capital Risk Management

The Board's policy is to maintain an efficient capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain the
future development of its business. The Board of Directors monitors the return on capital employed, which the Company defines as
operating income divided by total capital employed. The Board of Directors also monitors the level of dividends to shareholders.

The Company's objectives when managing capital are:

a) to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concem, so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders; and

b) to provide an adequate return to shareholders.

The Company manages the capital structure in the context of economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets.
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may, for example, adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
issue new shares, if possible, selling surplus property and equipment without affecting the optimal operating level and regulating its
dividend pavout thus maintainina smooth caoital manacement.

In line with the industry norms, the Company monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt
divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including current and non current) less cash and cash equivalents.
Total capital is calculated as equity, as shown in the statement of financial position, plus net debt.

The gearing ratio of the company is as follows:

2025 2024
Note Rs. in 000s
Total Debts (long term and short term) 391 70,451 196,734
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (31,862)  (191,286)
Net Debt 38,589 5,448
Equity 3,166,637 2,970,870
Total capital employed 3,205,226 =2.9?E,31B
Gearing ratio 1.21:!‘}1'-: - 0.18%

39.1 Total debts include lease liability, financial liabilities at amortized cost and loan from director.

10



40  Reconciliation of movement of liabilities to cash flows arisina from financing activities

Balance as at Julv 1. 2024

Changes from financing cash flows

Amount collected from building occupants for fixed
assets replacement fund
Dividend issued during the year

Lease liability obtained during the year
Repayment of lease finance

Loan recaived during the year
Repayment during the year

Director loan obiained during the year
Repayment of director loan during the year
Dividend issued during the year
Dividend paid during the year

Total changes from financing cash flows

Other changes
Total accumulated profits related other changes
Balance as at June 30, 2025

Balance as at July 1, 2023

Shares issued for cash during
Amount collected from building occupants for fixed
assets replacement fund
Dividend issued during the year

Leasa libility obtained during the year
Repaymant of laase finance

Loan received during the year

the year

Repayment during the year

Direcior loan obtained during the year
Repayment of director loan during the year
Dividend issued during the year

Dividend paid during the year

Total changes from financing cash flows

Other changes
Shares issued other than in cash
Total accumulated Profits related other changes

Balance as at June 30, 2024

v

2025
Equity Liabilities
Financial
Share Building || Unappropristed | | Lease || liabilityat | |Loanfrom| | Unclaimed Total
capital Reserve Profit liability amortized director dividend
-Hupees in
1,811,534 1,682 ks 67,259 20475 100,000 10,359 2,792,104
z 4,089 - - L . - 4,089
. ; . (18,880) - . (18,880)
. - - - (7.40) - (7,409
5 i . - . (100,000) - (100.000)
; . . : - ‘ (87,126) (87,126)
. 4,089 (18,880) {7.403)  (100,000) (87,126) (208,320)
822 148,386 . - . 90,577 239,785
1,811,534 6,593 920,181 48,379 22,072 - 13,810 2,622,568
2024
Equity Liabilties
“FanancEr
Share Buiding || Unappropriated Lease liabiiity at | | Loan from | | Unclaimed Tatal
Il Reserve Profit ligidity amortized direcior dividend
—Fupeas In .
210,000 . 24,657 - . . 10,359 245,016
1,298 - . 1,298
; 70,000 . - . 70,000
. (2,741) - . . (2.741)
- - 30,000 . - 30,000
= = (523) k ® (525)
s . . - 100,000 - 100,000
: T8 o358 a5 00000 : TR0
1601534 - - - - - 160153 |
- 384 747,138 - . . - 747,522
! LT = e 5 = :
1,811,534 1,682 771,795 67,259 29475 100,000 10,359 2,792,104
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4 41 Segment Raporting

411

Operating Segments

Management has determined the operating mmMmMinhmmﬂwmmcm&mmmmmWhma
r-aawrmandasmranlufpadumm.HapurmgmmradlmGmmmrhbamdm!rﬁlrﬁemﬁmmagmanlmuﬂngﬂnmmmcnmpmym
two strategic divisions |8, Strategic investments and rental, room maintenance & related services, which are its reportable segments. These divisions have
different operations and were managed separately because they require different strategies.

Reportable segments Operations

Strategic Investment Fair value gain (realized / unrealized), share of profit from
associates, retumn on loan and receivables, dividend income
elc.

Rental, Room maintenance and related services Rental income, room maintenance, parking charges, fair value
gain on investment property etc.

Information about reportable seaments

Information related to each reportable segment is set out below. Segment profit / (loss) before levy and tax is used to measure performance because
mmmm'rtheliawammmfmaﬂmiatrnmmrﬂaumlInmuaﬁnglhemmmmwﬁmmmmmmmmmmhm
same industries.

sagrrmlmurtsmmmmmadimﬂraﬂrbulﬁatassegmaﬂauﬂa:ﬂmﬁatmb&ﬂmtﬂmammm.

2025
Rental, Room
" “hl maintenance and Total
related services
Segment income 344,684 157,280 501,964
Segment related cost - (2,435) (2,435)
Segment profit before levy and taxation 344 584 154 8435 499,529
Segment assets
Investment in related parties 1,075,510 - 1,075,510
Financial Assats 481,627 - 481,627
Net Investment in finance lease . 47374 4274
Accrued markup on loan and receivables 5925 - 5925
Investment property - 456,278 456,276
Trade and other receivables - 15,586 15,586
Advance to broker 7617 - 7,617
Segment liabilities
Payable to Ghani Chemical Industries Limited 7,000 - 7,000
Security deposit against rent - 2944 1944
Cantract fiabdity - 2430 2,430
=g oo
Strategic ki
& mamwwm_ and Total
Segment income 98,684 42 851 141,535
Segment related cost - i4 {4,355
Segment profit before levy and taxation L 35, a7
Segment assets
Investment in related parties 896,024 - 896,024
Financial Assets 640,047 - 540,047
Met Investment in finance lease - 4,275 4275
Accrued markup on loan and receivables 5,300 - 5,300
Investment property a2 392,122
Trade and other receivables 16,155 16,155
Segment liabilities
Payable to Ghani Chemical Industries Limited 174,706 - 174,706
Advance received against sale of Ensmile shares 25,000 - 25,000
Security deposit against rent - 1,079 1,079
Contract liability - 7401 7401



41.2

Reconciliations of information on reportable segments to the amounts reported in the financial statements

Note
Income
Total income for reportable segments 411
Unallocated income
Combined income
Profit before levy and taxation
Segment results before levy and tax 411
Unallocated amounts:
- other income
- administrative expense 29
- finance cost 33

Profit before levy and taxation

Assets
Total assets for reportable segments
Other unallocated amounts

Combined total assets
Liabilities

Total liabilities for reportable segments
Other unallocated amounts

Combined total liabilities

41,3 The sales percentage by geographic region is as follows:

Fakistan

2025 2024
Rs. in 000s
501,964 141,535
75,602 23,811
577,566 165,346
499 529 137,180
75,602 23,811
(189,378) (61,574)
(79,259) (19,887)
306,494 79,530
2,046,815 1,953,923
1,481,841 1,637,307
3,528,655 3,591,230
12,374 208,186
349,644 412174
362,018 620,360
2025 2024
% %
A A

41.4 There is no individual customer from whom more than 10% of total revenue is received.

41.5 All non-current assets of the Company as at reporting date are located in Pakistan.

ar




42 Transactions and Balances with Related Parties
The related parties of the Company are as follows:

Basis of relationship]
Names of Related Parties Relationship (percentage shareholding or

common directorship)

LSE Ventures Limited Associated Company 27.78%

LSE Financial Services Limited Associated Company Common directorship

LSE SPAC-1 Limited Wheally owned Subsidiary Company 100.00%

Digita! Custodian Company Limited Associated Company 42.50%

Mr. Shoaib Mir Chairman/independent Director Commaon directorship

Mr. Aftab Ahmad Chie’ Executive Officer Common directorship

Ms. Aasiva Riaz Non-Executive Director Common directorship

Mr. Muhamad Igbal Non-Executive Director Common direciorship:

Ms. Shumaila Siddique Independent Director Commeon directorship

Mr. Yaser Manzoor Non-Executive Director Common directorshig

Mr. Agun Muhammad Non-Executive Director Commeon directorship

Lahore Stock Exchange Limited - "

Emo Fund Trust Post employment benefits Employee's fund

Related parties include associated entities, directors and their close family members and other key management personnel. Balances with related parties are disclosed in
respective notes. Details of transactions with related parties during the year, other than those which have been disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, are as

follows
Names of Related Parties Mature of Transactions Relationship 2025 04
Rs. in 000s
LSE SPAC-| Limited Investment during the year Wholly owned 10,000 i
Subsidiary Company

LSE Financial Services Limited (LSEFSL)
Expenses paid by the company on benalf of LSEFSL Common Directorship 3,886 9,407
Reimbursement of expenses paid 4,421 407
Expenses paid by the LSEFSL on behalf of the company - 24633
Advance received 29,689 .
Markup Expensa on Advance 2,456
Equity management fee charged to the party 6,208 -
Dividend paid to the party 5,000 3
MTS invesiment made during the year 170,000 48 964
MTS Investment reversed during the year 183,821 31,320
MTS income received 4783 2523

LSE Ventures Limited (LSE VL) Expenses paid by the company on behalf of party Associated Company 43,813 52,522
Reimbursement of expenses paid 38,128 42248
Payment made for investment - £3.000
Payment againsi invesiment recefved back 7,740 20,000
Advance received 162,613 100,000
Advance refunded 157,000 -
Advisory services charged 1o the party 10,500 -
Equity management fee charged to the party 31,250 .
Dividend received from the party 48,172 -
Dividend paid to the parly 11,165 -
Markup Expense on Advance received 14,885 8,100

Digital Custodian Company Limited Funds provided to the party Associated Company 20,695 4427
Interest income charged to the party 2,242 1,579
Equity management fee charged to the party 9,094 -
Expenses borne by the company on behalf of the party 565 -
Shares registrar services provided by the party 133 152

Lahore Stock Exchange Limited - Total Coniribution made during the year Employee's fund 5,619 1,225

Employees' Provident Fund Trust

o




Key management personnel Salary & other benefits of CEQ 11,666 11,827
Loan received from CEQ . 100,000
Loan paid back to CED 100,000 3,750
Interest on loan paid to CEQ 12,542 4,958
Director's meeting fee 1,175 1,825

Balances outstanding as at,

Financial Asset - current assets

MTS Investment Through LSE Financial Services Limited - 17,644

Trade and Other Receivables

Receivable from Digital Custodian Company Limited 32,596 4427

Other liabilities

Payable against Sale and lease back to chief executive 14,000 14,000

Payable against Sale and lease back to Digital Custodian Company Limited, an associated company 5,500 5,500

Trade and other payables

Payable to LSE Venture Limited 79,288 88,338

Payable to LSE Financial Services Limited 24115 -

Accrued markup on financing

Payable to LSE Venture Limited 14,885 2,100

Payable to LSE Financial Services Limited 2,456 .

43 Remuneration of Chief Executive Officer, Directors and Executives
The aggregate amount charged in these financial statement for the year for remuneration, including benefits to chief executive of the company is as follows:

Chief Executive Officer Directors Executives Total
2025 | 2024 025 | 2004 025 | 2024 2025 | 2024
Rs. in 000s

Managerial remuneration 5,088 6,815 - - 7,964 12,683 13,052 19,498
Company's contribution to
the providant fund trust 508 682 - - T96 1,207 1,305 1,889
Housing and utilities 2,798 3748 - . 4,380 6,976 7178 10,724
Meeting fees - - 1,178 1925 - - 1175 1,925
QOthers 32N 6a2 5 45 3,115 2420 6,437 347

11,666 11,927 1,226 1,970 16,255 23,286 29,147 37,183
Number of persons { 1 [ 7 = 15 16 24

431  In addition to the above, Chief Executive is provided with the Company's maintained vehicle for official purposes only.
432  An Executive is defined as an employee, other than the chief executive oficer and directors, whose basic salary exceeds Rs. 1.2 million in a financial year.

44 MNumber of Employees 2025 2024
Total number of employees at the year end 63 68
Average number of employees during the year 65 68

45 Date of Authorization For Issue
These financial statements have been authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on November 01, 2025,

45 General

4.1 Comparative figures are re-aranged | reclassified, wherever necessary, to facilitate comparison. No major re-arangement has been made in the coresponding
figures in these financial stalements.
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INDE AUDITORS' T

To the members of LSE Capital Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements of LSE Capital Limited (“the Holding
Company”) and its subsidiary (“the Group"), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at June 30, 2025, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity, the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including material
accounting policy information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at June 30, 2025 ond of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as

applicable in Pakistan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) os applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the oudit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consclidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Following are the Key Audit Matter(s):

5r.No. | Key Audit Matter(s)

| _ " | How the Matter was addressed in our audit
i1 | Investments and financial assets

"~ Refer 1o notes 6 and 11 of the consolidated | » Assessed the design and fested the operating
| financial statements. effectiveness of key controls in place reloting to
valuation of investments;

| The carrying omount of invesiments and
| financial assets held by the Company omounted | §  Checked on @ test basis the valuation of

i to Rs. 1,557.137 million which constitutes | investments, recognition of proportionate share of
| 43.85% of the total assets os at June 30, 2025. post-acquisition post tax profits and other
. ) ) - comprehensive income of investees as recorded in |
! The significant portion of investments comprise _ the general ledger to supporting documents, !
| of investment in subsidiary company, associates, externally quoted market prices, break-up values, |
listed & unlisted equity securities and musharika | ey
| financing. b e . |

Other Offices at:  Karachi - Faisalabad - Islamabad
Web site: www. krestonhb.com

A member of Kreston Global
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s

Investments and other finonciol assets are

| carried under equity methed, foir value or

| amortized

cost in  acccordance with  the

| Company's occounting policy relating to their
| recognition ond measurement, Provision against

investments is based on impairment policy of the

Checking the existence of shares from the Central '
Depository Company's report.

Obtained independent confirmations fer verifying
the existence of investments portfolio as at June |
30, 2025 and reconciled it with the books and

Company which includes both subjective and

{ records of the Company. Where such
' objective factors. |

confirmations were not available, aolterncte

procedures were performed;

We identified assessing carrying value of the

investment as o key oudit matter because of its |

significance to the consolidated financial |

statements and because assessing the fair value |

{ and the key impairment assumptions involves o
significant degree of monagement judgement.

Obtained duly executed musharika financing
covenant entered into with the party and checked
underlying terms & conditions attaching thereto as
regards to omount of loan, tener, pricing and |
collateral requirements; 5

| « Obtained independent confirmation from the third |

party for verifying the existence and valuation of |
| musharika finance provided as at June 30, 2025 |
| and reconciled it with the books and records of |
| the Company; -

| Evaluated the Company's assessment for
i ' impairment, if any including those securities that
; are not traded octively in market in accordance
i | with the occounting and reporting stondards as
applicable in Pakistan and performed an
independent assessment of the assumptions and

conclusions; and

| Considered the Company’s disclosures of investments in
| accordance with the requirements of the accounting |
| and reporting standards as applicable in Pokistan.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consclidated financial statements and auditor's
report thereon.

Our opinien en the consolidated financial statements deoes not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Other Offices at:  Karachi - Faisalabad - 1slamabad
Web site: www. krestonhb.com

A member of Kreston Global
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Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the
Companies Act, 2017 and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of Consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error.

In preparing the consclidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's
ability to continue os a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consclidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and te issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as cpplicable in Pakistan will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We alse:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
o material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the averride of internal control.

s Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinien on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control,

e Evaoluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

s Conclude on the oppropriateness of management’s use of the geing concern basis of occounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that @ material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our ouditer's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inodequate, to modify eur opinien. Our conclusions are baosed on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue os o going concern.

s Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consclidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated finoncial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
o manner that achieves fair presentation.

Other Offices at:  Karachi - Faisalabad - Islamabad
Web site: www.krestonhb.com

A member of Kreston Global
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» Obtain suffident oppropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consclidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group oudit. We remain solely responsible for our audit

opinion,

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, ameng other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
oudit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal contrel that we identify during our

audit.

We also provide to the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicoted with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters, We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that @ matter should not be communicated in our
report because the cdverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to cutweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Muhammad Usman Shah, FCA.

L S
M:u:ﬁ H’"‘téﬂf £)!" PJ ;
LAHORE: November 01, 2025 KRESTOMN HYDER BRIMJI& CO.
UDIN: AR202510269KEeyvudx0 CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
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: LSE CAPITAL LIMITED

ANGIAL Pl T I

2024
Note Rs. in 000s
ASSETS
Non Current Assets
Property and equipment 4 1,322,993 1,321,382
Right of use asset 5 45704 57129
Investment in associated companies 8 1,065,510 586,024
Investment property 7 456,276 3g2122
Mel investment in finance lease 8 4274 4275
Long term depasits 9 2,718 548
2,897 476 2,671,490
Current Assets
Inventories 10 2,442 2411
Financial assets 1 481,627 640,047
Trade and other receivables 12 55,118 42160
Advances, deposits and prepayments 13 25,352 14,175
Tax refunds due from the Government - net 14 24 846 28,935
Cash and bank balances 15 41,398 192,012
630,783 919,740
TOTAL ASSETS
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES — a0 29120,
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Authorized Share Capital
200,000,000 (2024: 200,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 16 2,000,000 2,000,000
50,000,000 (2024: 50,000,000) preference shares of Rs. 10 each 500,000 500,000
Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital 16 1,811,534 1811534
Capital Reserves:
- Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment 17 74,624 75,822
- Building reserve fund 18 6,593 1,682
- Merger reserve 289,814 289,814
- Fair value reserve 63,891 20,223
Revenue Reserve:
- Unappropriated profit 919,735 771,795
1,354,657 1,159,336
Total Equity 3,166,191 2,970,870
MNon Current Liabilities
Long term financing 20 36,670 70,450
Other liabilities 21 43,005 35,2680
Deferred tax liability 22 83,594 43,075
163,359 148,805
Current Liabilities:
Trade and other payables 23 133,295 330,880
Cument portion of long term financing 24 33,78 26,284
Loan from director 25 - 100,000
Accrued markup on financing 26 17,624 3.852
Unclaimed dividend 13,809 10,359
198,709 471,555
Contingencies and Commitments I
TOTAL EQUITY AND ITIES 3.528 zﬂ 31591230
The annexed n 46 form an integral part of the: ements.

e
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LSE CAPITAL LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS FOR EAR ENDED 2025
2025 2024
Note Rs. in 000s

Revenue 2B 145,428 35,191
Operating Expenses

Administrative and general expenses 29 (189,977) (61,574)
Other expenses 30 (2,435) (4,355)
Operating Loss (46,984) (30,738)
Other income 31 326,206 96,679
Income from associates 32 106,087 33,476
Profit Before Interest, Levy and Taxation 385,309 99,417
Finance cost 33 (79,259) (19,887)
Profit Before Levy and Taxation 306,050 79,530
Levy 34 (20,593) (10,669)
Profit Before Taxation 285,057 68,861
Taxation 35 (46,916) 52,145
Net Profit After Taxation 238,141 121,006
Earnings Per Share - Basic and Diluted 36 131 2.66
The annexed notes ffom 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.
™
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LSE CAPITAL LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

2025 2024
Note Rs. in 000s
Net Profit After Taxation 238,141 121,006
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that can not be reclassified to profit or loss
Surplus arose on fresh revaluation of land and building A 85,615
Impact of related deferred tax . (9,793)
Items that may be subsequently reclassified to orl
Share in OCI of associate - net of tax 6.4 51,374 23,792
Impact of deferred tax 223 (7,708) (3,569)
43,668 96,045
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year Zﬁilﬁﬂﬁ 217,051

The annexed notes fgem 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.

o
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Capital Reserves Revenue Reserve
Surplus on Total
Share Capital | Reyaluation of Building Marger Fairvalue | Unappropristed | Reserves | Ot EQUty
Property and Reserve Resarve Reserve Profit
Equipment
Mote "Rs. in 000s

Balance as at June 30, 2023 210,000 . - - 48,118 24 B5T T2.175 275
Transacfions between the interim period transferred fo retained aarmings
as per merger scheme - - - . 6,730 580 7310 7310
Adjustments / Transfers as per scheme of merger 1,601,534 - - 289,814 (54,848) fi56,341 801,307 2492 B41
Adjustments related to pre-merger transactions - - - . - (1,645) {1,645) (1,645)

Reclassification to profit or loss from other comprehensive income on

disposal of investment in associales . . (20,380)  (20,380) {20,380)

Met Profit afer taxation A x s = . 121,006 121,006 121,008
Other comprenensive income - 75,822 - - 2022 - 06,045 96,045
Total comprehensive income for the year - 75,822 - - 0,283 121,006 217,051 217,051
Cost incurred in raising capital under merger scheme - - . - . (8, 380) (8,380) {8,380)
Amount collected from building occupants for fned assets replacement
fund 18 : 1,682 . . (3B4) 1,28 1,258
Balance as at June 30, 2024 1,811,534 75,822 1,682 280,814 20,223 771,795 1,159,336 2970870
et profit after taxation 5 : . . - 238141 238,141 238,141
Other comprehensive income - - ~ " 43 6658 - 43 668 43,668
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - . 43,668 238,141 281,809 781,809
WMMMWHMMWI " : c 4911 . " (822) 4,089 4,080
Realization of revaluation surphes on property and equipment through y (1,188) 2 2 2 1,198 . i
depreciation (net of tax) ! :
Transactions with owners of the Company
Cash dividend @ Rs. 0.50 per share for the year ended June 30, 2024 . - - . - (90,577) (90,577} (90,577)
P,
3 1,811,534 S TAEM 6,593 289 814 £3,891 919735 1354857 3,166,191
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LSE CAPITAL LIMITED

LIDATED STAT 3 H FL FOR THE 25
2025 2024
Note Rs. in 000s
Cash (Used in) | Generated from Operations kT (247 365) 52,831
Finance cost paid (65,387) (23.839)
Income tax paid (30,517) (4,914
Met Cash (Used in) / Generated from Operating Activities (343,269) 24078
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment 328 2,500
Proceeds from disposal of right of use asset ; . 7,800
Cash and cash equivalents - profit on saving bank accounts H 6,778 440
Purchase of operating fixed assets 4 (21,746) (8,778)
Capital work in progress incurred 4 (166) (175)
Running musharikah financing provided during the year 1" (50,000) (300,000)
Proceeds from encashment of investments - net 356,332 -
Disbursement of advance for purchase of unlisted securities 12 {60,000) -
Proceeds from disposal of investment in Ensmile Limited - 205,000
Investment made in the share capital of associated companies 6 (60,197) (222)
Investment realized / (made) in Margin Trading system through LSEFSL 17,644 (17,644)
Net investment in finance lease - rentals 43 -
Return received on musharikah financing 125,600 12,026
Rentals received during the year 39,024 22,781
Dividend recaived 50,205 2
Long term deposits paid 9 (2,171) (548)
Net Cash Generated from / (Used in) Investing Activities 401,974 (76,820
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Loan (repaid) / obtained from director 25 (100,000) 100,000
Long term financing obtainad during the year 20 - 100,000
Repayment of long term financing 20 (26,283) (3,266)
Dividend paid during the year (87,127) -
Amounts collected from building occupants against Building reserve 18 4,089 1,208
Net Cash (Used in) / Generated from Financing Activities (208,321) 198,032
Net (Decrease) | Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (150,614) 145,290
Cash received from merging entities . 46,633
Cash and cash equivalenis at beginning of the year 15 192,012 89
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 15 41,398 192,012
The annexed from 1 to 46 form an integral financial statements.
Lt

\

CHIEF EXEC OFFICER CHIEF FINAN FICER




LSE CAPITAL LIMITED

* 1 Legal Status and its Nature of Business

The Group comprises of
- LSE Capital Limited ("the Holding Company”); and
- LSE SPAC-1 Limited ("the wholly owned Subsidiary Company’), collectively referred to as “the Group”.

11

12

LSE Capital Limited is the newly adopted name of the Modaraba Management Company, which was registered as JS Finance Limited on Jan 22,
1986. The company's name was changed to Bank Islamic Modaraba Investments Limited (BIMIL) after the acquisition of its 100% equity by Bank
Islamic Limited during November 07, 2007,

Aﬂuhamuisl«timofEIHILh-,rmammspnnmn.mammymﬁrstmdAqumhutialardnngadilsnmhLEECapitd
Limited during 2023. Later, under the Court sanctioned scheme of merger, Modaraba Al-Mali and LSE PropTech Limited were merged with/into
LSE Capital Limited, which acquired the listing status at PSX on May 24,2024 as a consequence of its merger. Tne Company is licensed as 2
Modaraba Management company, besides camying the license to act as a consultant to the issue for the IPOs and corporate finance advisory
services.

The company also holds the licenses of Modaraba Management Company as well as the Consultant to the Issue. It managed the erstwhile
Modaraba Al-Mali, which was merged in LSE Capital on April 03, 2024 under sanctioned merger order of Lahore High Court no. 72878 | 2023
dated April 03, 2024.

The company's registered office is located at The Exchange Hub, LSE Plaza, 19, Khayaban-e-Aiwan-e-igbal, Lahore.

The geographical locaticn and address of the Company is as under:

Business Unit Geographical Location
Head office / Registered Office ' The Exchange Hub, LSE Plaza, 19, Khayaban-e-Aiwan-g-igbal, Lahare.
Data Texdile operational office

LSE SPAC-1 Limited ("the Company”) was registered on March 09, 2025 as a public unlisted company limited by shares under the Companies Act,
2017. The registered office and principal place of business of the Company is situated at LSE Plaza, The Exchange Hub, 18-Kashmir Egerton,
Lahore, Pakistan. The company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Mess-s. LSE Capital Limited, the Holding Company.

The principal line of business of the company is to raise funds from investors and utilize those funds for merger and acquisition of company /
companies within the permitted time frame, as per the Public Offering Regulations, 2017.

2. Basis of Preparation

2.1

2.2

23

Consolidated financial statements

These consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies. These
consolidated financial statements have been prepared from the information available in the separate audited financial statements of the Helding
Company and its Subsidiary for the year ended June 30, 2025. The accounting policies used by the Subsidiary in preparation of its financial
statements are consistznt with that of the Holding Company.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all enfities (including structured entities) over which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through ils power to direct
the activities of the entity, The subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Holding Company
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

The financial statements of the subsidiary companies have been consolidated on a line-by-line basis and the carying values of investment held by
the Holding Company have been eliminated against the shareholders’ equity in the subsidiary. Intra-Group balances and transactions, and any
unrealized income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions, are eliminated in full

Non-controlling interests

Mon-controlling interests are measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree's identifiable net assels al the date of acquisition. Changes in
the Holding Company's interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions.

o




24 Business combination

Business combinations are accounted for by applying the acquisition method. The cost of acquisition is measured as the fair value of assets given,
equity instruments issued and the liabiliies incurred or assumed at the date of acquisition. The consideration transfered includes the fair value of
anyamtwiﬂﬁtymwhgﬂumawnﬁngﬂmnﬁdmﬁmmnﬂﬂw, Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured iniially at their fair values at the
acquisition date.

The excess of the consideration transferred over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If this is less than the
fair value of the net assets acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognized directly in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

25 Loss of control
On the loss of control, the Group derecognizes the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, any non controlling interests and other components of
equity related to the subsidiary. Any surplus or deficit arising on the loss of control is recognized in consolidated statement of profit or loss. In
addiion, any amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income in respect of that subsidiary are reclassified lo the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. If the Group retains any interest in the previous subsidiary, then such interest is measured at fair value at the date that
control is lost. Subsequently that retained interest is accounted for as an equity-accounted investee, joint venture or as an available for sale
financial asset depending on the level of influence retained.

26  Statement of compliance
ThaseﬁnandalmuhawmwlnmmmmﬂgwmmmﬁwﬁMhFakisim.‘rha
accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (lASE) as nofified under the
Companies Act, 2017,
Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS3, the provisions of and directives issued under the
Companies Act, 2017 have been followed. .

These financial statements provide comparative information in respect of the previous year. In addition when there is a retrospective application of
an accounting policy, a retrospective restatement, or a reclassification of items in the financial statements has been made.
27 Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention without taking into account the effects for inflation or current
values, except to the extent of following:

Note
Net investment in finance lease ] (stated at Present value)
Certain property and equipment 4 (stated at Fair value)
Investment property 7 (stated at Fair value)
Financial Assets 1 (stated at Fair value and certain at amortized cost)
Trade and other receivables 12 {stated at carrying amount less impairment for
expected credit loss)
Investment in associates ] (stated at equity method)
Inveniories 10 (stated at lower of cost and net realizable value)
Certain liabilities and payables 23 (stated at amoriized cost)
Deferred tax liability 22 (stated as per |AS-12 "Income taxes”)
Provisions 23.3 (stated as per best estimate)
Right of use asset b (stated at present value of future lease payments)
Lease liability 20 (stated at present value of future lease payments)

28 Presentation and functional currency

These financial statements are prepared and presented in Pak Rupees (Rs.) which is the Group's functional and presentation currency. In these
financial stataments, all the figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand of Rupees, unless otherwise stated.
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23 Use of significant accounting judgement, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting and reporting standards, as applicable in Pakistan, requires the use of certain
criical accounting estimates. It also requires the management.lo exercise its judgments, make estimates and assumptions in the process of
applying the Group's accounting policies that affect the reported amounis of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. These estimates and related
assumptions are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and various other factors including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making judgments about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.

These estimates and related assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Accounting estimates are revised in the period in which such
mﬁmnaammada.InIiupumnfappiyingMGw%mmm.mwmmmmmmwmmm
which are significant to these financial statements:

Property and equipment

The depreciation method and useful lives of property and equipment are reviewed by the management, at each financial year-end and these
estimates are adjusted or revised if appropriate. The effect of any adjustment to useful lives and methods of these estimates are recognized
prospectively or revised as a change in accounting estimate. In making these estimates, the Group uses the technical resources available with it
Anymmguin'maﬁmnmmmmmmmmmmmmmnrmmmmmmemmgm
on the depreciation / amertization charge and impairment, if any. )

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that property and equipment are impaired. If such indication exists, the
m‘ﬂngmunlsnfwdimbmmmmmmhwmmh&mmmhmmmt

Allowance for expected credit losses

The allowance for expected credit losses assessment requires a degree of estimation and judgement. It is based on the lifetime expected credit
loss, grouped based on days overdue, and makes assumptions to allocate an overall expected credit loss rate for each group. These assumptions
include historical collection rates and forward looking information for macro economic factors .e. interest rates, inflation rates, unemployment rates,
GDP rates etc. ,

Impairment of financial assets ;

Impairment of finaricial assets is assessed by reviewing their market prices and the indicators used to determine the recoverable amounts of the
financial assets. Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased
or no lenger exists.

Provisions

Provisions are based on best estimate of the expenditure required to settie the present obligation at the reporting date, that is, the amount that the
GmupmuldrmtypaybsaﬂiaImanhligaﬁunﬂﬂ'nmpmﬁngdatearmmmiltnaﬂuiﬂpm.

Stores and spares
Provision for slow moving, damaged and obsolete items and their ne! realizable value are based on management estimate.
Staff retiremant benefits

The Group considars the salary scale of each employee eligible under the provident fund scheme and its employment status on monthly basis to
ensure the adequacy of expense and related liability on account of provident fund.

Income taxes

In matingIhaasﬁmﬁshrmmwMMW.MMWMMWHmmwthmMWM
authrities on certain cases issued in the past. These estimates also include impacts of the decisions of appellate authorities about the benefits that
become recoupable upon any change in tax structure of the Group. i :

Contingencies

The assessment of the contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgment as the outcome of the future events cannot be
predicted with certainty. The Group, based on the availability of the latest information, estimates the value of contingent assets and lizbilities which
may differ on the occurrence | non-occurrence of the uncertain future events. i
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Valuation of investments measured at FVPL

210
2101

2102

2103

The Group has recorded its investments measured at FVPL by using quotations from Pakistan Stock Exchange. This valuation is subjective to
market price fluctuation and therefore, cannot be determined with precision.

Investment in Subsidiaries and Associates

Investment in subsidiaries are carried under cost whereas investment in associates is accounted for under equity method in accordance with the
Group's accounting policy relating to their recognition and measurement. Provision against investments is based on impairment policy of the Group
which includes both subjective and objective factors,

Investment Property

The assessment of fair value is subjective and is dependent on various factors including but not limited to; survey's of similar properties in the
neighborhood by the valuer, demand and market conditions, location and vicinity of the property, sale and purchase trend prevalent in the market,
inflation and growth rates etc. The effect of any changes in estimate is accounted for on a prospective basis. Further, determining adjustments for
any differences in nature, location and condition of the investment property involves significant adjustment.

However, the management believes that the change in outcome of estimates would not have a material effect on the amounts disclosed in these
Mew standards, interpretations of and amendments to published approved accounting standards
Standards, interpretations of and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are effective in the current year:

There are certain amendments to the published approved accounting standards that are effective in the current year. However, these do not have
any significant impact on the Group's operations and, therefore, have not been detailed in these financial statements.

Effective date (annual

pertods beginning on or

ahter)
Amendments to IFRS 16 'Leases' - Amendments to clarify how a seller-lessee subsequently measures sale and January 01, 2024
leaseback transactions N
Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements’ - Classification of liabiliies as current or non-curent January 01, 2024
Amendments to IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ - Non-current liabilities with covenants January 01, 2024
Amendments to IAS 7 ‘Statement of Cash Flows' - Supplier finance arrangements January 01, 2024
Amendments to IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' - Supplier finance arrangements January 01, 2024

New accounting standards, amendments and interpretations that are not yet effective

There are certain other new and amended standards, interpretations and amendments that are mandatory for the Group's
accounting periods beginning on or after January 01, 2025 but are considered not to be relevant or will not have any
significant effect on the Group's operations and are, therefore, not detailed in these financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures' - Amendments regarding the classification and measurement  January 01, 2026
of financial instruments

Amendments to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments’ - Amendments regarding the classification and measurement of financial  January 01, 2026
instruments

Amendments to IFRS 10 'Consolidated financial statements’ January 01, 2026
Amendments o IAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates' - Lack of Exchangeability January 01, 2025
IFRS 17 Insurance Coniracts January 01, 2026
IAS 7 (Statement of Cash Flows) January 01, 2026
IFRS 18 'Presentation and Disclosures in Financial Statements'. January 01, 2027
IFRS 19 'Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures’. January 01, 2027
IFRS 51 'General Requirements for Disclosure of Sustainability-related Financial Information’. January 01, 2027
IFRS 52 'Climate-related Disclosures’. January 01, 2027

In addition to the above, the IASB has issued the following standards and inferpretations which, as of June 30, 2025, have not been notified by the
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) for local adoption. The Group will evaluate the impact of these pronouncements once
they are notified for application in Pakistan.

IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards

IFRIC 12 Servica Concession Arrangements
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. 3 Material Accounting Policy Information

ThammunlhgpoikﬁaaadoptadinmapWNMMdmnﬂmm.mmmmmmﬂymwﬂ
accounting pencds presented, unless otherwise siated.

a1

Property and equipment

Recognition and measuremant

Property and equipment, except freehold land and building on freeheld land, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciaion and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Freehold land and building on freehold land is stated at revalued amount, being the fair value at the date of their
revaluation, less subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

mmmmmwmmmrﬁmmMmminghmmmmmwummmmh
costs of bringing the assets fo their working condition.

Freehold land and buildings on freehold land are revalued every three to five years. Any accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is
gliminated ag:inst'dugmssmyingmﬂdhmmm&mmmhmﬁmﬁhhmm amount of the asset. Additions,
subsequent to revaluation, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any identified impairment loss.

Any revaluation increass arising on the revaluation of land and buildings on freehold land is recognized in other comprehensive income and
presented as a separats component of equity as “Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment”, except to the extent that it reverses a
revaluation decrease for the same asset previously recognized in profit or loss, in which case the increase is credited to profit or loss to the extent
of the decrease previously charged. Any decrease in carrying amount arising on the revaluation of land and building on freehold land is charged to
statement of profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, held in the surplus on revaluation of property and equipment relating to a
previous revaluation of that asset.

Each year, the incremental depreciation and its related deferred taxafion, the difference between depreciation based on revalued cammying amount
of the asset and depreciation based on the asset's original cost, is transferred from surplus on revaluation of property and equipment to retained
eamings. All transfers from surplus on revaluation of property and equipment are net of applicable deferred taxation. Upon disposal, any
revaluation surplus relating to the particular asset being sold is transfemed to retained eamings.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and cost of the ilem can be measured reliably. All other day to day
maintenance and normal repairs are charged to statement of profit of loss as and when incurred. Gains or losses on disposal of proparty and
equipment are included in profit or loss. y '

Depreciation

Depreciation on property and equipment, except land, is charged to statement of profit or loss on the reducing balance method so as to vrite off the
depreciable amount of an asset over its economic useful life using the annual rates mentioned in note 5.1, Depreciation on additions is charged
from the month in which the asset is available for use, whereas no depreciation is charged on assets disposed off during the month.

Impairment

Where carmying amounts exceed the respective recoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amounts and the impairment loss
is recognized in the statsment of profit or loss. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less cost to sell and value in use.
Where an impairment loss is recognized, the depreciation charge is adjusted in future years to allocate the asset's revised carrying amount over its
estimated useful life.

Disposal

An item of property and equipment is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expacted from its use. Disposal of an
asset is recognized when significant risk and rewards, incidental to the ownership of an asset, have been transferred lo the buyer. The gain or loss
on disposal or retirement of property and equipment is represented by the difference between the saie proceeds and the camrying amount of the
property and equipment and is recognized as an income or expense in the year of disposal in statement of profit or loss. In case of sale or
retirement of a revalued property, the attributable revaluation surplus remaining in the surpius on revaluation is transferred directly to retained
eamings.
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Capital work in progress

Capital m‘u—in-pmgresaisstatadatmﬁhumwMimithMWﬂMNmnmmwmmmmm
irmﬂlaﬁnnmmnsuwtimp-m"budnwﬁadundawqihlmrtingmm.cwmﬁnlndWWWMHmy.ﬂmmm
to operating fixed assets as and when these are available for use.

Investment property ;

Investment Property is property held either to eam rental income or for capital appreciation or for both, but not for sale in ordinary course of
business, use in production or supply of goods or services as for adminisirative purpose.

The Group's investment property comprises of land and building which is carried at fair value less identified impairment loss, if any.
An investment property is initially recognized at cost which is the fair value of the consideration paid. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
property whose fair value can be measured reliably without undue cost or effort on an ongoing basis is measured at fair value, at each reporting

data.Thedmgasiniafnaluanmmgm:adhmmmmmﬁtmhﬁs.mmlnwﬁmtmﬂmmndmmmtm
measured reliably without undue cost or effort) is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment loss.

Thatirvﬂuﬂnuaﬂnaﬂpmpeﬁyﬁrhiﬂﬂmmgniﬁm!hmﬁmismmmuand-oiwdiym'wngmrmmmmshr
maﬂumﬂaﬂﬂ.ﬂimhﬁhmydﬁmnmhndum.hcaﬁmandmﬁon.mammdm&mmammﬂbrm
Mdapandnntmdmﬁimﬁﬂwmhbmkufwﬂaﬁmﬁmtaﬂamﬂtvﬂmndisdm&dhm?.1nf’d'mﬁnmcial
statements.

An investment property is derecognized on disposal or when its nature of substance is changed ie. it becomes owner occupied property and
trmstufmdhup&r.emgﬁxadmatsomh&nnnfulurammnicbaﬂafdsuemtpnmdﬁmﬂssda.magahnrmmdapnsﬂmmtmmmm
hmrmmmmwmhdhfmdiﬁmmmmammwhmﬁmmmmniadmmimmmh
the statement of profit or loss.

Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of ancther entity.

Financial assets

All financial assets are recognized at the time when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Regular purchases
and sales of financial assets are recognized and derecognized, as applicable, using trade-date accounting or selement date accounting. All
wmﬁwwmmmmﬂmmmdmmmummhhdmmmsmmﬁuumm«m&mmm

Classification

Financial assels are classified in either of the three categories: at amortized cost, at fair value through other comprehensive income and at fair
uiuammunhpmﬁlnrhuﬂumnﬂy.ﬂ'mﬁmpdaﬂﬂuhﬁnmﬁdmtsatm:ﬁmdmﬁmdf&'rmlwughpmﬁturmms
classification is based on the Group's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
financial asset. The management determines the classification of its financial assets at the time of initial recognition.

Amortized cost

Assets that are held for collection of confractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortized cost. Interest income from these financial assets, impairment losses, foreign exchange gains and losses, and gain or loss
arising on derecognition are recognized directly in profit or loss. -

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

Finmmmauakvdmmmmmmmmmmmmm;mmmmmhmmwmm
wm-aduatmhﬂmanduailingfinamialmwhmtﬂmdmnmﬁetgmmmwﬁwuaHhmhmm:
a’esdaiypaywmnfpﬂndpaiwmmmﬁmhmdpdmﬂmm.wmmaMMWmmnm
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recognized in profit or loss,
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. Fair value through profit or loss (FVPL)

Asmslhatﬁunntrrmtheu'ilmiaI‘nralmrtizedm::rfairvﬂuammughumﬁrmmhmmmmmmamduignmmﬁrﬂua
ﬂ'mmhpmﬁtnrhssuaingI‘airvalmopﬁun.mmahﬁﬂmtm@mﬁwm.ﬁgﬁnmmmdmhmm!hmm
measured at fair value through profit or loss is recognized in profit or loss in the period in which it arises. Equity instrument financial assets are
measured at fair value at and subsequent to initial recognition. Changes in fair value of these financial assets are normally recognized in profit or
luss.D&n.riﬂandsframmhm-.-ash'rm‘lsmrﬁnuntnbemmgnizadhmﬁnrhmﬂmhﬁm‘srﬂﬁhmﬂmﬂhmm.m
mdncﬁmhmdahmehivdwmwmmmanyMMhuﬂmmmpmhm.hﬂismsubauquanl
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following the derecognition of the irvestment.

Initial recognition and measurement

Except for trade receivables, financial assets are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair
value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value and transaction costs are
axpensed in the profit and loss. Trade receivables are initially measured at the transaction price if these do not contain a significant financing
component in accordance with IFRS 15.

Subsequent measurement

Financial assets camried at amortized cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest method. The amortized cost is reduced by
m-ppa‘mlossaa.ifmy.lntmstirmmfromlhuina’tclalum.wgnmgwwm;wiwimhmmmnmm
the statement of profit or loss. '

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently measured at fair value prevaiiing at the reporting date. The
difference in fair value and dividends arising on equity instruments are charged to the statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value mwmmmm“mhmmuﬁngmmmmwmminm
statement of financial position at fair value. Net gains and losses arising on changes in fair values of these financial assets are recognized in other
oomprahanshuinmma.1nlnm5[cﬂmlmdmmMMimmmmhmhmmdMNMMMm
instruments are credited to the statement of profit or loss when the Group's right to receive payments is established.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognized when:
- the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired; or
- the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash fiows in ful
without material delay o a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement, and either: :
a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset. or
h}lhaerphasnnﬂ'larmmrradmrralninadwbshﬁdﬁilﬂmﬁstarﬂrmﬂsﬂhmthﬂhmtmﬂmdmmdhuﬂ.

The difference between the carrying amount and the consideration received is recognized in staternent of profit or loss for all the financial assets
carried at amortized cost, FVPL and FVOCL. In case of financial assets carried at FVOCI cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCl is
mdmﬁadIJ;pmﬁuhﬂ.amﬂlnraquityiumnmmmwmdhmmm“nmmmmlunmwnwm.

If the Group transfers a financial asset in a transfer that qualifies for derecognition in its entirety and retains the right to service the financial asset
for a fee, it recognizes either a servicing asset or a servicing liability for that servicing contract.

Whmﬂ'nﬁmuphastramfamadrbiriymmmmMMMMmﬂuthMimammwmﬁmmﬂ.m
to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transfemred nor retained substantially all of the risks and
rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues o recognize the transfermed asset to the extent of its continuing
hudwrrmtlnmatm.meﬁmupabommmsmmmdlmﬁnMHnmlbanﬁmmmammmmmw
the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained

o




3345

32185

332

321

Gunﬁnuingirrmhmwtmalammufumulaguaantwumhhmmwmmmmmnmbwuflrnuigmswmngwmﬂnfha
asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

If the Group's continuing invoivement is in only a part of a financial asset, the Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset
bammmnpanitmnﬁnmwremg-lizaundurmnﬁnﬁngmmml.wmapmnmbmmmgnmmhabﬁmfmmmﬂm
nfhmpﬂnnhdﬁufhkuﬁu.hdmmMwmmﬂdmmmmmuhmhmmnmwm
consideration received for the part no longer recognized is recognized in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognizes an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all financial assets which are measured at amortized cost. The Group
assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its financial assets. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation
of the original effective interest rate.

ECLs are recognized in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, imespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL). |

For trade receivables, the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Group does not frack changes in credit risk, but
inshadmmgﬁmabssilumbﬂﬂdmlﬂe&mEﬂLsntumhmmﬁmdﬁ.%ﬁmphmﬂﬂiﬂnﬁawuﬁﬁmnﬁhhdisbasadm
its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

Individually significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. The remaining financial assets are assessed collectively in
groups that share similar credit risk characleristics.
ThaGroupramgniminpmﬁtnrlnss.asanmmhu[wmdimm}.mmdawmdhmwmm
impairment) that is required o adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows. :

Reclassification
When the Group changes its business model for managing financial assets, it reclassifies all affected financial assets accordingly. The Group
applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date.

hnmanfrodmsiﬁndimuutufmaemrﬁm:lmﬂmsummntuﬂngwaﬂﬂuﬁmghwﬁuhwmmtﬂaﬁw.fﬁﬂnf
the financial asset is measured at the reclassification date. Any gain or loss arising from a difference between the previous amortized cost and fair
value is recognized in profit or loss.

In case of reclassificaion out of fair value through Murmthhmmmmﬂmﬂmtm.ﬁmm
the financial asset at the reclassification date becomes its new gross camying amount.

In case of reclassification out of fair value through other comprehensive income measurement category to the amortized cost measurement
catagnr]r.maﬂnmmhmdmiﬁ&daﬁuﬁwduaatmmmmﬂm.mm.mwmwﬂrmmmh
other comprehensive income is removed from equity and adjusted against the fair value of the financial assel at the reclassification date. The
effectiva interest rate and the measurement of expected credit losses are not adjusted as a result of the reclassification.

In case of reclassification out of fair value through profit or loss measurement category to the fair value through other comprehensive income
measurement category, the financial asset continues to be measured at fair value.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Finm::imiabiﬁtiﬁmmmgnizadatmﬁmmﬂuﬁmhemrmsapmyhﬂmmwmmﬁmdhhmmmmm
and other payables, loans or borrowings and accrued mark up etc.

The Group does not reclassify any of its financial liabilities.

Financial liabiliies at amortized cost are initially measured at fair value less transaction costs. Financial iabilities at fair value through profit or loss
are initially recognized at fair value and transaction costs are expensed in profit or loss.
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Subsequent measurement

The Group measures its financial liabilites subsequently at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on mﬁmmmmemmimmdelﬁ.MElﬁ
amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit or loss. Difference between carying amount and consideration paid is
recognized in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability s discharged or cancalled or expired. Where an existing financial liability
is replaced by ancther from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in respective
of carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss. The difference between the camying amount of a financial liability extinguished
or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognized in
statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and net amount is reperted in the financial statements only when there is a legally enforceable right to set
uﬂﬂ‘nmmmizadmrﬁwlhnGmmirrhﬂsdhartusartﬂuonamthuhwbmﬂmhmmumumuahilmusimhmww

Inventory

Inventory represents usable stores and spares and are valued principally on First in First Out Basis (FIFQ) at lower of cost and net realizable value
except for items in transit, while items considered obsolete, if any, are carried at nil value. ltems in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice
value plus other charges paid thereon.

Net realizable value signifies the selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs necessary to be incurred in order to make the
sale.

Spare parts of capital nature which can be used only in connection with an item of property and equipment are shown separately as capital spares
and are carried at cost less accumulaled impairment, if any.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables represent the Group's right and are initially recognized at an amount of consideration that is unconditional unless they
contain significant financing component in which case they are recognized at fair value. The Group holds the trade debts with the objective of
collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore measures the trade debts subsequently at amortized cost using the eflective interest rate
method. Deduction, if any, is made for doubtful receivables based on expected credit losses model. Bad debts are written off when identified.
Provision for loss allowance on doubtful debts is charged to statement of profit or loss.

Provisions

A provision is recognized in the statement of financial position when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of
the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Provisions are not
recognized for future operating losses.

Taxation - Levy and Income Tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognized in the statement of profit or loss except o the extent that relates to items
recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income, in which case it is recognized in equity or other comprehensive income.

Levy

In accordance with the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, computation of final taxes is not based on taxable income. Therefore, as per IAS 12
Application Guidance on Accounting for Minimum Taxes and Final Taxes issued by the ICAP, these fall within the scope of IFRIC 21 /IAS 37 and
accordingly have been classified as levy in these financial statements, except for taxes on dividends on the Group's investment in associates which
are specifically within the scope of IAS 12 and hence these continue to be categorized as current income tax. ¥

Current

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid fo the
taxation authorities, using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting date.
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The charge for current tax is higher of corporate tax (higher of tax based on taxable income and minimum tax) and altemative ccrporate lax.
However, in case of loss for the year, income tax expense is recognized as minimum tax fiability on turnover of the Group in accerdance with the
provisions of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 Super tax, if applicable, on the Group is calculated as per applicabls tax rates as per Income Tax

Ordinance, 2001.

Corporate tax is based on taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the prevailing laws of taaton. Tha charge for current lax is
calculated using prevailing tax rates or tax rates expected to apply Io the profit for the year if enacted after taking into account tax credits, rebates
and exemptions, if any. The charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considared necessary, to provision for tax mada in previous
years arising from assassments framed during the year for such years.

Alternative corporate tax is calculated at 17% of accounting profit, afier taking into account the required adjustments.

Current tax for current and prior year, to the extent unpaid, is recognized as a liability. If the amount already paid in respect of current and prior
pericds exceeds the amount due for those periods, the excess is recognized as an asset.

The Group offsets current tax assets and current tax liabies if, and only il it has a legally enforceable righ to set off the mmg_ru'md amduits and
intends either to settie on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settie the liability simultaneously.

The management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which q:pimablu tax requlations are subject
fo interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred
Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of all te:m;:«:;r:;wgr timing differences arising from the cifierence
between the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the comesponding tax bases used in the computation of

taxable profit. However, deferred tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or fiability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of transaction neither affects accounting nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilifes are recognized for all major taxable temporary differences.

Deferred iax assets are recognized for all major deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probabie that taxable profit will be available
against which deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at each reporiing date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that suffcient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent of pmbable fulure Laxab'amﬁtwaﬂa.ule
that will allow deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculaled at rates that are expected to apply o the year when the differences reverse based on the tax rates and tax laws that have
been enacted or have baen notified for subsequent enactment by the reporting date.

When different tax rates apply to different levels of taxable income, deferred tax assets and liabilities are measurad using the average rales that are
expectad to apply to the taxable profit (tax loss) of the periods in which temporary differences are expected fo reverse.

ThaGmupoﬁseﬁdaiwmdtaxasmaMdafenmlnxhahul:nasdandwyrfnhasalagaﬂrmﬁxmabh nght'ensatuﬁwmmmasmm
current tax Fabiliies and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the
same taxable entity ordifferent taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis; or to realize the assels
and setlle he fiahilities simuitaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilites or assets are expected Io be
seltied or recovered.

Investments in associates

Investment in sssociales where the Group has significant influence are measured at cost less impairment, if any, in the Group's financial
statements and subsequently under equity method. At each reporting date, the recoverable amounts of investments are estimated to determiné the
extent of impairment losses, if any, and carrying amounts of investmints are adjusted accordingly. Impairment losses are recognizad as expense in
the statemont of profit or loss.

Investment in associates that have suffered an impairment re reviewed for possible reversal of impairment at each reporting date. Where
impairment losses are subsequently revsrsed, the carrying amounts of the invastments are increased to the revised recoverable amounts but
limited to the extent of initial cost of investmeants.

The Group s required to issue consclidated financial statements along with its separate ﬂnanml smemnts in accordance with the req.urmrnanu
of IAS 27, Saparaia Financiai Statements’.
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Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand,
cash at banks in saving accounts which are free of encumbrances and book overdrawn balances, if any.

Trade and other payables

ThmmmtsmpmmIsﬂulnt:-asi:rgmdundsammspl'mdadhmaﬁmupprmrtomamdnfﬁrmalwarmmnunpm The amounts
are unsecured and are usually paid within short period. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabiliies unless payment is ot due
mﬂin12mnmuftﬂﬂ1&mpurﬁngpanod They are recognized inifially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method. :

Contract liabilities | advance from customers
A confract liability is recognized if a payment is received from a customer before the Group transfers the related goods. Contract liabilities are
recognized as revenue when the Group transfers control of the related goods to the customer.

Staff retirement benefits

The Group operates recognized provident fund schumu covering aliispnmmnl.mphyaas The awplnrmsbewmairgﬂn under the scheme if
they successfully receive confirmation about their permanent employment status which is usually after two to three months from the first day of their
joining. Equal conftributions @ 10% per month are made both by the Group and employees to the fund.

Contingent liabilities
A contingent liability is disclosed when there is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
pecurmence or non occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group.

nmnﬁngentiahiﬁryisdsndigdmadntmﬂmreispmsantnbiigaﬁmhataimhmpaﬁamuhﬁtisnnlpruhiﬂamatmouhhwnlwm
embodying economic benefits will be required !0 setfie the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability at the measurement date in an orderly transaction
mmmpaﬁnmmmmmpd.unnhm_mammwmmmmmﬁmhamamm.m
are three levels which are as under: ;

Level 1
The Group measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if

transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

Level 2

When there is no quoted price in an active market, the Group determines transaction price by applying valuation techniques. The chosen valuation
technique incorporates all the factors that market participants would take into account in pricing a transaction. The best evidence of the fair value of
a financial instrument at initial recognition is normally the transaction price i.e, the fair valus of the consideration given or received.

Level 3

If the Group determines that the fair value at initial recognition differs from the transaction price and the fair value is evidenced neither by a quoted
price in an active market for an identical asset or iability nor based on a valuation technique that uses only data from observable markets, the
instrument is initially measured at fair value, adjusted to defer the difference between the fair value at initial recognition and the transaction prica.
Subsequently, that difference is credited or charged to the statement of profit or loss on an appropriate basis over the life of the instrument but no
later than when the valuation is supported wholly by observable market data or the transaction is closed out.

ThaGmamﬁwuhmgnmmmmmmmmmdhrmmmasnfhdﬁenfﬂmmﬂmd-mgam
circumstances that caused the transfer,

Impairment of non-financial assets
Assurtsthata*awhpdmdupmmahmnrarm:aimmmmamdhumpamuntﬁmmmmmsmmmgummmmhmmmmmﬁm
camying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset's camying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses on fixed assets that ofiset available revaluation surplus are charged against this surplus, all other
impairment losses are charged to profit or loss. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. meummmurmshgnmmnm“gmdHmnhmhwhhmlmmummwmmmtm
generating units). Pricr impairments of no-financial assets are reviewed for possible reversal at each reporting date. Where impairment loss is
recognized, ﬂmmm!m&mmﬂmisaﬂmmhhmrwhdhmmnmntummdmﬁwmtwmwm
mr!:ramnmguw'uﬂfe m;mdmmmammmmmﬂammmm

o’
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Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognized in accordance by applying the following steps:
i) Identifying contract with a customer
ii) Identifying performance obligation in the contract
iii) Determining transaction price of the contract ; i
iv) Allocating transaction price to each of the separate performance obligations in the contract
v) Recognizing the revenue when (or as) the Group satisfies a performance obligation -
The Group recognizes revenue as follows: '
Room maintenance services | Software services

Revenue is recognized when the Group has a right to invoice. Customers are invoiced on a monthly basis and consideration is payable within 10
days from the invoice date.

Finance lease

The Group follows the ‘financing method' in accounting for recognition of finance lease. The total uneamed finance income Le. the excess of
minimum lease payments over the cost of the leased asset is deferred and then amortized over the term of the leass, so as to produce a systematic
return on the net investment in finance leases.

Return on MTS invastments and fixed income securities

Return on MTS investments and fixed income securities is recognized on a time proportionate basis over the term of the investments that takes into
account the EIR method,

Rental income
Rental income from investment property is recognized in profit or loss on a siraight-line basis over the lease term.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognized in the statement of profit or loss on accrual basis in case of cumulative preference shares and at the time dividend is
declared in case of orginary shares. '

Operating segments
Sagm‘ntrapnr&ngigbaaadmmm{husi_m;}sagrrmlxofham.mmmmhamtmwmmﬂmm
in business activities fom which it may eam revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to the ransactions with
any of the Group's other components. Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker. The Chief Executive Officer has been identified as the chief operating decision-maker that made strategic decisions and
who is also responsible for allocating resources to the operating segments, assessing their performance and whose results are regularty reviewed
by it based on the discrete financial information of each segment.

Segmmtmwrts,lsandIiabililiasm.ldailumadim&iyunibumbkatoaagmﬂaswlasmma!mbadhmedonawﬂabmia.
Segment assets, consist primarily of investment property, trade and other receivables, investments in financial assets at FVPL, investment in
associates, net investment in finance lease. Segment liabilites comprise of frade and other payables and exclude items that are common to all
operating segments. !

Transactions among the business segments are recorded at arm's length prices using admissible valuation methods. Infer segment transfers are
eliminated from the total, if any.

The management has determined that the Group has two major reporting segments; Income from investment in strategic portfolios and rental &
mlahdi'mmuamadﬂ‘mnthalamdI:luildingmadhyth&ﬁmup.ﬂmtmindhmmm!ﬂu@mdh@mup.

Related party transactions

Related parties comprisa the parent Group, associated companies / undertakings, directors of the Group and their close relatives and key
management personnel of the Group. Transactions in relation to revenue, purchases and services with related parties are made at amm's length
pﬁmdabnnhadinmdmmﬂmGrnp'spolicyanwptﬁnrhalhuﬁmofnpanmmmuﬁiﬁas,mﬁalammonnwrhmds
shared with related parties, which are on actual basis.

Transactions with related parties are based on the transfer pricing policy that all transactions between the Group and its related parties are at amm'’s
length prices using the comparable uncontrolled price method except in circumstances where it is in the interest of the Group o not to do so.

w
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Dividend distributions
Dividends to shareholders of the Group and appropriations other than statutory appropriations are recognized as a liability in the year in which
these are approved.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classifiad as equity. Share capital represents the face value of shares that have been issued. Any transaction costs associated
with the issuance of shares are deducted from share capital, net of any related income tax benefits, if any. Retained eamings include all current
and prior period profits.

Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted eamings per share (EPS). Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss, as the case may be,
attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Group by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is
determined by adjusting the profit attributable to ordinary shareholdars and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the
effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, if any. The Group does not account for the effect of potential ordinary shares while calculating
dilutive loss per share in accordance with the requirements of the |AS 33 ‘Earnings per Share',

Comprehensive income

Gmprehenam income is the change in equity resulting from transactions and other events, other than changes resulting from fransactions with
sharehalders in their capacity as shareholders. Total comprehensive income comprises all companents of profit or lass and other comprahansive
income. Other comprehensive income comprises items of income and expense, including reclassification adjustments, that are not recognized in
profit or loss as required or permitted by approved accounting standards.



2025 2024

4  Property and Equipment Note Rs. in 000s
Operating fixed assets - tangible 4.1 1,316,169 1314734
Capital work in progress - civil work 42 6,524 6,658
——gd 1321302,
41 Operating Fixed Assets - Tangible
Cost | Revalued Amount Accumulated Depreciation Written Down
Particulars Balance as at July Revaluation | Rovaluation Balance as at Balance as at July| Charge for Revaluation | Balance ws ai |Value 2= at June
ot | SO Coimis | Adstment | PO | ungaozios | P L oo | theyear | TP | Csupivs | Junedo,202s | 30,2028
‘Rs. in 000s % *Rs. in 000
Owned assets
Land freehold 1,111,508 - - - - 1111508 - - 2 . - - 1,111,508
Buildings on freehold land 134,982 - - - - 134962 5% - 6,749 - - 6,749 128,233
Computer and accessories 30,580 1,036 - - {12,384) 19,232 0% 26,163 1450  (12,066) - 15,547 3,685
Fumniture and ficture 17,636 625 - . (1,019) 17242 10% 10,126 T4 (959) - 9,841 7,301
Office equipment 6,633 188 - - (5,327 1484 20% 6,406 66 (5,328 - 1,146 M8
Eleciric fitings and appliances 138,776 2,785 - - (3,689) 137872 0% 102,174 7,499 (3,642) . 106,031 31,841
Vehicles 497 17,112 - - (497) 17,112 20% a2 976 (457) - a7 16,241
Elevalor 19,968 - - - - 19.969 20% 16,198 754 . - 16,952 anr
Generators 34,206 - - - (6) 34200 10% 22,064 1,214 (5) = 23273 10927
Arms and securily equipment B.715 - - - (405) 6310 10% 3,285 M3 (386) - 3,242 3,068
Library books e s - - (318) - 5% 318 - (318) - - -
Leasehold improvements 5697 - - - {5,697 - % 5,697 - (5,697} - - -
Total 1,507,517 21,748 . - {29,342) 1,499,521 192783 19825  (28,856) - 103,752 1,316,169
Cast / Revalued Amouni Accumulated Depreciation i Dot
‘Addiion undsr Addtion under

Particulars Rovaluation : Balarce for Aalance as at | Vale as & June

Morger &s at Ap Digposals m,;;m Rata | Marger as at April m mna‘m a0, 2024

03,2034 ' 03,2024
‘Rs. in 0008 —wow % _— R in 000

Owned assets
Land freehold 1,059,660 - 51,848 i s 1111508 - - - - - - 1,111,508
Buildings on freehold land 127,832 - 33,767 (26.417) - 134982 5% 25,085 1,332 - (26,417) - 134,962
Computer and accessaries 30,036 544 - - - 30580 30% 25581 482 - . 26,163 4,417
Furniture and ficture 17,636 - - - - 17636 10% 9878 248 - 10,126 7510
Office equipment 6,633 - - - - 6633 20% 6,386 20 - - 6,406 27
Eleciric fittings and appliances 138,776 - - - 138776  20% 99,885 2288 - . 102,174 36,602
Vehicles 45913 8,234 - . (53,650) 497 20% 14,359 30 (14.367) - 352 145
Elevator 19,969 - - - - 19968 20% 15,875 vk} - . 16,198 3am
Generators 34,206 - - . - 34,206 10% 21,728 33 . 4 22,064 12,142
Arms and security equipment 6,715 - . . ’ 6715 10% 3191 94 - . 3,285 3430
Library books 318 - . . - 8 25% 37 1 . & 318 -
Leasehold improvements 5687 - - - 5697 20% 5897 - - - 5,697 -
Total 1,483,191 8,778 85,615 {26417) (53,650 1,507 517 228,082 5485  (14,367) (26.417) 192783 1314734

(e



4.1.1 The particulars of oparating fixed assets disposed off during the year are as follows:

1 Loss on
_ Carrying a Particulars of Mode of
_ Particulars Cost ‘ Sale price d:::;: the " §i I Relationship with the purchaser
‘Rs. in D00s
Computer and accessories
Laptop HP ERte book 123 i 4 - | Ghutam Mustata As per Group's policy  Employee
Laptop HP Probook 290 173 173 | M. Ghudam Mustata As per Group’s policy ~ Employee
Apphe -PAD Mini 50 | 2 2 Mr. Ghulam Mustata As per Group's policy  Employee
Lagtop HP Paviion 210 50 8 - |Miss Fiza As per Group's policy  Employee
673 89 268 -
Vehicles
Honda CD 70 LEN - B459 n 5 5 «  |Mr. Muhammad Wagas As per Group's policy  Employee
Honda CO 70 LEV - 3752 ] 4 4 = |Wr. Azhar Asheaf #is per Group’s policy ~ Employee
Honda CD 70 LEX - 3756 7 8 8 Mr. Muhammad Abid As per Group’s policy  Employee
Honda CD 70 LEN - 3432 m fi ] - |Mr. Nadesm As per Group's poicy ~ Empicyee
Honda CD 70 LEO - 2781 T2 ] ] = |Mr. Muhammad Zahesar As per Group's policy Employen
Honda CD 70 LED - 2783 2 6 6 - |Mr. Zia Ulah As per Group's policy  Employee
Honda CD 70 LEV - 3748 68 4 4 - wr. Yasic As per Group's policy  Employee
3 /57 3 38 -
Mnum! 1:-1" m m =
June 30, 2024 53,650 39,234 38 488 (746)

4,12 During the year; fully depreciated assels included in the Property and Equipment having cost amounting to Rs. 28.172 million and carrying amount of Rs. 0.156 million have been written off (Note 28).

v




413

414

415

4186

Measurement of fair values

The Group obtains an independent valuation for its freehoid land and building (classified as property and equipment) every
three to-five years. The valuation is conducted by an independent 1.railluusn' who is approved by Pakistan Banks' Association

(PBA). Latest revaluation was carried out on June 30, 2024,

‘s"lluatinn technigues

' Freehold land

The valuer determined the fair value of freehold land based on the market comparable approach that reflects transaction prices

for similar properties in the area. The key observable inputs under this approach are the price per square feet from cument

year sales of comparable lots of land in the area (location and size). Different valuation methods and exercises were adopted
according to experience, location and other usage of freehold land. Valuer had also considered other relevant factors as well.

Building on freehold land

The valuer used a cost approach (i.e. curent replacement values) for building on freehold land to arrive at the fair value.
Construction specifications were noted for each building and structure and new construction rates were applied according to
construction specifications for current replacement values. After determining current replacement values, depreciation was
calculated to determine the current assessed market value.

The effect of changes in the observable inputs used in the valuations cannot be determined with certainty, consequently, a
quahlatwa disclosure of sensitivity has not been presented in these financial statements.

Particulars of immovable property (i.e. land and building) in the nahw of Group are as follows:

il Usage of
Location / Address | immovable Total Area (Sg. ft.) Covered Area (Sq. ft.)
property
1SKhaysban-e- Land and North Tower: 97,828 Saft
PSS Buiding #23 South Tower : 50,432 Saft
Lahore, Pakistan. o0y

Had the revalualion of these assets not been made, the carrying value of these assets as at the reporting date would have been
as under,

2025 2024
Rs.In000s
Freehold land 1,059,660 1,059,660
Building on freehold land 96,154 101,215
1,155,814 1,160,875

Forced sale value and assessed value of these fixed assels as at the date of revaluation (i.e. June 30, 2024) was as under;
Forcedsale  Assessed sale

value © vale
Rs. in 000s
Freehold land 944782 - 1,111,506
Building on freehold land 235,425 276,970

RRORT 138647




2 41.7 On April 07, 1987 Lahore Stock Exchange (Guarantee) Limited ("LSE") purchased land measuring 8 kanals and 2 marias from
Lahare Development Authority (LDA). LSE obtained the possession of the land via LDA allotment letter dated June 04, 1987,
On August 25, 2015, Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (‘the Commission®) via letter having refer #
SMDISE/2/(57)2002 directed demutualization of the stock exchanges in the country. Consequent fo the approved scheme of
integration of stock exchanges, LSE was granted Invesiment Finance Services (‘IFS’) license by ihe Commission on January
11, 2016 to operate as an IFS Non-Banking Finance Company ("NBFC") company under the narme LSE Financial Services
Limited ("LSEFSL").
On April 26, 2023, a scheme of arrangement was formulated and approved by the Honourable Lahore High Court under order
no. 58175/2022 in which the business of LSEFSL was partially transferred to LSE Proptech Limited including the transfer of
land and building of LSEFSL to LSE Proptech Limited.
As at the reporting, the legal title of the land is in the name of Lahore Stock Exchange (Guarantee) Limited; however, the land
and buildings are in the possession of LSE Proptech Limited.
On April 03, 2024, LSE Proptech Limited has be merged into LSE Capital Limited as per the scheme of arrangement approved
by Honourable Lahore High Court under order no. 78278/2023. The fitle of the land and building in possession of LSE Proptech
Limited is ultimately transferred in the name of LSE Capital Limited.
418 The land and building is under the mortage of Cordoba Leasing Limited as security for long term finance facility obtained as
disclosed in the Note 20.2 of these financial statements.
4.2 Capital Work in Progress - civil work 2025 2024
Note Rupees in 000s
The reconciliation of carrying amount is as follows:
Balance as at July 01, 6,658 .
Transferred under merger scheme - 22,260
Addition during the year 166 175
Written off 18 . (15,777)
Balance as at June 30, 6,824 E 658
This represents the expenditure incurred on the structural designs and other costs for
the construction of 5th floor on south tower and Mezzanine floor in LSE Plaza.
5 Right of Use Asset
Cost
Balance as at July 01, 59,114 .
Transferred from fixed asscls - 35,968
Addition during the year 212 - 28,110
Disposal during the year - (4,.984)
Balance as at June 30, 59,114 59,114
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as at July 01, 1,985 -
Depreciation charged during the year 29 11,425 £,085
Disposal during the year . (100)
Balance as at June 30, 13,410 1,985
Written down value as at June 30, 45,704 8 __u_}__-
Depreciation rate (%) per annum 20% 20%

wr
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5.1 This represents the contract entered into with Messrs. Cordoba Leasing Limited for the sale and lease back of 16 vehicles (10
vehicles owned by the Group and six owned by its directors and other employees) at a consideration of Rs. 70 million with a
lease term of 3 years. The lease will expire on April 18, 2027.

5.2 The particulars of right of use asset disposed off during the year are as follows:

Gal
Particulars Cost Carrying amount Sale price Aoy i'b.i::rl 5
. R8.in000s ............e
mzs = - = =
2024 Vehicles __4.984 4,885 7,800 2,915
' 2025 2024
Investment in Associated Companies Note Rs. in 000s
under equity method
Digital Custodian Company Limited - unquoted 6.2 258,9T1 172,087
LSE Ventures Limited - quoted 6.3 806,539 723,937
1,065,510 856,024

6.1 These companies are locally incorporated, with their country of incorporation / registration senving as their principal place of
business. The Group has significant influence on associates through significant shareholding to its representation on the Board
of Directors of investees and consequently investments have been treated as associates in accordance with requirements of
IAS 28 ‘Investment in Associates’. Digital Custodian Company Limited (DCCL) is an unlisted public company hence its
published price quotes are not available. The shares of LSE Ventures Limited (LSEVL) are listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange
and its published price quotes is Rs. 5.75 per share. The shares of all the associaled companies have a face value of Rs. 10
each. '

6.2 DCCL was incorporated on February 12,1892 under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, The Company converted its
status from private limited company to unlisted public company on June 19, 2009. The principal objective of DCCL is to act as
trustee of investment trust schemes, voluntary pension schemes and real estate investment trust schemes to provide custodian
service and to act as transfer agent / share registrar of securities of listed and unlisted companies and mutual funds efc.

6.3 LSE Ventures Limited (the Company) was registered on July 18, 2022 under the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) as a
public unlisted company limited by shares. In June 2023, the Company obtained the listing status under the symbol "LSEVL" at
Pakistan Stock Exchange as a result of demerger scheme approved on April 26, 2023 by the Honourable Lahore High Gwrt,
accomplished through a reverse merger with Data Textiles Limited.

1At



6.4 Recongiliation of changes in carrying value / fair value of investments in associates:

2025
Note pccL | LSEVL |  Total
seeananeesasennees RS, in 0008
Balance as at July 01, 2024 172,087 723,937 896,024
Further investment made during there year 38,500 21,697 60,197
Share of post tax income for the year
- through profit or loss 32 1,753 55,868 57,621
- through other comprehensive income 1,172 50,202 51,374
(Gain on bargain purchase 32 45,459 3,007 4B 466
Less: Dividend received during the year . (48,172) (48,172)
Balance as at June 30, 2025 258,971 806,539 1,065,510
Number of shares held 22,215,728 49 883,397
Shareholding in %age 4250% _ 27.78%
2024
DcCL | LSEVL |  Totl
[S—— TR Y |11 Y —————
Balance as at July 01, 2023 135,812 - 135,812
Acquired under merger scheme as at April 03, 2024 12,926 689,796 702,722
Further investment made during there year - 222 222
Share of post tax income for the year ' 2
- through profit or loss 32 21,644 11,832 33476
- through other comprehensive income 1,705 22,087 23,792
Balance as at June 30, 2025 172,087 ?2'?29_3? 896,024
Mumber of shares held 14@9?,243 48,171,586
Shareholding in %age 28.50% 26.82%

6.5 The summarized financial information in respect of associates is set out below. The summarized financial information
represents the amounts as shown in the associate's latest available audited financial statements for the year ended June 30,

2025.

[ ocer |[ isew |

SRS PRy Y|P —

Extracts of Statement of Financial Position :
Current assets 39,132 312,500
Non-current assets 631,662 2,960,781
Current liabilities {47,582) (173,738
MNon-current liabilities (15,974) (445,934)
Net assets of the associate 606,838 2,653,608




[ oceL ][ LsEwL |

sasssesreses RS, iN 000§ savevreae

Extracts of the statement of profit or loss and comprehensive income
Revenue 127,342 466,265
Profit after tax 3,956 206,398
Other comprehensive income 2,757 184,656
Total comprehensive income 6,713 391,054

Reconciliation of the above summarized financial information to the carrying amount of

the interest in the associates recognized in these financial statements is as follows:

Met assets of the associate 606,838 2,653,608

Proportion of the Group's ownership interest 42.50%  27.78%

Group portion of net assets of the Associate 257,933 737,041
, Goodwill arisen on acquisition of shares 1,038 £9,498

258,971 806,538
Cost of Investment 185,500 488,189

6.6 The investmant in subsidiary and associated companies and underakings have been made in accordance with the requirement
under Companies Act, 2017

2025 2024
7 Investment Property - At Fair Value Note Rs. in 000s
Balance as on July 01, i 392,122 -
Transfer under merger scheme ; . 378,431
Gain on revaluation 3 64,154 13,691
Balance as at June 30, 456,276 382,122

74 The fair value of investment property is determined at the end of each year by independent suitably qualified valuer. The fair
value of the investment property as at May 02, 2025 was performed by M/s Unicom Intemational Surveyors, who are
independent valuers not related to the Group. ; " ;

There are no level 1 and level 3 assets or any transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

The fair value was determined based on the market comparable approach that reflects recent transaction prices for similar
properties/capitalization of net income method, where the market rentals of all lettable units of the properties are assessed by

" reference fo the rentals achieved in the lettable units as well as other lettings of similar properties in the neighborhood. The
capitalization rate adopted is made by reference to the yield rates observed by the valuers for similar properties in the locality
and adjusted based on the valuers' knowledge of the factors specific to the respective properties.

There has been no change to the valuation technique during the year. In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest
and best use of the properties is their current use. :

Property Type Location ' Area "‘“"’v w""“" Fair Value Forced Sale Value
Rs. in 000s
Building on freehold 27,087 M/s Unicom
it Lahore - S ik Intemational A e
; Surveyors S \ v

7.2 The land and building is under the mortage of Cordoba Leasing Limited as security for long term finance facily obtained s
disclosed in the Note 20.2 of these financial statements. '

Lo




8§ Met Investment in Finance Lease

2025 2024
Note Rs. in 000s
Balance as at July 01, PRI RERT T -
Transfer under merger scheme ; - 4,189
Add: Finance income for the year 342 BB
Less: Rental received during the year (343) -
Balance as al June 30, 8.1 521'4 4275
B.1 The following table sets out a maturity analysis of lease payments,
showing the undiscounted lease payments to be received after the
reporting date.
Upto one year 343 M3
Two to five years s .. 1,374
Above five years e . 20,607 20,850
22,324 22 667
Less: Discounting (18,050) (18,392)
Closing balance 4,274 4275
8.2 The Group has entered into lease arrangements for lease of office
spaces i.e. 106,199 square feet in North and South Towers for a lease
period of upto 99 years. Interest rate implicit @ 8% in the lease s used
as a discount factor to determine the present value of minimum lease
paymenis.
9 Long Term Deposits
Deposit against: _ :
- Central Depository Company Limited 9.1 75 =78
- Utilities 2,567 1 420
- Others ' ] 53
719 548
9.1 This amount has been deposited with Centrzl Depository Company
Limited against share registrar services. Central Depository Company
Limited is an associate of LSE Ventures Limited, an associate of the
Group.
10 Inventories
Consumable store items w 2411
11 Financial Asscts
Investment in Equity Securities ;
- Listed securities 111 71,627 142,403
- Unlisted securities - Ensmile limited _ 11.2 ' + 180,000
71,627 322,403
at am
Investment in Margin Trading System of NCCPL 113 . 17,644
Musharikah Financing (secured) - under islamic mode 114 350,000 300,000
Advance for purchase of shares - unsecured and considered good 115 60,000 -
T 410,000 37644

oW ; 481,627 640,047
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1.2

1.3

114

Breakup of investment in listed equity securities is as under:

2025
Ownership Cost/ Market

Scrip Symbol o aty : Cost - Fair Value

Rs. Rs. in 000s Rs. Rs. in 000s
Bank Islami Pakistan Limited BFL 0.023% 260,000 30.36 7.895 3582 8.3
ECOPACK Limited ECOP 0.435% 212,000 87.06 18,548 66.32 14 060
Invest Capital investmant Bank Limited  ICIBL 0421% 1,200,000 682 B,185 1027 12324
MACPAC Films Lim fesd MACFL D481% 285,000 27.06 .m 4838 14,074
TATA Texfile Mills Limited TATM 0.004% 2500 105.25 piox] 12811 34
Ghani Chemicals industries Limited GCIL 0.055% 320,000 2239 7.156 24 86 7.8955
Blue Ex Limiled (GEM) GEMBLUEX (.709% 184 500 65.00 12643 61.81 12022
Ghani Chemworld Limited GCWL [.064% 160,000 . - 872 1,555

T ST
2024
Ownership Cost/ Market

Scrip Symbal "y Qty s Cost Rute Fair Value

Rs. Rs.in 000s Rs. Rs. in 0008
Ghani Chemicals Industries Limited GCIL 2.193% 12,509,749 15.00 187 646 1103 137,983
Blue Ex Limited GEMBLUEX  097T% 267895 6500 17413 16.50 4420

T 205059 T 142408

During the year, the Group had disposed of 2,525,000 equity shares of Ensmile Limited, representing 16.67% ownership
interest in the investee. The shares were sold to the original sponsors of the investee company at an agreed price of Rs. 71.29
per share.

This represents amount invested through LSE Financial Services Limited in Marginal Trading System (MTS) and receives mark-
up income net of 1% service charges and MTS charges. Investment in Margin Trading System of NCCPL s an undisclosed
market of financees and financiers with a participation ratio of 85 to 15 camying mark-up of KIBOR with spread of maximum
upto 8% per annum. It carries mark-up at range of 20.38% to 23.19% per annum (2024: 24.15% to 35.16% per annum).

This represents Musharika Financing facility provided to Messrs. AG Publications (Private) Limited, through its Chief Executive
Officer Mr. Igbal Z. Ahmad, who is also a Chairman of Messrs. Pakistan Gas Port (PGP) Consortium Limited, out of the
approved limit of Rs. 400 million, on a pre-agreed Profit-Sharing Rate (PSR) being not less than & months KIBOR+16%, or
2.5% per month whichever is higher, for revival of the company operating Jamshoro Joint Venture Limited (JJVL). It is
recoverable in lump sum after the lapse of seven months from the date of disbursement of musharika financing whereas PSR is
to be serviced on monthly basis. It is secured against pledge over 49,424,163 common shares of JJVL owned by Mr. Iqbal Z
Ahmad (Chief executive, director & major shareholder of JJVL) representing 51% of JUVL's voting share capital by way of a duly
registered pledge charge with SECP, mortgage over the property owned by the daughter of Mr. Igbal Z. Ahmad measuring 19
kanals and 12 marias, situated at Bedian road, opposite DHA Phase-V, post-dated cheques signed by Mr. Igbal Z. Ahmad for
the repayment of monthly PSR and the lump sum amounts for encashment to secure the provided facility and confirmation
letters from Messrs. PGP Consortium Limited (PGPCL) and Messrs. Pakistan Gas Port Limited (PGPL) for the payment of the
future dividend (to be declared and disbursed by the company from time to time) in respect of the family members of Mr. Igbal
Z. Ahmad for the amount of facility provided.

o



11.5 The breakup of advance amount is as under:

. Nt il DOwnership Advance (% of Advance
Investee Company Class of Shares Shares Interest in the total disbursed
investee consideration) |  [Rs. "0G0"} |
Jamshoro Joint Venture Limited (UVL)
A-Class 9,691,012 10% 20% 30,615
Energy Hesource Business Limited i
Ordinary 5,810 9.81% 20% 29,385
(BVI)
Total 60,000

11.5.1 The Group entered into an agreement with Mr. Jamal Akbar Ansari, holding 10% equity stake in the
Class-A shares of JJVL, for purchase of his entire shareholding in JJVL at an agreed consideration of
Rs. 153.077 million comprising 9,691,012 ordinary shares @ of Rs. 15.80 per share. As mulually
agreed, the Group has paid an advance to the party representing 20% of the consideration agreed. Tnis
transaction is materialized on August 11, 2025 and all the shares acquired under this arrangement have
been transferred in the name of the Group on the same date.

11.5.2 On June 20, 2025, the Group entered into a duly executed term sheet with Mr. Jamal Akbar Ansari
holding 9.81% equity stake in the ordinary shares of Messrs. Energy Resource Business Limited (ERSL)
whereby the investee holds 95% of the Class-B shares of JJVL. Under this arrangement, the Group has
given an advance to the party representing 20% of the total purchase price of shares. Through this
investment, the group indirectly holds 4.66% of ownership interest in JJVL. The shares of ERBL have
been transferred in the name of Group on July 31, 2025.

2025 2024
12 Trade and Other Receivables Note Rs. in 000s i
Trade receivables - unsecured
- From leaseholders 121 9,425 6,855
- From tenants 12.2 6,161 8,300
Insurance claims receivable - IGI Holdings Limited . 7,800
Other receivables - unsecured and considered good 123 33,552 12,805
Accrued profit on musharika financing - under islamic mode 14 5,925 5,300
Accrued profit on bank deposiis - under islamic mode 55
55,118 42,160
121 Trade receivables from leaseholders
Considered good 9,425 6,855 |
Considered doubtful 17,461 16,504
26,886 23,359
Less: Expected credit loss 1211 (17,461) (16,504)
9,425 6,805
1211  Expected credit loss from leaseholders
Balance as at July 01, 16,504
Transfer under merger scheme - 13,227
Expected credit loss during the year 1,160 3,277
Balance written off {203)
Balance as at June 30, 17,461 1 16,504

W



12.1.2 Age analysis of trade receivables from leaseholders

Past due
Total Gross
Description Year end 3160 | 6190 | 91-365 -
0-30 Days Days Days Days Above 365 days| amount due
Rs. in 000s
Leaseholders 2025 3,055 2617 1,668 8,359 11,187 _EEHBEE
Leaseholders 2024 3,007 1359 992 3,781 14,130 ____ 23359
2025 2024
Note Rs. in 000s
12.2 Trade receivables from tenants
Considered good 6,161 9,300
Considered doubtful 3,634 2,983
9,795 12,283
Less: Expected credit loss 12.2.1 {3,634) (2,983)
6,161 9,300
1221 Expected credit loss from tenants
Balance as at July 01, 2,983 -
Transfer under merger scheme . 1,905
Expected credit loss during the year 651 1,078
Balance as at June 30, 3,634 Elﬂi
1222  Age analysis of trade receivables from tenants:
Past due
Total Gross
Description Year end 31-60 | 61-90 | 91.365
0-30 Days Dave Days Dise Above 365 days| amount due
Rs. in 000s
Tenants 2025 3130 1,901 1,124 3,372 e i 268 9,795
Tenants 2024 4,396 n 592 4,002 2,826 12,283

12.3 This includes balance receivable from Messrs. Digital Custodian Company Limited, an associated company along with
mark-up @ 6 months KIBOR + 2% per annum as per the requirements of section 199 of the Companies Act, 2017. It is
unsecured and will be recoverable in the ordinary course of business. The breakup and maximum outstanding amount due

from the related parties at the end of any month during the year is as follows:

~Maximum
Gross Amount Due OQutstanding
amount
2025 2024
arssnsssnasisasms Pl EOV 0008 ooocinlinns

Receivable against the equity management fee 9,094 - 9,094
Other receivable _ current account 23,502 4427 23,502
32,596 4,427 Hgﬁﬁ

{(§ el



1231  Age analysis of other receivables from related parties:
Past due
Description Year end 31-60 | 61-90 | 91-365 Total Gross
0-30 Days Days Days Days Above 365 days
USSR 3 O T -
Receivable against the eguity
management fee - - 3,03 6,063 9,094
Other receivable _ current
ascount 3,018 12 16,045 4,427 23,502
2025 3,018 12 3,03 22,108 4,427 32,596
2024 R 4427 - 4427
3 2025 2024
13 Advances, Deposits and Prepayments Note Rs. in 000s
Considered good
Advance to suppliers - unsecured 15,450 11,374
Advances to employees - secured
- against expenses 200 250
- against salaries 13.1 919 821
- against house rent and others 13.2 80 564
Advances to brokers 7,617 -
Prepayments 1,086 1,166
m A
131 This includes Rs. 0.395 million (2024: Rs. 0.279 milion) as advance i
given to execulives during the year in terms of their employment which is
- adjustable in the ordinary course of business against their monthly
salaries which is normally within one year. These balances are within the
age bracket of one year.
The maximum aggregate balance due from the executives at the end of
any month during the year is Rs. 1.145 million (2024: Rs. 0.759 million).
132 This includes an amount of Nil (2024: Rs. 0.54 million) as advance given
to one of the director of LSE Ventures Limited, an associated company of
the Group in the ordinary course of business that have been recovered
during the year.
_ 2025 2024
14 Tax Refunds Due From The Government - nat Note Rs. in 000s
Balance as at July 01, 28,935 2,522
Transfer under merger scheme - 27,769
Income tax deducted at source during the year - net 30,517 4914
Prior year adjustment 35 (1,897) (446)
Less: Provision for taxation (32,708) {5,624)
Balance as at June 30, 24848 28.935_

o




15' Casl:l and Bank Balances 2025 2024

i Note Rs. in 000s g8
Cash in hand 100 100

*  Cash at bank in savings account 15.1 41,298 191,912

41,398 192,012

15.1

This carries mark-up ranging from 8.50% to 20.50% per annum (2024: 17.25% to 20.50% per annum). This

includes Rs. 9.858 million (2024: Rs. 0.404 million) held under islamic windows of banks.

16 Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital

2025 2024 2025 2024
Number of shares Rs. in 000s A
16.1 Authorized share capital
200,000,000 200,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 2,000,000 2.000,000
10 each
50,000,000 50,000,000 Preference shares of Rs. 500,000 500,000
10 each .
250,000,000 ____ 250,000,000 —2.500,000_ 2,500,000
16.2 Issued, subscribed and paid up capital
Ordinary shares of Rs.
21,000,000 21,000,000 10 each issued for cash 210,000 210,000
Ordinary shares of Rs.
160,153,345 160,153,345 10 each issued other 1,601,534 1,601,534
than in cash

181,153,345 181,153,345

1.811.534 1,811,534

16.3 LSE Capital Limited has merged as per Lahore High Court Order dated April 03, 2024 under which
160,153,445 shares has been issued in favor of shareholders of LSE Proptech Limited and Modaraba Al
Mali as per the approved merger scheme.

16.4 The shareholders are entitied to receive all distributions including dividends and other entitlements in the
form of bonus and right shares as and when declared by the Group. All shares carry one vote per share
without restriction.

16.5 Reconciliation of changes in number of shares is as follows:

2025 2024
Number of shares =20
Balance as at July 01, 181,153,345 21,000,000
|ssued other than in cash - 160,153,345
Balance as at June 30, 181,153,345 181,153,345
16.6 The shareholding structure of the Group is as under:
Name of shareholders %age of shareholding Number of shares
Danish Elahi 14% 24,697,350 24,697 350
LSE Ventures Limited 12% 22,615,904 22,370,904
Chief executive and family 11% 20,590,004 20,580,545
Igbal Usman and associates 9% 15,604,156 15,604,155
Zahid Latif Securities (Private) Limited B% 13,758,156 12,720,002
Digital Custodian Company Limited 7% 12,935,548 12,691,763
LSE Financial Services Limited 6% 10,000,000 10,000,000
Aslam Khaliy 4% 7.237,163 7,237,163
Amir Zia 0% - 3,618,581
Others 30% 63,715,064 51,632,880
181.153.345 181,153,345 _

o
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19

Surplus on Revaluation of Property and Equipment
Gross amount of revaluation surplus

Balance as at July 01,

Surplus arose on fresh revaluation of land and building
Incremental depreciation on revaluation of building

Balance as at June 30,

Less: Deferred tax

Balance as at July 01,

Tax effect of Incremental depreciation on revaluation of building

Balance as at June 30,
Balance as at June 30, net of deferred tax

17.1 The surplus on revaluation of property and equipment is not
available for distribution to the shareholders in accordance
with section 241 of the Companies Act, 2017.

Building Reserve Fund

18.1 This reserve was formed for replacement of major fixed
assets of the Group. The Group and its long term lease
- holders contribute their respective shares at Rs. 4 per sq. ft.

in the fund.

18.2 Movement during the year:

Balance as at July 01,
Building reserve collected during the year
Balance as at June 30,

Adjustments Related to Pre-merger Transactions

Capital work in progress written off
Old liabilities written back

19.1 This represented the old outstanding balance previously
payable by LSE Proptech Limited, which was no more
payable by the Group and accordingly written back in the
last year in the statement of changes in equity (SOCE) in
line with the approved scheme of merger.

Long Term Financing
Under conventional mode

Lease liability
Financial liability at amortized cost

G

4.1

22.3

4.2
19.1

20.1

20.2

2025 2024
Rs. in 000s
85,615 -

. 85615
“:ﬁ“} =
83927 85,615
(9,793) .

490 (9,793)
(9,303) (9,793)
rym '.-’5@22

6,593 1,682
1,682 -

4,911 1,682
6,593 1,682

. (15,777)

- 14,132

- (1,645)
24,555 48,378
12,115 22,072
36,670 70,450



20.1

20.1.1

20.1.2

20.2

20.21

This financing has been obtained through sale and lease back of vehicles of the Group from Cordoba
Leasing Limited with a lease term of 36 menths. It carries markup @ 1.95% per month, payable monthly
and repayable in 36 equal monthly instaiments along with markup. It is secured against registration of
vehicles in the name of Cordoba Leasing Limited, personnel guarantee of chief executive of the Group,
demand promissory note of Rs. 98.182 million, registered charge on all the present and future assets of the
Group amounting to Rs.150 million, 36 post dated cheques of Rs. 2.727 million each and assignment of
receivables from the tenants of the property owned by the Group.

2025 2024
Note Rs. in 000s
Movement in Lease liability during the year
Balance as at July 01, ; 67,259 -
Assets acquired under finance lease “ 70,000
Accretion of finance cost 13,773 ; 2,976
Repayments made during the year ' (32,653) (5,717)
Balance as at June 30, ' 48,379 ' 67,259
Less: current portion shown under current liabilities 24 (23,824) (18,881)
24,555 48,378
Maturity analysis of gross and discounted lease liabilities
| Gross amount | Present value |
2025 2024 2025 2024
Rs. in 000s Rs. in 000s
Up to one year 32,727 32,727 23,824 18,881
After one year 27,273 60,000 24,555 48,378
Total lease liability 60,000 92,72?- 4B|3?H 67,258

This leng term finance facility from Cordoba Leasing Limited was obtained to meet the.working capital
requirements of the Group amounting to Rs. 30 million. It carries markup at the rate of @ 30% per annum,
payable monthly and repayable in 36 equal monthly instaiments along with the markup. It iz secured against
the mortgage of immovable property owned by the Group, personal guarantee of the chief executive of the
Group, duly signed demand promissory note for the amount of facility, registered charge on.all the present
and future assets of the Group amounting to Rs. 150 million and 36 post dated cheques of Rs. 1.274 million
each. :

2025 2024

Movement in financial liability at amortized cost during Note . Rs. in 000s
the year
Balance as at July 01, 29,475 s
Loan obtained during the year - 30,000
Repayments made during the year (7,403) (525)
Balance as at June 30, : 22072 20,475
Less: current portion of financial liability 24 (9,957) (7,403)

: ' 12,115 22,072




20.2.2 Maturity analysis of gross and discounted financial liabilities

Gross amount Present value
2025 2024 2025 2024
Rs. in 000s Rs. in 000s

Up to one year 15,283 15,283 9,957 ' 7,403

More than one year and less than 5 years 14,009 29,292 12,115 22,072

Total financial liability e 29,292 44 575 22,072 28 475

21 Other Liabilities

Deposits from employees against vehicles 211 12,041 6,091
Payable against Sale and lease back ' 21.2 28,110 28,110
Security deposit against rent 2,944 1,079
43,095 35,280

ﬂﬂ

21.1 This represents deposits from employees against the purchase of vehicles for employees. Initially vehicles
are held in the name of Group which will be transferred upon settlement of all related liabilities. These
deposits are recovered in 60 equal monthly interest free installments.

21.2 This represents payable to related parties and other employees of the Group on account of sale and lease
back transaction entered into with Cordoba Leasing Limited. The party wise breakup of payable to related
parties is as under :

2025 2024
Rs. in 000s
Chief Executive / Director 14,000 14,000
Digital Custodian Company Limited, an associated company 5,500 5,500

'lk(.I o 19‘500 19,500




2025 2024
Note Rs. in 000s
22  Deferred Tax Liability 221 83,554 43,075
e e
221  Breakup of deferred tax liability
Taxable temporary differences
Accelerated tax depreciation 19,804 16,072
Share of profit from associate 58,774 22,784
Wet investment in finance lease 1,239 1,238
Surplus on property and equipment 9,303 9,793
Financizl assets - Listed 1,367 -
Deductible temporary differences '
Loss aliowance on receivables (6,118) (4,786)
Right of use of assets (775) {2.021)
Financial assets - Listed . (16)
83,594 43,075
ﬂ — - - =
222 Deferred tax assels / liabflities on temporary differences are measured at effective rate
of 29% (2024 : 20%).
223  Reconciliation of deferred tax liabilities - Net
Balance as at July 01, 43,075 16,370
Transferred under merger Scheme - 64,687
Deferred tax effecl charged to statement of profit or loss 35 33,303 (47,746)
Deferred tax efiect charged to other comprehensive income 224 7,106 13,362
Deferred Tax impact on realization of Ensmile shares - (3,588
Deferred tax effect charged to statement of changes in equity 17 (430) -
Balance as at June 30, . 83594 43,075
_ ST s s
224  Analysis of change in deferred tax
Statement of Financial | Statement of Profit or ;at:u::::‘ Statement of Changes
Position loss » in Equity
Income
2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024
Rs. in 000s.
Accelaratod tax depreciation 19,804 16,072 3732 16,072 - s -
Share of profit from associate 58,774 22,794 28,273 2,855 7,706 3,569 -
Surplus on property and equipment 9,303 9,793 - - - 9,793 (430)
Met investment in finance lease 1,239 1,238 - 1,239 - - -
Financial Assets - listed 1,367 (16) 1,384 (16} - - -
Right of use of assets (775) (2,021) 1,246 {2,021)
Loss allowance on receivables (6,118  (4788)  (1,332)  (4.786)
Transfer undar mergar scheme - (64,687)
Loss on realization of ensmile shares - . - 3,598 - .- -

83,594 43,075 33,303  (47,746) 7,706 13,362 (450)




2025 2024

Note Rs. in 000s
23 Trade and Other Payables

Payable to Ghani Chemical Indusiries Limited 231 7,000 174,708
Creditors for Services 3,905 10377
Security deposits - ljarah finance 232 IR 37862
Accrued liabilities 233 12,108 16,045
Sales tax payable 3,444 3,708
Confract Rability 234 2,430 7401
Advance received against sale of Ensmile shares - 25,000
Payable to related perties 235 103,404 88,338
Retention money - unsecured 1,004 886
Temporary overdraft . 728

133,295 330,960

pe——t——— e 1

231

23.2

233

234

215

Thnmsmlshhaimpajrablahﬂwabomnmndpwwmaﬁruupaqahﬂpwmmﬂﬂssm;uw.ﬁmdreiamhdmm
mwmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmm&mmmmmwmmmummm
scheme dated Aprnil 03, 2024,

These represent amounts received under ljarah Finance as security deposits transferred to the Group under the merger scheme, which
were stated to be repayable | adjustable on the expiry of the jarah period. However, due o default by the counterparties in making
payments due under the ljarah finance facility, this balance is written back during the year being no more payable as it equales the
amount of fjarah finance receivable by the Group under the contract from the counterparties who had already defaulted for their
obligations towards the Group (Mote 31).

This includes an amount of Rs. 7.386 million (2024: Rs. 7.386 million) that had been provided for by LSE Proptech Limited and has been
trmslmadwmnﬁmupundwhmgwmagmﬁmabq#cmﬁhdwmw:mdmmmmww
LSE Financial Services Limited as disclosed in Note 27,1 of these financial statements.

This represents advance received from the following parties : 2025 2024
| ' ' ; ‘Rs. in 000s
Tenants ! 2,430 6,789

Leasehoiders and Companies - - ; 602
' 2,430 7.401
e

This represents an amount payable to associated companies as current account to
meet the working capital and operational requirements of the Group. It carries markup
@ & Months KIBOR + 1% per annum. It is unsecured and payable on demand. The

breakup is as uncer:
LSE Ventures Limited 79,289 88,153
LSE Financial Services Limited ' 24,115 185
103,404 88,338
24  Current Portion of Long Term Financing
Lease liability 20.1.1 23,824 18,881
Financial liability at amortized cost 2021 9,957 7,403

33,781 26,284

25 Loan From Director - secured
Under conventional mode : 251 - 100,000
. S

251

(v

This short term loan facility was obtained from the Chief Executive / Director of the Group amounting to Rs. 100 milfion to meet its working
capital requirements for the period of 6 months. It carried markup @ 30% per annum, payabla monthly. It was repayable after 6 months in
lump sum or in € equal monthly instalments at the beginning of each month succeeding the month of disbursement whereas the markup
was o be senviced on monthly basis. It was secured agﬂrwltadpmpmmmnrigmmmdpwﬂmdmw
present or future, actual or contingent, unsecured and unsubordinated obligations and liabilities, mhmmﬁgmmmm
mandatorily preferred by law of general application to companies. ?hlsiﬂywaspm!uﬂinfuldurlnghm




2025 2024

26 Accrued markup on financing Note Rs. in 000s
Long term financing - secured
Under conventional mode
- lease liability i ; ' W 189 264
- financial liability at amortized cost . SR 294 380
Short term financing '
- lgan from director - mmdmdundarummdmda 25 - 1,208
- payable to associated companies - unsecured
LSE Ventures Limited 235 14,885 2,100
LSE Financial Services Limited 235 2,456 -

17,824 3852

27 Contingencies and Commitments
2741 Cnntlnuand.qt

The Group is contingently liable for the following:

o Certain employees had been reinstated and amears / back benefits were paid in accordance with Labour Court Order, dated August 13,
2020. However, these employees filed fresh petitions for determination and recovery of back benefits from the LSE Proplech Limited
which has now become due on the part of Group under the merger scheme. Under the circumstances, the Group incorporated a certain
provision in the financial statements up to June 30, 2025 based on its best estimate. This case is pending adjudication until the terminal
date. However, the Group expects a favourable outcome in the instant case.

o  The Group has not recognized provision for Punjab Workers' Welfare Fund (PWWF) amounting to Rs. 8.130 million (2024: Rs. 1.581
million) on the pretext that it does not fall under the definition of industrial establishment as defined in Clause (d) of Section 2 of the Punjab
Workers' Welfare Fund Act, 2019 nor does it employ any worker as defined in Clause () of Section 2 of the Act and Section 2 of the
Punjab Industrial Relation Act, 2010,

2712 Commitments
There is no commitment outstanding as at the reporting date (2024: Nil).

2025 2024
28 Revenue Mote ~ Rs. in 000s

Investment properties - rental income 43,995 15,380
Other revenues - inciusive of PRA sales tax
Room maintenance services 38,513 10,488
Advisory fee 23,844 B,667
Equity management fee 281 46,552 -
Software senvices 7,923 2,208

; 116,832 21,363
Less: PRA sales tax 282 {15,399) (1,552)

- 101,433 18,811

145,428 35191
—_——— mm—————

281 This represents the management fees charged to associated group companies on
account of management of their payroll and provision of administrative services to them
as per the duly executed agreement entered into between the parties. The breakup of
equity management fee is as under:

Associated companies

LSE Financial Services Limited 6,208 -
LSE Ventures Limited 31,250 -
Digital Custodian Company Limited 9,094 .

———— -
——
28.2 The aggregate PRA sales tax amounting to Rs. 15.399 milion (2024: Rs.1.552 milion) is charged on rcom mainienance services,
advisory fee, equity management fee and software services income.
o



2025 2024
29 Administrative and General Expenses Note Rs. in 000s
Salaries and benefits 29.1 75,522 23,752
Information technology related expenses 3,285 128
Insurance 1,942 271
Travelling and conveyance 10,566 3,222
Printing and stationery 1,656 172
Utilities 3,038 1425
Repairs and maintenance 12,951 1,609
Security expenses 9,257 1,438
Commurication, entertainment and public relations 11,072 AT
Legal and professional charges 29.2 18,428 15,331
Fees and subscription 1,050 568
Rent, rates and taxes 1,689 376
Auditors' remuneration 29.3 1,450 1,284
Board meetings fee 294 1,675 1,925
Old debit balances written off 4,492 -
Miscellaneous expenses 285 498 1,331
Property and equipment written off 4.1.2 156 -
Depreciation on property and equipment 4.1 19,825 5,485
Depreciation on Right of use asset 5 11,425 2,085
| D ).
29.1 Salaries and benefits include Rs. 2.81 million (2024: Rs. 0.613
million) in respect of contribution to provident fund.
29.2 This includes an amount of Rs. 14.778 million as consultancy
charges paid to Mr. Amir Zia, Chief Executive of the subsidiary
company of the Group namely; LSE SPAC-! Limited.
28.3 Auditors' remuneration
Audit fee 1,050 850
Other assurance / attestation services 400 434
1 & 1 EEI?A
294 Meeting fee is being paid to the Non-executive and independent
directors of the Group for attending corporate meetings of the
Group at rates as approved by the Board of Directors.
295 This includes Rs. Nil (2024: Rs.0.3 million) as donation ﬁiven by
the Group. The directors and their relatives have no interest in the
donee.
30 Other Expenses
Expected credit loss on tiade receivables 121.1812.21 1,811 4,355
Bad debts written off 624 -
2,435 4,355

uw’




31 Other Income Note
Income from financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents - profit on saving bank accounts 3
Interest Income from related parties 32
Return on mugharikah financing - under islamic mode 114

Realized fair value gain on investments in Ensmile Limited
Fair value gain recycled from OCI on disposal of associate
Unrealized fair value gain on investment in listed equity securities - net

Realized fair value gain on investment in listed equity securities - net
Dividend Income on investment in listed equity securities
Interest Income on exposure in MTS

Finance income on net investment in finance lease 8
Income from non financial assets:

Unrealized gain on investment property carried at fair value 7
Old credit balances / excess provisions written back 23.2
Parking charges and miscellaneous income 31.3
Gain from coal trading 34
Gain on disposal of property and equipment 35

311 This includes Rs. 0.285 million (2024 Rs. 0.205 million) earned

3.2

N3

34

KI )

from bank accounts maintained under Islamic windows of banks.

This represents income from related parties under section 199 as
per the Companies Act, 2017 :

Associated undertakings :
LSE Ventures Limited
Digital Custodian Company Limited

This includes an interest income amounting to Rs. Nil (2024:
Rs.0.204 million) against advance to one of the directors of LSE
Ventures Limited, an associate of the Group.

Gain from coal in

Revenue from sale of coal
Less: sales tax @ 18%

Less: Cost of coal sold

Gain / (loss) on disposal of property and equipment and right of

use of asset is as follows:

Loss on property and equipment 411
Gain on right of use of assets 5

e

2025 2024

Rs. in 000s
6,833 440
2,242 6,780
126,225 17,300
- 6,031
. 23,977
18,549 17,900
87,007 -
2,033 -
4,783 47
342 86
248,014 72,561
64,154 | 13,691
3,762 4,650
10,276 3419
- 189
. 2,169
78,192 24118

7,743
(1,181)
6,562

(6,373)
189

- (746)
. 2,915




32 Income from Associates Note Rs. in 000s
Post tax share of profit from associates
Digital Custodian Company Limited 6.4 1,753 21 ﬂ
LSE Ventures Limited 6.4 55,868 11,832
57,621 33476
Gain on bargain purchase
Digital Custodian Company Limited 321 45,459 -
LSE Ventures Limited 321 3,007 -
48,466 -
106,087 33476

321  This represents the excess of Group's interest in the net assets of
the associales over the original cost of investment and is
recognized in accordance with the requirements of International
Accounting Standard 28, “Investments in Associates and Joint

Ventures®
33 Finance Cost
Mark-up on financing 33.1 79,223 19477
Bank charges 36 410

33.1 This represents the markup expense against financing obtained
from the following parties under-conventional inode: -
Related Parties

Director / Chief Executive . 25 12,542 4,958
Associated Undertakings : .
LSE Ventures Limited 235 14,685 8,100
LSE Financial Services Limited 235 2,456 185
Others
Long term financing 20 21,553 6,234
Ghani Chemical Industries Limited 231 27,7187 -
ﬂ -m
34 Levy '
Altemale corporate tax - differential _ 11,289
Minimum Tax on services . 3,025
Minimum fax - LSE SPAC-1 Limited o -
Tax on dividend _ 305 .
Capital gain tax 9,397 7,644

This represents final taxes paid under sections 153(1), 150, 113
and 37(A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, representing levy
in terms of requirements of IFRIC 21 and |AS 37.




35 Taxation
Current Tax

Normal tax 4,490 (4,845)
Tax on dividend from associate 3.1 7,226 -

Prior year adjustment 14 1,897 448

13,613 (4,399)

Deferrad tax 223 33,303 (47,746)

46,916 (52,145)

35.1 This represents tax on dividend income received from associated companies as disclosed in Note 6 of these financial
statements that is classified as income tax as per the Circular # 10/2024 issued by the Institute of the Chartered

Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) dated June 14, 2024.

35.2 Income tax return has been filed to the income tax authorities upto and including tax year 2024 under the provisions o
the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.
35.3 Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit
Accounting profit for the year before levy and taxation ﬂi{lsﬂ 79,530
Applicable tax rate 29% 29%
Tax on-income i
Tax effect on difference of admissible and non-admissible expenses e
Tax effect on income charged to final tax classified as levy i
Reducad tax rate effect on final tax income classified as income tax £
Prior year adjustment .
Deferred tax i !
46,916 -
354 Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit for the comparative period was not applicable since the Group

had suffered loss from business and accordingly no provision for normal taxation was recognized in the last year.

36 Earnings per Share - Basic and Diluted

2025 2024
Net profit after taxation attribistable to ordinary shareholders (Rs. in 000s) 238,141 121,006
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (Number of shares in thousands) 181,153 45447
Earming pes share - Basic and diluted (Rupees) 1.3 266

36.1 The figure for diluted earm'ngs. per share is the same as basic eamnings per share as the Group has not issued any

instrument which would have an impact on basic earnings per share when exercised.

.



2025 2024

37 Cash Generated from Operations Note Rs. in 000s
Profit before levy and taxation 306,050 79,530
Adjustments
Depreciation 41 19,825 5,485
Depreciation on right of use asset 5 11,425 2,085
Income from associates 6.4 (106,087) (33,476)
Finance income on net investment in finance lease 8 (342) (86)
Investment properties - rental income 28 (43,995) (15,380)
Cash and cash equivalents - profit on saving bank accounts K} (6,833) (440)
Return on musharikah financing - under islamic mode 11.4 (126,225) (17,300)
Impairment loss on trade and other receivables 30 1,811 4,355
Bad debts written off 30 624
Unrealized gain on investment property 3 (64,154) (13,691)
Realized fair value gain on investments in Ensmile Limited 3 - (6,031)
Fair value gain recycled from OCI on disposal of associate K} - (23,977)
Old credit balances / excess provisions written back H (3,762) (4,650)
Old debit balances written off 29 4,492
Loss on disposal of property and equipment 4118412 156 746
Fair value gain on investment in listed equity securities - net (105,556)
Dividend Income on investment in listed equity securities kY| (2,033)
Gain on disposal of right of use asset 315 - (2,915)
Finance cost 33 79,259 19,887
Loss before working capital changes (341,395) (85,388)
(Increase) / decraase in current assets:
- Inventory 10 (30) (239)
- Trade and other receivables 12 (14,713) 18,101
- Advances, deposits and prepayments 13 (15,669) (29,361)
(30,412) (11,499)
Increase | (decrease) in current liabilities:
- Trade and other payables 23 (189,423) 41,062
- Other liabilities - deposits from employees 7,815 29,126
. (181,608) 70,188
Cash (Used in) / Generated from Operations (247,365) 52,831

o



33 Financial Risk Management

Thet;rnm‘sadhiﬁasamﬂhamialynfmmm:WM{MMWWWMMMHHMEMGMWM.WHfﬂkard
liquid'rlyr'slr.ThawmmmmmmmﬂmhmMMMMmﬂuhmmﬁmﬂmhmm
earnings volatilty end provide maximum retumn to sharehalders.

Risk managemant is carried by the Board of Directors (the Board). The Board provides principles for overall risk management as well as policies
covering specific areas such as curmency risk, other price risk, interest rate risk, credil risk and liquidity risk.

3841

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument may fluctuate because of changes in market prices.
Market risk comprise three types of risk; foreign currency risk, interest rate risk, commodity price and equity price risk that will affect the Group's
income or the value of is holdings of financial instruments.

Currency risk-

Foreign curmency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash fiows of 2 financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rates and arises where transactions are conducted in foreign currency. As there are no foreign cummency receivatles / payables of the

~ Group, itis not exposed (o currency risk (June 30, 2024: Nil).

Mnhrht

Interest rate risk is the rick that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument well fluctuate because of changes in market inferest
rates. The Group is not exposed to floating interest rate risk as its variable inlerest bearing liabilities exceeds its variable rale financial assets.

.

Financial assets

Floating rate instruments

Bank balances 15 41,298 191,812
Investment in Margin Trading System of NCCPL 1 . 17,644
Othar receivablos 123 . 32,59 4427
Total Financial Assets - variable 73,894 213,883
Financial liabilities

Payable to related parties (103,404) (B8,338)
Net financial Assets {29,510) 125 645

As at reporting date, if interest rates get 1% higner / (lower) with all other variables held constant, profit before taxation for the year would have
been (lower) / higher by Rs. 0.285 milien (2024: Rs. 1.26 million), mainly as & resut of yield on floating investment based financial assets.

Prica rigk

Price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes i market prices
(other than incse arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to individual financial
MMWIHHWWMMﬂmmmmtﬂﬂhhmmmhwwmmmmﬂ
it& investments carried a fair value through profit or loss. At the reporting date, the Group has heid investment in equity instuments amounting
{0 Rs. 71.627 million {2024; Rs. 322.403 million).

mmwﬁgm,lwmmmwmMmitm}mm.imummhnidmmmm
{axation for the year weuld have been highier / (lower) by Rs. 9.12 milion (2024: Rs. 15.303 million), mainly as a result of fair value fluctuation
on PSX of the Esied equity investments, T =
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38.2 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not mest.its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading
o a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily sundry receivables) and from its
investing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions, and other financial instruments.

As at the reporting date, the maximum axbosure to credit risk is equal to the carmying amount of the financial assets as

detailed below:
Financial Assets 2025 2024
P e Note Rs. in 000s

Net investment in finance lease 8 4,274 4275
Long term deposits 9 2,719 548
Advances to employees - adjustable in cash 13 B,616 1,386
Financial assels 1" 481,627 640,047
Trade and other receivables 12 55,118 42,160
Bank balances - 15 41,298 191,912

—393692 6002328,

Credit Quality of Financial Assets
The management assesses the credit quality of the customers, taking into account their financial position, past experience and
other factors. The utilization of credit limits is regularty monitored. For banks and financial institutions, only independently rated

parties with a strong credit rating are accepted.
The Group monitors the credit quality of its financial assets with reference to historical performance of such assets and

available external credit ratings, if any.
The aging of trade debts from leaseholders and tenants and related impairment loss as at the reporting date is as under:

2025 2024
Rs. in 000s
Neither past due nor impaired
~ Past due but not impaired
0-30 days 5924 7,493
31-60 days 3,153 1,508
61 - 90 days 1,528 1,386
> 91 days 4,943 5,773
Past due and impaired

0-30 days 261 -
31 - 60 days 1,365 228
91 - 120 days 1,264 199
> 91 days 18,243 19,055
Total Gross Amount Due I 36,681 35,642

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer such as repayment
behaviour, credit loss history and available securities etc. The management also considers other relevant factors that may
influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk associated with the customer. Majority of the Group's
customers have been transacting with the Group for over five years, and only trivial customers' balances have been written off.
In monitoring customer credit risk, customers are individually assessed according to their trading history and repayment
behaviour with the Group.

The risk management committee has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analyzed individually for
creditworthiness before the Group's standard payment terms are offered.

The Group establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of trade and other
receivables.

Lm’"‘




38.3

The Group evaluates the concentration of risk with respect o trade receivables as low, as its customers are operated in largely
independent markets. The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counter parties are either banks (with reasonably
high credit ratings) and trade receivables for which the exposure is spread over a large number of counter parties.

The credit quality of bank balances that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to external credit
ratings (if available) cr to historical information about counterparty default rate:

Rating
Shortterm | Longterm | Agency 2025 i
Bank lslamic Pakistan Limited A AA- PACRA -2 g2
Bank Al-Habib Limited A-1+ ARA PACRA 26,223 191,850
MCB Bank Limited ' A-1+ AAA PACRA 5217
Faysal Bank Limited A1+ AA PACRA 9,536

41,298 191,912

'Other receivables include Rs. 32.596 million (2024: Rs. 4.427 million) receivable from related party namely; Digital Custodian
Company Limited (DCCL), Rs. Nill (2024: Rs. 7.800 million) receivable from IGI Holdings Limited and Rs. 0.956 million (2024:
Rs. 8,478 million) due from corporate entities that are financially sound and having strong financial track record and
creditworthiness. : ;

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk represents the risk that the Group will encounter difficulties in meeting obligations associated with financial
liabilities. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities, the availability of
funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities. Due to dynamic nature of the business, the Group maintains
flexibility in funding by maintaining committed credit lines available. The Group's liquidity management involves projecting cash
flows and considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet these, monitoring critical liquidity ratios and maintaining debt
financing plans. The table below analyses the Group's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the reporting date to contractual maturity dates. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows: '

Carrying Contractual Within 1

Description fmanuct P year 1-2 Years || 2-5Years || 5- 10 years
Rs. in 000s
Contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at June 30, 2025: _
Long term financing 70,451 70,451 33,781 36,670
Loan from director - . - - - .
Other liabilities 2,944 2,944 - 2544 -
Trade and other payables 127,421 127421 127421 '
Unclaimed dividend 13,809 13,809 13,809
Accrued markup on financing 17,824 17,624 17,824 . . .

o




38.4

38.5

4 el

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at June 30, 2024;

Long term financing 96,734 96,734 26,284 33,781 36,669
Loan from director 100,000 100,000 100,000 - .
Other liabilities 1,07¢ 1,079 o 1,079

Trade and other payables 294,849 294,849 204,849 -

Unclaimed dividend 10,359 10,359 10,359 - -
Accrued markup on financing 3,852 3952 3,952 -

506,973 506,973 435444 34,860 36,669 -

The contractual cash flows relating to the above financial liabilities have been determined on the basis of interest rates / mark
up rates effective as at the reporting date. The rates of interest / mark up have been disclosed in relevant notes to these
financial statements, where applicable.

Financial instruments by categories 2025 2024
Note Rs. in 000s
Financial et as at fai .
Investment in Equity Securities 11 71,627 322,403
F i et as at amol
Met investment in finance lease 8 4,274 4275
Long term deposits 9 2,719 548
Advances to employees - adjustable in cash 13 8,616 1,386
Advance to related parties - unsecured 13 32,596 4,427
Financial assets 11 410,000 317,644
Trade and other receivables 12 22,522 37,733
Cash and bank balances 15 41,398 192,012
_ S_E:IIHZ 880.428
Financial liabilities at amortized cost
Long term financing 20 70,451 96,734
Loan from director 25 . 100,000
Other liabilities 21 2,944 1,079
Trade and other payables 23 127,421 294,849
Unclaimed dividend 13,009 10,359
Accrued markup on financing 26 17,624 3,952
232,449 506,973
Fair value measurement

Fair value is the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. Consequently, differences may arise between the carrying value and the fair
value estimates.

Financial assets which are tradable in an open market are revalued at the market prices prevailing on the reporting date. Fair
value is determined on the basis of objective evidence at each reporting date. The management believes that the fair values of
financial and non-financial assets and financial liabilities approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term
maturities of financial instruments.

Fair value hierarchy

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value by valuation method. The different levels have been defined
as follows:
- quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1);
~ inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly (level 2); and

- inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (level 3).



Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets - measured at fair value
Investments in equity securities 71,827 - - 71.627
Non - financial assets - measured at fair value-
Property and equipment - 1,239,741 1,238,741
Investment property - 456,276 - 456,276
71,627 Jlﬁﬁlgﬁ - 1,767,644
2024
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets - measured at fair value
Investments in equity securities 322,403 - - 322,403
Non - financial assets - measured at fair value
Property and equipment - 1,246,490 - 1,246,450
Investment property - 392,122 - 392,122
322403 _ 1638612 - 1961015

There were no transfers amongst levels during the year.
39 Capital Risk Management

The Board's policy is to maintain an efficient capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain the
future development of its business. The Board of Directors monitors the return on capital employed, which the Group defines as
operating income divided by total capital employed. The Board of Directors also monitors the level of dividends to shareholders.

The Group's objectives when managing capital are:
a) to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders; and
b} to provide an adequate return to shareholders.

The Group manages the capital structure in the context of economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In
order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may, for example, adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue
new shares, if possible, selling surplus property and equipment without affecting the optimal operating level and reguilating its dividend
payout thus maintaining smooth capital management.

In line with the industry norms, the Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided
by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including current and non current) less cash and cash equivalents. Total
capital is calculated as equity, as shown in the statement of financial position, plus net debt.

The gearing ratio of the Group s as follows:

2025 2024
Note Rs. in 000s
Total Debts (long term and short term) 39.1 70,451 196,734
Less: Cash and cash equivalents ' ' (41,398) (191,286)
Net Debt ; 29,053 5,448
Equity 3,166,191 2,970,870
Total capital employed 3,195,244 2,976,318
Gearing ratio ' : ' 0.91% 0.18%

39.1 Total debts include lease liability, financial liabilities at amortized cost and loan from director.

ar’



40 Reconciliation of movament of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities

Balance as at July 1, 2004

Changes from financing cagh flows

Amount colected from buliding occupants for fixed
assets replacement fund
Dividend issued during the year

Lease liability obtained during the year
Repayment of lease finance

Loan recewed during the year
Repayment during the year

Director lcan obtained during the year
Repayment of director loan during the year
Dividend tzsued during the year
Dividend paid during the year

Total changes from financing cash flows

Other changes
Total accumulated profits related other changes

Balance as zt June 30, 2025

Balance as at July 1. 2023

: fom fnanci !

Shares issued for cash during the year
Amount colected from bulding occupants for fxed
assels replacement fund
Dividend rssued during the year

Lease liabiity obtained during th year
Repayment of lease finance

Loan received during the year
Repayment during the year

Director loan obtained during the year
Repayrment of director loan during the year
Dividend issued during the year
Dividend paid during the year

Total changes from financing cash flows

Other chandes

Shares issyed other than in cash |

Total accumuliated Profits related other changes
Balance as at June 30, 2024

oV

205
Equity Liabilities
[ Financial
Share Building || Unappropriated Lease liability at | | Loan from | | Unclaimed Total
capital Reserve Prefit liability amortized director dividend
-Rupees n
1,611,534 1,682 7.5 £7.259 20475 100,000 10,358 2782104
4,089 . - - - 4,089
. (18,880) - . : (18,840
3 . (7.403)| . (7.403)|
iy 4 % {100,000 . (100,000} |
: ’ 5 :!?.12?}1 (87.127)
4,089 (18,880) (7.403)  (100,000) (87,127) (208,321)
v 147,340 - - - 90,577 230 338
1,811,534 6,593 019,735 48,379 HEE 13,808 2.52%1!3
204
Exquity Liabilities
Share coed Bulding || Unappropriated Lease liabiiity at | | Loan from | | Unclaimed Total
copltal Reserve Profit liability amortized direcior dividend
Flpees
210,000 - 24,657 - - 10359 245,016
. 1,208 - 1,298
. - 70,000 - 70,000
= 5 . (2.741) . - (2.741)
“ 4 . . 30,000 - 30,000
i & (525) - (525)
i . - . 100,000 - 100,000
- il \_BT:EJ i VLS i 1 : Te i
1,601,534 - - - . 1,601,534
- 384 747,138 - - 747,502
1,54 . - - Z
1,811,534 1,682 771,795 67,259 29475 100,000 10,358 2,792,104




41 Segment Reporting

41,1 Operating Segmants
MmmrmmnimdmwaﬁQmmhmdmmmwwwmmummdmﬁmpmalmd
resources and assessmeni of performance. Reporting stnicture of the Group is based on this intemal management reperting structure. The Group has two
sirategic divisions i.e. Strategic investments and rental, room mainienance & related services, which are its reporiable segments. These divisions have
different operations and were managed separately bacause they require different sirategies.

Reportable segments Operations

Strategic Investment Fair value gain (realized / unrealized), share of profit from
associates, refurn on loan and receivables, dividend income
eic.

Rental, Room mainienance and relaled senvices Rental income, room mainienance, parking charges, fair value

. gain on imeestment property etic.

Information about reportable seaments

Information relsted to each reporiable segment is set out below. Segment profit / (loss) before levy and fax is used to measure performance because
management believes that this information is the mast relevant in evaluating the results of the respective segments relative o other entities that operale in the
same industries.

Segment results and assels include items directly attributable to a segment as wedl as thosa that can be allocaled on a reasonable basis.

2025
Rental, Room
" wl A maintenance and Total
related services
Segment income 144 684 157,280 501,984
Segment related cost : {2.435) {2,435)
Segment profit before levy and taxation 344 684 154 B45 499.529
Segment assets
Investment in associated companies ' 1,065,510 s 1,065,510
Financial Assets 481627 - 481,627
Met Investment in finance lease . 4,274 4274
Accrued markup on loan and recesvables 5925 . 5,925
Investment property 5 - 456,276 456,276
Trade and other receivaties - 15,586 15,586
Advance to broker 7817 - 7,617
Segment liabilities -
Payable to Ghani Chemical Industries Limited 7,000 - 7,000
Security deposit against rent - 2944 2544
Contract liability - 2430 2430
i
| mth maintanance and Tolal
related services
Segment incoma 58,664 42,851 141,535
Sagnmt relatad cost - 4,355 (4,
Segment profit before levy and taxation BB .’5&'&)' 13?.?3?‘
Segment assets : -
Imvestment in related partes 896,024 - 896,024
Financial Assets 640,047 . 640,047
Met Investmert in finance lease - 4275 4,775
Accrued markup on loan and receivables 5,300 - 5,300
Investment property 302122 92122
Trade and other receivables 16,155 16,155
Segment liabilities
Payable to Ghani Chemical Industries Limited 174,706 - 174,706
Advance received against sale of Ensmile shares 25,000 - 25,000
Security deposit agamst rent - 107 1.078
Contract liability - 7401 740

(el el
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41.2
Reconciliations of information on reportable segments to the amounts reported in the financial statements

2025 2024
Note Rs. in 000s

Income
Total income for reportable segments 41.1 501,964 141,535
Unallocated income 75,757 23,811
Combined income 577,721 165,346
Profit before levy and taxation
Segment results before levy and tax 411 499,529 137,180
Unallocated amounts:
- other income 75,757 23,81
- administrative expense 29 (189,977) (61,574)
- finance cost 33 (79,259) (19,887)
Profit before levy and taxation 306,050 79,530

——— ———
Assets
Total assets for reportable segments 2,036,815 1,853,923
Other unallocated amounts 1,491,444 1,637,307
Combined total assets 3,528,259 3,591,230
Liabilities
Total liabilities for reportable segments 12,374 208,186
Other unallocated amounts 349,694 412,174
Combined total liabilities 362,068 620,360

41.3 The sales percentage by geoaraphic reqion is as follows:
2025 2024
% %

Pakistan A,_ ISR, : (=

41.4 There is no individual customer from whom more than 10% of total revenue is received.

41.5 All non-current assets of the Group as at reporting date are located in Pakistan.
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t 47 Transactions and Balances with Related Parties

The related parties of the Group are as follows:

— Basis of relationship I~
Names of Related Parties Relationship (percentage shareholding or
__common directorship)
LSE Ventures Limited Associated Company 21.78%
LSE Financial Services Limited Associated Company Common directorship
LSE SPAC-1 Limited Whotly owned Subsidiary Company 100.00% :
Digital Custodian Company Limited Associated Company 42 50% i
Mr. Shoaib Mir Chairmaniindependent Director Common directorship. & &
Mr. Aftab Ahmad Chief Executive Officer Common directorship® - =
Ms. Aasiya Riaz Naon-Executive Director Commen directorship . -
Mr. Muhamad labal Won-Executive Director Common directorship
Ms. Shumaila Siddique Indepandent Direcior Common direclorship: ~
Mr. Yaser Manzoor Non-Executive Director Common direciorship
Mr. Aoun Muhammad Non-Executive Director Common directorship
Lahore Stock Exchange Limited - Post employment fi E s furd

Employees' Provident Fund Trus!

Related parties include associated entities, directors and their close family members and other key management personnel. Balances with related parties are disciosed in
respective notes. Details of transactions with related parties during the year, other than those which have been disclosed eisewhere in these financial statements, are as

follows:
Names of Related Parties Mature of Transactions Relationship 2025 2024
Rs. in 000s
LSE SPAC-I Limited Invesiment during the year Wholly owned 10,000 -
Subsidiary Company

LSE Financial Services Limited (LSEFSL)
Expenses pakl by the Group on behalf of LSEFSL Comman Directorship 3,886 8407
Reimbursement of expenses paid 4421 9407
Expenses paid by the LSEFSL on behalf of the Group . 24,633
Advance recaived 29,689 .
Markup Expense on Advance 2,456 -
Equity management fee charged to the party 6,208 -
Dividend paid ta the party 5,000 -
MTS investment made during the year 170,000 48 964
MTS Investiment reversed duning the year 183,821 31,320
MTS income received 4783 2523

LSE Ventures Limited (LSE VL) Expanses paid by the Group on behalf of party Associated Company 43,813 52 522
Reimbursement of expenses paid 38,128 42,249
Payment made for investment - 63,000
Payment agains! investment received back 7,740 20,000
Advance received 162,613 100,000
Advance refunded 157,000 -
Advisory services charged to the party 10,500 -
Equity management fee charged to the party 31,250 -
Dividend recaived from the pary 48,172 -
Dividend paid to the party 11,185 -
Markup Expense on Advance received 14,885 8.100

Digital Custodian Company Limited Funds provided 1o the party Associated Company 20,695 4421
Interest income charged to the party 2,242 1,579
Equity managemani fea charged to the party 9,094 -
Expenses borne by the Group on behalf of the party 565 .
Shares registrar services provided by the party i3 152

Lahore Stock Exch Limited - ’ :
. ‘“ﬁ'm — Total Contribution made during the year Employee's fund 5,619 1,225

i




Key management parsonnel Salary & other banefits of CEQ 11,666 11,927
Loan received from CEQ - 100,000
Loan paid back to CEQ 100,000 3,750
Interest on loan paid to CEQ 12,542 4,958
Director's meating fee 1,675 1,925

Balances outstanding as at.

Financial Asset - currant assets

MTS Imvestment Through LSE Financial Services Limited . 17,644

Trade and Other Receivables

Recetvable from Digital Custodian Company Limiled 32,596 4,427

Cther liabilities

Payable agzinst Sale and lsase back 1o chief executive 14,000 14,000

Payabie against Sale and lease back % Digital Custodian Company Limited, an associated company 5,500 5,500

Trade and other payablos ' ;

Payable to LSE Venture Linited 79,298 88,338

Payable to LSE Financial Services Limited 24,115 -

Accruad markup on financing

Payable to LSE Venlture Limited 14,885 2,100

Payabla to LSE Financial Services Limited 2456 .

43 Remuneration of Chief Executive Officer, Directors and Executives
Theawagateanumtdmgadmmwmhﬂumfummmmwmmﬂmmwpsum:

Chief Executive Officer Directors Exscutives Total
225 | 20 2025 2024 w025 | 2024 05 | 2024
. Rs. in 000s
Managerial remuneration 5,088 6,315 - 7,964 12,683 13,052 19,438
Greup's contribtion to ¢
the provident fund trust 509 682 . 795 1.207 1,305 1,888
Housing and utiities 2,798 3,748 - - 4,380 6,976 7,178 10,724
Meeting fees . - 15675 1925 . - 1675 1,925
Others’ 321 682 51 45 3,115 2420 6,437 3147
11,666 11.927 1,726 1,970 16,255 23,286 29,647 37,183
Number of persons 1 1 & 7 g 15 16 &
431  Inaddition to tha above, Chitf Executive is provided with the Group's maintained vehicle for official purposes only.
432 AnExecutive is defined as an employes, other than the chief executive officer and directors, whose basic salary exceeds Rs. 1.2 millien in a finangial year,
44 Number of Employeas 025 2024
Total number of emaloyces at the year and 83 ]
65 68

Average number of employees during the year

45 Date of Authorization For lssue

TkmﬁmmlsummhmebemmhﬁmdhrmhymﬂwdﬂmmumﬁmhMrnaetkghaidm Kovember 01, 2025,

45 General

46.1 Canmmﬁgmammmmadfmmd mwarnmsary mlanlrmamrrw Hunupm-amWhasbaenmd&mﬂwmamwlg
figures in these financial statemants.

46.2

aintains the employees provident fund trust at group leved for
jogr s regands 1o the management of the fund and manthly

gmanent employees baing employed by the group companies. All ihe
s i the fund's bank account are being mads

companics al
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
November 06, 2025
NOTICE is hereby given, that the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of LSE Capital Limited (the

“Company”) will be held on Thursday, November 27t, 2025, at 09:00 a.m. at the registered office of
the Company (and via video conferencing) to transact the following business: -

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
To confirm the minutes of the Annual General Meeting held on November 27, 2024.

To receive, consider and adopt the Annual Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year
ended June 30, 2025, together with the Directors’ and Auditors” Reports thereon.

(=]

https://capital.lse.com.pk/downloads/annual/LSECL-
Annual-Report-2025.pdf

To appoint External Auditors of the Company for the year ending June 30%, 2026, and to fix their
remuneration.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:
To consider and if deemed appropriate, pass the following Special Resolutions with or without any
modification(s), addition(s) and/or deletion(s), as deemed appropriate by the members:

4.1 Changes in the Memorandum/Articles of Association of the Company for:

411 Stock split by reducing par/nominal value of the share of the Company from Rs. 10.00 to Rs. 5.00
per share:

4.1.1.1 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the Section 85 of the Companies Act, 2017 the approval be
and is hereby accorded for subdivision of the authorized capital of LSE Capital Limited (“the
Company”) from Rs. 2,500,000,000/- divided into 200,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 10.00 each
and 50,000,000 Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each to Rs. 2,500,000,000/- divided into 400,000,000
Ordinary shares of Rs. 5.00 each and 100,000,000 Preference Shares of Rs. 5/- each.

4.1.1.2 FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Company Secretary be and is hereby authorized to amend
and alter the Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of the Company to give
effect of subdivision of authorized capital of the Company and to change its issued capital
accordingly.

41.1.3 FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby
authorized to determine the entitlement dates and book closure dates (in their separate
meeting of the Board or pass the resolutions through circulation) to effectuate the stock split.
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4114 FURTHER RESOLVED THAT approval be and is hereby accorded to replace Clause V of the
Memorandum of Association and Clause 6 of the Articles of Association of the Company as
follows:

CLAUSE V OF THE MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION:

“V: The Authorized capital of the Company is Rs. 2,500,000,000/- (Rupees Pak. Two
Thousand Five Hundred Million only) divided into 400,000,000 (Four Hundred
million) Ordinary shares of Rs. 5/- (Rupees Five) each and 100,000,000 Preference
Shares of Rs. 5/- each having such preferential, redemption, conversion, deferred,
qualified or special rights, privileges or conditions as provided in the Articles of
Association of the Company or in accordance with the Companies Act, 2017.”

CLAUSE 6 OF THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION:

“Share Capital:

3. The Authorized Capital of the Company is Rs. 2,500,000,000 (Rupees Two Thousand
Five Hundred Million only) divided into 400,000,000 (Four Hundred Million) Ordinary
Shares of Rs. 5/- each and 100,000,000 (One Hundred Million) Preference Shares of Rs.
5/- each.”

4.1.2 Offering of Optional Payout Structure to the Shareholders:

4121 “RESOLVED THAT the approval be and is hereby accorded for the addition of the following
new clauses (Articles) as Articles 80A, 80B, 80C and 80D in the Articles of Association of the
Company and the renumbering of all of the next clauses (Articles) accordingly:

“80A Subject to the Companies (Further Issue of Shares) Regulations, 2020, the Company
shall have the power to issue bonus shares of any class out of any reserve(s) of any
kind from time to time, and the decision of the Board to issue bonus shares, once
announced, shall not be varied, postponed, withdrawn or cancelled.

80B The Company shall also have the power to implement an optional payout structure
whereby a shareholder may be asked to either opt for receiving cash dividend or
equity dividend (as fully paid bonus shares). The Board of Directors shall have the
power to determine the price/value and procedure for such optional bonus shares.

80C A shareholder choosing optional bonus will forgo his/her/their right to cash dividend
whereafter the Company shall issue and credit such number of bonus shares which
equals the value of cash payout (dividend) for the relevant period.

80D No Dividend shall be paid otherwise than out of profits of the year or un-
distributable profits. However, bonus shares shall be paid from any reserves
including capital reserves.”

41.2.2 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT with the insertion of the above clause (article), all of the next
clauses (articles) shall be renumbered accordingly.”

4.2 Transactions with associated companies/related parties (under Section 199 of the Companies Act,
2017):

421 “RESOLVED THAT the approval be and is hereby accorded to fix the upper limit of the
Company’s investments/financing with associated companies/related parties with the condition
that any investment (against equity on market price/right shares subscription/initial capital, as the
case may be) shall not exceed PKR 600 Mn, and any advance/financing/loan shall not be below the
rate of six (6) months KIBOR+1%. Similarly, any disposal of the already held equity or divestment
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from any associated company shall not be less than the market price or the value certified by a
firm of Chartered Accountants.”

4.22 “FURTHER RESOLVED THAT in light of the above, the Board of the Company be and is hereby
authorized to approve transactions with associated companies / related parties, which may be
carried out during the financial year ending June 30, 2026.”

4.2.3 “FURTHER RESOLVED THAT all transactions with associated companies / related parties shall
be placed before the shareholders for ratification in the subsequent general body meetings.”

424 “RESOLVED THAT the related party transactions as provided in the relevant notes of the
accounts for the period ended June 30, 2025, be and are hereby approved/ratified.”

4.3 Authorizing the Company Secretary to implement all special resolutions passed in AGM:

4.3.1 “RESOLVED THAT the Company Secretary, be and is hereby authorized to take all necessary
steps and execute all necessary documents towards fulfillment of all legal and corporate
requirements involved, and to file all requisite documents with the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan, as may be necessary or expedient for the purpose giving full effect to
and implementing the letter, spirit and intent of the foregoing resolutions.”

The members are requested to refer to the notes enclosed with these agenda papers.

In addition to dispatch of this notice to the shareholders, this is also being placed on the Company's
website (http://www.lse.com.pk).

Issued under the authorization of the Board of Directors of:
-Sd-
Muhammad Sajjad Hyder

Company Secretary
(sajjad@lse.com.pk)
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Notes on the Ordinary and Special Business of the Company

1. SECP has granted an extension of 30 days to hold AGM up to Nov 27, 2025 vide its letter No.
SMD/PRDD/Comp/(147)/2024/67 dated October 10, 2025.

2. Book Closure:
The Share Transfer books of the Company will remain closed, and no transfer of shares will be accepted
forregistration from November 21, 2025 to November 27, 2025 (both days inclusive). Any transfer request
received by the office of the share registrar of the Company by the close of business on November 20t
2025, will be treated in time for the purpose of attendance in the AGM.

3. Availability of Audited Financial Statements:
In accordance with Section 223 of the Companies Act, 2017, and pursuant to S.R.O. 389(1)/2023 dated
March 21, 2023, the financial statements of the Company have been uploaded on the website of the
Company in addition to annual and quarterly financial statements for the prior years and can be
downloaded from the above given web link and QR enabled code.

4. For Attending the Meeting

a. In the case of individuals, the account holder concerned or the sub-account holder along with the
CDC statement of his/her holding, shall be able to attend the meeting by showing original
Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) or original passport at the time of attending the
meeting.

b. Inthe case of a corporate entity, the authorization letters including the resolution/ power of attorney
from the Board of Directors along with the specimen signatures of the nominee shall be required
for attendance.

5. Proxies/Authorizations:

a. A member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint another member as his/her
proxy to attend and vote instead of him/her.

b. The proxies, in order to be effective, must be received at the Registered Office of the Company not
less than 48 hours before the time of holding the meeting. The CDC Accounts Holders will further
have to follow the guidelines as laid down in Circular 1 dated January 26, 2000, issued by the SECP.

c.  The proxy form shall be witnessed by two people whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall
be mentioned on the form, and as per the requirements mentioned in the attached form.

d. Attested copies of the CNIC or passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished
with the proxy form.

e. The proxy shall produce his/her original CNIC or original passport at the time of the meeting.

f.  Incase of corporate entities, the authorization letter including the resolution/ power of attorney from
the board of directors, along with the specimen signature of the nominee shall be required to be
submitted.

g. The specimen of the proxy and the authorization forms for the AGM have been placed on the
Company’s website (http://www.lse.com.pk) and also attached to the notice of the meeting.

6. E-Voting & Voting through Postal Ballot:

The members are hereby notified that pursuant to Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations, 2018 (the
“Regulations”), amended through Notification dated December 05, 2022, issued by the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (“SECP”), wherein, SECP has directed all the listed companies to
provide the right to vote through electronic voting facility and voting by post to the members for the
purpose of election of Directors and for any other agenda item subject to the requirement of Section 143
an d144 of the Act, in accordance with the requirements and procedure contained in the aforesaid
Regulations.
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7. Video Conference Facility:
In accordance with Section 132(2) of the Act, if the Company receives consent from the members

holding in aggregate 10% or more shareholding residing in a geographical location to participate in
the meeting through video conference at least seven (7) days prior to the date of the AGM, the
Company will arrange the video conference facility in that city subject to the availability of such facility
in that city.

8. Online Meeting Link
Online meeting link and login credentials will be shared with only those members/proxies whose
emails, containing all the required particulars, are received at the given email address
(sajjad@lse.com.pk) by 05:00 pm on Monday, November 24, 2025.

9. Change in Address and CNIC:
The members are requested to notify any change in their address and contact details, as well as the
attested photocopy of their valid CNICs, in case of the book entry securities in CDS to their respective
participants and in case of physical shares to the registrar of the Company, by quoting their folio
numbers and name of the Company at the below mentioned address of the Company’s Share
Registrar, if not earlier notified/submitted:

M/s F.D Registrar Services (Pvt.) Limited
17th Floor, Saima Trade Tower - A, LL. Chundrigar Road, Karachi
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Statement of Material Facts Under Section 134(3) Of The Companies
Act, 2017

The statement sets out the material facts pertaining to the special business items to be transacted at the
Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Thursday, November 27, 2025.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:
Agenda Item # 4: Approval of Special Resolutions

4.1 The proposed changes in the Memorandum/Articles of Association of the Company are being made
to implement the followings:

4.1.1 Stock split by reducing par/nominal value of the share of the Company from Rs. 10.00 to Rs. 5.00
per share pursuant to the Section 85 of the Companies Act, 2017 the approval of the shareholders
for subdivision of the authorized capital of LSE Capital Limited (“the Company”) from Rs.
2,500,000,000/- divided into 200,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 10.00 each and 50,000,000 Preference
Shares of Rs. 10/- each to Rs. 2,500,000,000/- divided into 400,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 5.00
each and 100,000,000 Preference Shares of Rs. 5/- each. Accordingly, the relevant clauses will be
updated as per the above change.

412 Toimplement an optional payout arrangement for the benefit of investors. The Company can only
offer an optional payout arrangement if the Articles of Association of the Company contain such
provisions. The idea behind this change is that in future, the Company will pay either the cash
dividend or in-kind dividend to the shareholders. Only those opting for the issuance of bonus
shares will be given bonus shares equal to the cash payout. Rest of the shareholders shall be
provided cash dividend.

4.2 This agenda relates to the transactions with associated companies/related parties [under Section 199 of
the Companies Act, 2017 as well as Regulation 5(5) of the Companies (Investment in Associated
Companies or Associated Undertakings) Regulations, 2017].

In pursuance to Regulation No. 3 (3) of the Companies (Investment in Associated Companies or
Associated Undertakings) Regulations, 2017 under SRO 1240(1)/2017 dated 6 December 2017, the
directors of the Company have carried out due diligence for the proposed investment in its
associated company/associated undertakings before sending this recommendation for the member’s
approval.

Moreover, the transactions conducted with the related parties have to be approved by the Board of
Directors duly recommended by the Audit Committee on quarterly basis pursuant to clause 15 of
Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019. in order to promote
transparent business practices, the shareholders are to authorize the Board of Directors to approve
transactions with the related parties from time-to-time on case-to-case basis during a year.
Accordingly, these transactions are being placed before the shareholders in this meeting for their
formal ratification.

All transactions with related parties to be ratified have been disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements to the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2025. The Company carries out
transactions as per the approved policy with respect to ‘transaction with related parties in the normal
course of business. The nature of relationships with these related parties has been indicated in the
relevant notes of the account. The Directors are interested in the resolution only to the extent of their
shareholding and having their common directorships in such related parties.
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Similarly, the Company shall be conducting transactions with its related parties during the year ending
on June 30, 2026, as per the approved policy with respect to ‘transactions with related parties’ in the
normal course of business. In order to promote transparent business practices, the shareholders are
required to authorize the Board of Directors to approve transactions with the related parties from time-
to-time and on case-to-case basis for the year ending on June 30, 2026, which transactions shall be
deemed to be approved by the Shareholders These transactions shall be placed before the shareholders
in the next AGM for their formal approval/ratification.

Note: None of the Directors of the Company have any direct or indirect interest in this special business
except to the extent of their respective shareholding in the Company.

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(a) DISCLOSURES FOR ALL TYPES OF INVESMENTS:

(A) Regarding associated company or associated undertaking; -

Requirement

Name of
Associated
Company or
associated
undertaking

Basis of
relationship

Earnings per share
for the last three
years

Break-up  value
per share, based on
latest audited
financial
statements
Financial position,
including  main
items of statement
of financial
position and profit
and loss account
on the basis of its

latest financial
statements
In case of

Information

LSE Ventures
Limited

Associated
Company with
26.82% of
LSECL.

LSEVL has 12%
shareholding in
LSECL.
Common
directorship

Year 2025: Rs.
1.16
Year 2024: Rs.
1.04
Year 2023: Rs.
1.24

Rs. 14.79 as on
June 30, 2025.

Audited
Financial
Statements of
LSEVL for the
year ended
June 30, 2025
available at:
http://www lse.
com.pk

Not applicable

LSE Financial
Services
Limited

Associated
Company with
28%
shareholding
of LSEVL.
LSEFSL has
5.5%
shareholding
in LSECL.
Common
directorship
Year 2025: Rs.
0.51
Year 2024: Rs.
1.72
Year 2023: Rs.
0.07

Rs. 12.81 as on
June 30, 2025.

Audited
Financial
Statements of
LSEFSL for the
year ended
June 30, 2025
available at:

http://www.lIse.

com.pk
Not applicable

LSE SPAC-1
Limited

Wholly owned
company of
LSECL.

Common
directorship

Formed in 2025
Year 2025: Rs.
(1.43)

Rs. 9.55 as on
June 30, 2025.

Audited
Financial
Statements of
LSE-SPAC for
the year ended
June 30, 2025
available at:
http://www lse.
com.pk
Not applicable
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investment in
relation to a project
of associated
company or
associated
undertaking that
has not
commenced
operations,

(B) General Disclosures:

Maximum
aggregate
amount  of
investment to
be made
Purpose
benefits
likely to
accrue
to the
investin
g
compan
y and its
member
s from
such
investm
ent and
period
of
investm
ent.
Source of
funds to be
utilized for
investment
and  where
the
investment is
intended to

be made

using

borrowed
funds;

(I)  Justificati
on for
investme
nt
through

Up to Rs. 600 million as equity investments for the purchase of shares,
disposal of shares and short-term loans/advances for any one or more
associated companies in aggregate.

To meet the
working capital
requirement  of

the Company.

Through internal
sources.

To meet the
working capital
requirement  of

the Company.

Through internal
sources.

To meet the
working capital
requirement  of

the Company.

Through internal
sources.

/8

LSCE CAPRITAL

Annual Report — 2025

140



N

borrowin
g
() Details of
collateral,
guarante
es
provided
and
assets
pledged
for
obtaining
such
funds;
and
(1) Cost
benefit
analysis;
Salient
features  of
the
agreement (if
any)  with
associated
company or
associated
undertaking
with regards
to proposed
investment.
Direct or
indirect
interest
of
director
S,
sponsor
S,
majority
sharehol
ders and
their
relatives
, if any,
in the
associat
es’
compan
y or
associat
ed
underta

The format of LSE’s standard financial facilitation agreements with the

relevant Associated company shall be followed.

Following
Directors
have

only
indirect
in the
associated
companies due
to common
directorship/shar
eholding but
have no direct
in the
transactions:

interest

interest

Mr. Aftab
Ahmad

Ms. Aasiya Riaz
Muhammad
Igbal

Following
Directors
have

only
indirect
in the
associated
companies due
to common
directorship/shar
eholding but
have no direct
interest in the

interest

transactions
Mr. Aftab
Ahmad

Ms. Aasiya Riaz

Following
Directors
have

only
indirect
in the
associated
companies due
to common
directorship/shar
eholding but
have no direct
interest in the

interest

transactions
Mr. Aftab
Ahmad

Ms. Aasiya Riaz

"

CA

LSce

Annual Report — 2025

PITAL

141



king or
the
transacti
on
under
consider
ation:
In case any
investment in
associated
company or
associated
undertaking
has already
been made,
the
performance
review of
such
investment
including
complete
information /
justification
for any
impairment
or write offs.
Any  other
important
details
necessary for
the members
to
understand
the
transaction

"
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There has not been any impairment or write off in any investment. All
investments in the associated entities have been made on an arm'’s
length basis. It is also confirmed that all past transactions have been
made at the required returns.

Not Applicable

(b) In case of equity investment, following disclosures in addition to those provided under clause

(a) of sub-regulation (1) of regulation 3 shall be made:-

)

(i)

(iif)

Maximum price at
which securities will
be acquired

In case the purchase
price is higher than
market value in case
of listed securities and
fair value in case of
unlisted  securities,
justification thereof
Maximum number of
securities to  be
acquired

Market price or face value.
The transaction shall be disclosed to the market as and when
executed
Transactions only at market price/face value

Depends on the market conditions
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(iv)

v)

(vi)

Number of securities
and percentage
thereof held before
and after the
proposed investment
Current and
preceding twelve
weeks’ weighted
average market price
where investment is
proposed to be made
in listed securities;
and

Fair value determined
in terms and sub-
regulation (1) of
regulation 5 for
investments in
unlisted securities

”r
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If subscription is to be made against right shares, then this
information shall be provided accordingly.

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

(c) In case of Investments in the form of Loan and Advances and guarantees:

()

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Category wise number
of investments

Average borrowing cost
of the investing
Company

Rate of interest, markup
profit, fees or
commission etc. to be
charged by investing
company

Particulars of collateral
or security to be
obtained in relation to
the proposed
investment

If the investment carry
conversion features:
Repayment  schedule
and terms and
conditions of loans or
advances to be given to
the associated company
or associated
undertaking

Investment by way of subscription through right offer or as
short-term loan / advance not exceeding Rs. 600 million in any
one or more associated companies in aggregate.

No borrowing obtained by LSEVL

6M KIBOR+1%

No collateral in case subscription through the right shares.
Assignment of receivables of the borrowing company

No Conversion option

As and when the advance/loan shall be extended, customary
repayment schedule shall be agreed

4.3 This resolution is being proposed to authorize the Company Secretary to implement all proposed

special resolutions after their adoption/approval by the shareholders.

Annual Report — 2025

143



Pattern of Shareholding

as on June 30, 2025
Number of Shareholdings Total Number
Shareholders From To of Shares Held
2587 1 100 51,798
704 101 500 191,494
352 501 1000 277,989
534 1001 5000 1,264,639
123 5001 10000 972,884
54 10001 15000 685,865
28 15001 20000 505,175
32 20001 25000 739,745
18 25001 30000 502,278
11 30001 35000 363,492
9 35001 40000 344,182
10 40001 45000 421,158
18 45001 50000 877,999
4 50001 55000 215,485
8 55001 60000 469,361
5 60001 65000 310,297
1 65001 70000 70,000
5 70001 75000 366,997
4 75001 80000 315,710
4 80001 85000 333,700
2 85001 90000 171,706
3 90001 95000 278,592
43 95001 100000 4,214,557
2 100001 105000 201,335
3 105001 110000 325,351
7 110001 115000 782,649
1 115001 120000 119,344
2 120001 125000 242,921
1 125001 130000 125,674
2 130001 135000 263,442
7 135001 140000 961,868
1 140001 145000 141,685
42 145001 150000 6,178,471
1 150001 155000 150,785
2 160001 165000 328,957
1 180001 185000 184,338
2 185001 190000 378,000
1 190001 195000 194,730
4 195001 200000 788,444
9 205001 210000 1,854,081
1 220001 225000 224,183
1 230001 235000 232,815
1 240001 245000 244,850
27 245001 250000 6,622,950
1 250001 255000 251,500
1 270001 275000 273,315

”r
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2 275001 - 280000 553,280
1 280001 - 285000 284,541

1 290001 - 295000 290,642
2 295001 - 300000 600,000
1 320001 - 325000 324,521
5 340001 - 345000 1,716,968
1 360001 - 365000 364,952
1 365001 - 370000 368,580
1 405001 - 410000 407,955

1 420001 - 425000 421,789

1 435001 - 440000 440,000
1 440001 - 445000 443,339

1 515001 - 520000 517,189

1 575001 - 580000 578,475

1 645001 - 650000 650,000
1 695001 - 700000 695,807
1 765001 - 770000 766,780
1 870001 - 875000 871,927
1 900001 - 905000 903,536
1 935001 - 940000 938,561

1 980001 - 985000 980,520
1 1380001 - 1385000 1,381,857
2 1760001 - 1765000 3,529,797
1 2190001 2195000 2,190,386
1 2200001 2205000 2,201,709
1 2535001 2540000 2,537,570
1 4070001 4075000 4,073/411
1 4790001 4795000 4,794,009
1 5860001 5865000 5,864,809
1 7235001 7240000 7,237,163
1 9995001 10000000 10,000,000
1 12935001 12940000 12,935,548
1 13755001 13760000 13,758,156
1 15380001 15385000 15,383,861
1 22615001 22620000 22,615,904
1 24510001 24515000 24,513,012

4722 181,153,345
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Categories of Shareholding

"

LSCE CAPRITAL

as at June 30, 2025
. Sh P ta
SN Categories of Shareholders ares ereent
o. Held ge
Directors, Chief Executive Officer their
1 [ 37,765,387 20.85
Spouse(s) and Minor Children, if any.
’ Associated Con.lpames, Undertakings 64,980,183 3587
and Related Parties
3 Executives - 0.00
4 NIT and ICP 15,269 0.01
Banks Development Financial
5 Institutions, Non Banking Financial 336,678 0.19
Institutions
6 Insurance Companies 16,090 0.01
7 Modarabas and Mutual Funds 245,536 0.14
Joint Stock Companies 22,255,279 12.29
8 Others 345,414 0.19
9 General Public
a) Local 55,192,111 3047
b) Foreign 1,398 0.00
181,153,345 100.00
Shareholders holding 10% Shares or
more
1 Mr. Danish Elahi 24,697,350 13.63
2 LSE Venture Limited 22,615,904 12.48
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Form of Proxy

I/We, , the undersigned member, being a member of LSE
Capital Limited, hereby appoint , the undersigned proxy, as my

proxy to vote for me and on my behalf at the AGM of the Company to be held on November 27, 2025

and/or at any adjournment thereof.

The Member: The Proxy:
Signature:
Signature:
Signature over Name:
Revenue Stamp of Rs. 50/-
CNIC No.:
Father's name:
Address:
Seal/Stamp of the Company
Name and Designation of the Appointer: Date:
CNIC No.:
Father’s name:
Address:
Date:
CDC Participant ID No.:
CDC Account/Sub-Account No.:
No. of Shares held:
Witness 1: Witness 2:
Signature: Signature:
Name: Name:
CNIC No.: CNIC No.:
Address: Address:
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Notes:

1. Proxies, in order to be effective, must be received at the Company’s Registered Office not later than
48 hours before the time for holding the meeting and must be duly stamped, signed and witnessed.

2. CDC beneficial owners and Proxy Holders must bring with them their Computerize National
Identity Cards (CNIC)/Passports in original to prove his/her identity and in case of Proxy, CDC
beneficial owners and Proxy Holders must enclose an attested copy of their CNIC/Passport with
Proxy Form.

3. In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution/power of attorney with specimen
signature of the nominee (unless it has been provided earlier) should be attached with the proxy

form.
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Authorization For Corporate Member
(On the Letterhead Of The Company)

Date:
The Secretary
LSE Capital Limited.

Lahore.

Sub: Authorization to attend the AGM of LSECL on behalf of Body Corporate (Member) of the
LSECL

Dear Sir,

Please be informed that Mr./Mrs./Ms. S/o W/o D/o holder of CNIC
No. , has been duly authorized by the Board of Directors of our company vide
resolution dated to participate and vote on resolutions included in the agenda of the notice
of AGM of LSE Capital Limited scheduled for November 27, 2025 or at any date adjourned/rescheduled
thereof. Resolution of the Board dated duly signed and stamped is attached herewith
for reference and record.

Yours truly,

Authorized Signatory Seal of the Company

Specimen Resolution
(On The Letterhead Of The Company)

The following resolution has been passed by the Board of Directors of (Name of the Company) in its

meeting held on , at

Resolved that Mr./Mrs./Ms. S/o W/o D/o
on behalf of the Company to participate and vote for resolutions included in the agenda of the notice
of AGM of LSE Capital Limited scheduled for November 27, 2025 or at any date adjourned/rescheduled
thereof.

be and is hereby authorized

Certified True Copy.

Authorized Signatory Seal of the Company
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